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EE#2 Milestones

*1930s—1970s
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Built a vision and a home
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1933
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Opened for business at
37 Bonham Strand East,

named Wing Lung
Ngan Ho.
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1937

K PEERGRIME E
ERKEF 1125538 -
The Bank moved to

112 Queen’s Road
Central.
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1960
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The Chinese name of the Bank was
changed to “ xpEERITHEPRAF .

1973
funfEEE T EETAETZ
MBITFIAREEPL » WEATTHIL
m+REE -

A joint celebration for the opening

of the new head office building
situated between Des Voeux
Road Central through Connaught
Road Central and the 40th
Anniversary of the Bank.
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1975
(L PABE 82 K BEERAT hDTERK ©

Wing Lung Bank Centre situated in
Mongkok was completed.

1980s
Bfp Ll =
FRhTS

Listed in Hong Kong,
opening new markets

1980
KITRMEELT -
RSB AREEE -
The Bank was listed and
shares began to be traded

on the stock exchanges in
Hong Kong.
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1982

B S SR EEIRITHEMN
HREBFERRATE  MER
TR B ENHE B HRARTE -

Joined force with four other
local Chinese banks to form
JETCO, a cooperative
network to provide Automatic
Teller Machine services to
customers.

1984 "
EEEECHERER

ﬁ%ﬁﬁoﬁ,ﬁf:w
Establishment of its first

erseas branch in Lo
ngeles, Californi
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2000—2008
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Expansion in China, acquired
by China Merchants Bank

2000

EiFE RAB R ERFI B RIEERA R REEASRE
BRAF  E—LHRERMEERT -

Partnered with other banks to set up

BC Reinsurance Limited and Hong Kong Life
Insurance Limited to further expand insurance
business.
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2004

TR E—RAM AT ©
Establishment of its first mainland branch
in Shenzhen.
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2008
TR SR1T P IH A RE AT o

China Merchants Bank successfully
acquired the Bank.

2009 == Till Now
BE S /
7k PE HE g

Building an Integrated
Cross-border financial
service platform

2009

#H 2B RIEEARY

TLUXE Visa Infinite ; (S FR BT AP E[E
BE15k " World MasterCard for Business j °
Launching of the world’s first

diamond credit card “LUXE Visa Infinite”
and the first “World MasterCard for
Business” in Greater China.

2009
EREIRITIEFITE—RRLBRER
FRFEFE - HEERIRR - BIRES
ARBEREE ~ IPOWFR ~ ARMINDFE
SERT -

Joined force with China Merchants Bank
to build an integrated cross-border
financial service platform and launched
China-Hong Kong Express Link,
cross-border Renminbi trade settlement
service, receiving bank service for IPO
and Renminbi non-deliverable forward
contracts, etc.
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Wing Lung Bank, founded in 1933, is among the oldest local
Chinese banks in Hong Kong. The Bank has at all times
followed its motto of “Progress with prudence, service with
sincerity” in providing personalised and sincere service to

customers.

The Chinese name of the Bank means “Perpetual
Prosperity”. Originally established as an indigenous Chinese
bank, Wing Lung Bank developed and expanded as Hong
Kong underwent a remarkable economic transformation after
the War. The Bank has since established itself as one with
contemporary outlook and comprehensive services, catering
to the needs of the business community and playing a part in

the generally vibrant economy of Hong Kong.

China Merchants Bank successfully took over Wing Lung
Bank in 2008. Wing Lung Bank has since become a member
of China Merchants Bank Group.

China Merchants Bank was incorporated in Shenzhen in
1987 as the first share-holding commercial bank wholly
owned by corporate legal entities in China. After more than
two decades of effort, China Merchants Bank, now listed in
Shanghai, China and Hong Kong, has transitioned itself into
a leading national commercial bank with total assets nearly
RMB3,240 billion, operating over 900 banking business
outlets and having a total staff of over 48,000 by the end of
December 2012.

China Merchants Bank and Wing Lung Bank will step up
efforts in business integration and complement each other.
Through the synergy from the merger, both banks will be
able to offer a wider range of quality products and services

to customers.
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Corporate Information

HHEY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HHE Chairman

By 3 Dr MA Weihua, PrD

Rl#EFR Vice-Chairman

ROGE Dr ZHANG Guanghua, PhD

HH Director

2= Mr LI Hao, MB4

RE Mr ZHU Qi, MSc

WA Dr XU Zhihong, PhD

THE Mr WANG Wangqing, B4

7 ity Dr ZUO Zhonghai, PhD

i Dr WU Po Him Philip, B4, MBA, PhD, DBA(Hon), FHKIB, BBS, JP
* 08 T g *Dr LEUNG Nai Pang Norman, GBS, LLD(Hon), BA, JP
*BRUL ST *Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln, BScChE, MBA, JP
* PR *Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard, GBS, B4, JP
* s A TEF * Independent Non-executive Director

& Secretary

KA Ms CHU Hon Yee Iva, BA(Hons), MCG, ACIS, ACS
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SRIGHE (E) Dr ZHANG Guanghua, PiD (Chairman)

THEH Mr WANG Wanqing, B4
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[GEDESS Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard, GBS, B4, JP

ot EE SR E & Audit and Risk Management Committee

BT (£FF) Dr LEUNG Nai Pang Norman, GBS, LLD (Hon), B4, JP (Chairman)

2=k Mr LI Hao, MB4
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ot 2 S Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard, GBS, B4, JP
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EXECUTIVES

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mr ZHU Qi, MSc

Executive Director & General Manager
Dr XU Zhihong, PhD

General Manager & Chief Risk Officer
Mr LIU Jun, MBA

Deputy General Manager
Mr ZHANG Dong

Chief Financial Officer
Mr CHEUNG Chung Keung, MSc, MBA, FCCA, CPA, FRM

Chief Information Officer
Mr WANG Zhiqiang, MSc

Chief Operating Officer
Mr CHENG Yiu Lung, BB4, MEC

Assistant General Manager

Ms CHAN Kin Hing, MBA, LL.B. (Hons), ACIS, ACS
Mr HUANG Rui, MB4

Ms SONG Lihua, MSe

REGISTERED OFFICE

45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
AUDITORS

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr MA Weihua, PiD

Chairman

He has been the Chairman of the Bank since October 2008. He has
been the Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Director of China
Merchants Bank Company, Limited (“CMB”) since March 1999. He
obtained a doctorate degree in Economics and is a senior economist. He
is a Member of the Twelfth National Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is also a Director of China
Merchants Group Limited, the Chairman of CIGNA & CMC Life
Insurance Company Limited and China Merchants Fund Management
Company, Limited, as well as an Independent Non-executive Director of
China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation and Winox Holdings Limited.
He has been an Independent Director of Guotai Junan Securities Co.,
Ltd. since January 2013. He is also the Vice Chairman of China Chamber
of International Commerce, the Executive Deputy Chairman of China
Enterprise Directors Association, a Member of the Standing Council of
China Society for Finance and Banking and of the Standing Council of
the Ninth Council of Red Cross Society of China, a Director of Shenzhen
Soft Science Development Foundation, an adjunct professor at several
higher educational institutions including Peking University and Tsinghua
University, etc.

Dr ZHANG Guanghua, piD

Vice-Chairman

He has been the Vice-Chairman of the Bank since October 2008. He
joined CMB as an Executive Vice President in April 2007 and has been
an Executive Director of CMB since June 2007. He obtained a doctorate
degree in Economics and is a senior economist. He is a Member of
the Standing Council of China Society for Finance and Banking, the
Deputy Chairman of both Guangdong Society for Finance and Banking
and Guangdong Commerce Association respectively, a Member of the
Fifth Committee of China Council for the Promotion of International
Trade and a visiting professor at Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics and Jilin University. From September 2002 to April 2007, he
served as the Chief Executive Officer of Guangdong Development Bank.

Mr LI Hao, MB4

Non-executive Director

He has been a Director of the Bank since October 2008. He joined CMB
in May 1997 and has been an Executive Vice President of CMB since
March 2002, and Chief Financial Officer since March 2007, and has
served as an Executive Director of CMB since June 2007. He obtained
a master’s degree in Business Administration and is a senior accountant.
He has been an Executive Assistant President and subsequently an
Executive Vice President of CMB, and was previously the concurrent
General Manager of the Shanghai Branch from April 2000 to March
2002.
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Mr ZHU Qi, MSc

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

He has been appointed the Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director of the Bank since September 2008 and October 2008
respectively. He also sits on the board of all principal subsidiary
companies of the Bank. He obtained a master degree in Economics. He
joined CMB in August 2008 and has been appointed an Executive Vice
President of CMB since December 2008. He worked in the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China from 1986 to 2008, and successively served
as the Deputy General Manager and General Manager of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China, Hong Kong Branch, the Director
and Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited. He had been the Chairman
of Chinese Mercantile Bank and the Independent Non-executive Director
of Great Eagle Holdings Limited.

Dr XU Zhihong, PiD

Executive Director & General Manager, Alternate Chief Executive Officer
He joined the Bank in 2010, and has been appointed the Executive
Director and General Manager of the Bank since February 2010. He
is also a Director of all principal subsidiary companies of the Bank.
He graduated from Accounting Department of Anhui University of
Finance & Economics in 1984, and obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from University of Oklahoma in 1990. He also obtained
a doctorate degree in Accounting from Renmin University of China in
1994. He has over 22 years’ management experience in banking business.

Mr WANG Wangqing, B4

Non-executive Director

He has been appointed a Director of the Bank since May 2010. He
graduated with a bachelor degree in Arts from Anhui University. He
joined CMB in February 2001. He held various positions such as an
Executive in the General Office, Assistant General Manager & Executive
in the General Office and Deputy General Manager of Hefei Branch
of CMB. He has been the General Manager of Human Resources
Department of CMB since April 2007 and the Chief Business Officer
since September 2012.

Dr ZUO Zhonghai, phD

Non-executive Director

He has been appointed a Director of the Bank since February 2012. He
obtained a doctorate degree in Economics from Northwest University
in July 1994 and is a senior economist. He had held a teaching position
in the Department of Economics of Lanzhou University. He joined
CMB in March 2007 and has been the General Manager of the Strategic
Development Department and Overseas Development Department since
July 2011. Prior to his current position, he was the General Manager of
the Hohhot Branch, CMB.
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Dr WU Po Him Philip, B4, MBA, PhD, DBA(Hon), FHKIB, BBS, JP
Non-executive Director

Joined the Bank in 1975. Elected an Executive Director since 1982,
appointed Chief Executive Officer from 2005 to 2008, and appointed
Non-executive Director since October 2008. He sits on the board of Wu
Jieh Yee Company Limited and The Hong Kong Academy For Gifted
Education Limited. He is a member of the Centennial College Council
and the Advisory Committee on Revitalisation of Historic Buildings. He
serves as Chairman of the History Museum Advisory Panel; the Lord
Wilson Heritage Trust and the Sir Edward Youde Memorial Fund.

Dr LEUNG Nai Pang Norman, GBS, LLD(Hon), BA, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed a Director of the Bank since 2002. Executive Chairman of
Television Broadcasts Limited, Chairman of Transport International
Holdings Limited and Independent Non-Executive Director of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited. He is the Pro-Chancellor of City University of
Hong Kong and a Member of the Advisory Committee on Post-office
Employment for Former Chief Executives and Politically Appointed
Officials.

Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln, BScChE, MBA, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed a Director of the Bank and an Independent Non-executive
Director of Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited since 2003. Also
an Independent Non-executive Director of Wah Ha Realty Company
Limited. He is a stock broker and the Chairman of Soo Pei Shao
& Company Limited, Member of the Committee of the SAHK and
Chairman of the English Major Advisory Council of Hong Kong Baptist
University.

Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard, GBS, B4, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed a Director of the Bank in 2007. Executive Director and
President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance
Company Limited. An Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Apart from the roles in the business
community, he also serves as a Hong Kong Deputy to The National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China and a member
of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR. He is also a former
member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. In addition,
he holds directorship in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong,
including Chen Hsong Holdings Limited, City e-Solutions Limited, New
Heritage Holdings Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited and
Yau Lee Holdings Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr LIU Jun, mMB4

General Manager & Chief Risk Officer

He joined the Bank as the General Manager and Chief Risk Officer in
January 2013. He obtained a bachelor degree in International Finance
from Management Department of Wuhan University in 1993, and
obtained a master degree in Business Administration from Southern
California University in 2000. He has over 18 years of solid experience
in banking management. Prior to joining the Bank, he was the General
Manager of Operations Management Department at the Head Office of
CMB. He held various senior executive roles at the Head Office and
Hong Kong Branch of CMB.
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Mr ZHANG Dong

Deputy General Manager

Joined the Bank in 2012 as Deputy General Manager. He is in charge
of the strategic development and growth of the Bank’s retail banking
business, encompassing the scope of branch management, deposits,
mortgage and personal loans, securities, wealth management, credit
cards, insurance and MPF, etc. Member of the board of Wing Lung
Property Management Limited, Wing Lung Bank (Trustee) Limited,
Wing Lung Bank (Nominees) Limited and Wing Lung Bank Foundation
Limited. Director of Bank Consortium Holding Limited and Executive
Committee Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He has
over 24 years of extensive experience in retail banking and wealth
management. Prior to his current appointment, he was with CMB, where
he was the Deputy General Manager of Retail Banking Department at the
Headquarter in charge of wealth management business.

Mr CHEUNG Chung Keung, MSc, MBA, FCCA, CPA, FRM

Chief Financial Officer

Joined the Bank in 1991 and appointed Assistant General Manager in
2007. Certified Public Accountant. Appointed Chief Financial Officer in
2010. Member of the board of Sea Wing Investments Limited.

Mr WANG Zhiqiang, MSc

Chief Information Officer

Joined the Bank in 2009 as Assistant General Manager. Appointed
Chief Information Officer in 2010. Chairman of Wing Lung Information
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited and member of the board of Hongnet
Limited.

Mr CHENG Yiu Lung, B34, MEC

Chief Operating Officer

Joined the Bank as Assistant General Manager in 2010. Appointed
Chief Operating Officer in 2011. He is primarily responsible for the
Bank’s operations management. He is also a Director of i-Tech Solutions
Limited.

Ms CHAN Kin Hing, MBA4, LL.B. (Hons), ACIS, ACS

Assistant General Manager

Joined the Bank in 1981. Appointed Assistant General Manager in 2010.
She is primarily responsible for the Bank’s credit risk management
affairs, and loan asset portfolio monitoring.

Mr HUANG Rui, mB4

Assistant General Manager

Joined the Bank in 2009. Appointed Assistant General Manager in 2011.
He is primarily responsible for the Bank’s corporate banking, Mainland
and overseas businesses.

Ms SONG Lihua, msc

Assistant General Manager

Joined the bank as Assistant General Manager in 2011. She is primarily
responsible for the Bank’s financial institutions business and corporate
communications.
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MA Weihua Chairman

2012 was the fourth full year for Wing Lung Bank (the “Bank”)
after becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of China Merchants Bank
(“CMB”). During the year, amidst a challenging external environment,
the Bank fulfilled the requirements of regulatory authorities and the
Board of Directors, overcame numerous adverse factors, steadily
advanced the integration with CMB and put foster reforms on business
strategies, thereby maintaining an excellent development trend.

In 2012, the Bank’s business development demonstrated the following
features: Firstly, the Bank’s profitability grew steadily. During the
year, the Bank achieved a consolidated profit attributable to shareholders
of HK$2,131 million, representing an increase of 14.1% from the same
period of last year. Return on average assets and return on average
equity were 1.24% and 13.28% respectively, both above Hong Kong peer
banks’ average level. Secondly, the Bank’s risk resistance capability
was strengthened persistently. As at the year end of 2012, the non-
performing loan ratio, including trade bills, was 0.29%, down 0.12
percentage point from the beginning of the year. The capital adequacy
ratio, core capital adequacy ratio and average liquidity ratio were 14.9%,
10.0% and 45.0% respectively, all above statutory requirements. Thirdly,
the Bank’s business scale expanded steadily. As at the year end of
2012, the consolidated total assets of the Bank amounted to HK$178.9
billion, up 9.2% from the beginning of the year. Total deposits grew by
14.7% over the beginning of the year to HK$132.1 billion, while total
loans and advances to customers, including trade bills, rose by 16.4%
over the beginning of the year to HK$99.3 billion.
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In 2012, the Board of Directors properly performed its duties and
enhanced its working efficiency as well as decision making capability.
The Board made various material decisions and supported the operations
of the management. During the year, the Board achieved remarkable
results in strengthening corporate governance, fostering integration and
coordination with CMB, accelerating business innovation and enhancing
management capability.

To strengthen corporate governance, the Board studied and revised
the procedural rules for the Board of Directors. The terms of reference
for the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee was adjusted, and the
information disclosure as well as management of investor relations
were strengthened. The Board introduced senior management members,
appointed new chief risk officer and deployed comprehensive
management teams in major business lines. Moreover, the Board also
fostered the optimization of the internal structure and reporting line of
the Bank by the management.

To foster integration and co-ordination with CMB, the Board strived
to put forward business referral, cross-selling and resources sharing
between two banks, thereby further leveraging the advantages of internal
and external linkage as well as the synergy effect. As at the end of the
year, balance of loans granted to overseas enterprises with guarantees
from domestic enterprises as security amounted to HK$8,336 million.
Under the cooperation of two banks, business turnover of coordinated
trade financing and foreign exchange amounted to HK$12.4 billion and
HK$13.4 billion during the year respectively. The Bank also worked
with CMB to promote personal cross-border financial services such as
account opening under witness and capital investment entrant scheme.
The “Dual Bank Logo Credit Card” was launched successfully.

To accelerate business innovation, the Board grasped the historic
opportunity arising from the increase in demand for cross-border
financial service in the Mainland and Hong Kong. The Bank strived to
launch various innovative cross-border corporate finance products and
services in different areas including trading settlement, cross-border
financing, asset assignment and structured investments. Great emphasis
was placed on building cross-border financial services platform for small
and medium banks. The Bank focused on developing unique business
model through securing micro enterprises customers and retail high-end
customers, establishing private wealth management centre as well as
promoting personal financing service including capital investment entrant
scheme, Reverse Mortgage Program and red wine financing business.
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Chairman’s Statement

EPEFBRA T H - FFEME 21 To enhance management capability, the Board provided guidance for
BUNEEAR > EHAWEH M ENM  establishment of comprehensive appraisal system. The linkage between
B > HE— 2D BB T IR 7 5 ¥ performance appraisal and remuneration was strengthened, further
JE B 1) 2 T A B ﬁ%ﬁ’i?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁ boosting the morale of staff. Great efforts were put on managing all
JEFg (G BB B T 2 L= > BAHEB)  risks, exploring the opportunity of sharing the risk information and
HLIF P SRAT O R KA PR MO B A Ik 4% risk management tools with CMB as well as fostering the consolidated
— B TAE ; 58 mILITR S » #1254  reporting management and the joint implementation of the new
o B REEZORE R > B capital accord requirement with CMB. Guidance for enhancing key
ik B AR HE I *ﬂ?érﬂiﬁ’ﬂiﬁtﬁ@ » fi£ competencies through improving IT systems, network channels and
HET K BESRAT T TR R E— 5T o customer services was provided. To enhance its brand image, the Bank
focused on building a proactive, harmony and progressive culture.

Al AR B > BB AT T The above achievements were attributable to the dedicated service of all
BRAMBERET ~ FZERAE G AR our staff and supports from our customers, fellow bankers and the public.
TISZ R RBARY o 720 - FRFEACEAKEE  On behalf of the Bank, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
AT fﬁlﬁﬁﬁgﬁll}*ﬂ i %—’ IKIEESRITHE  of our friends for their dedication and continued support.

FOEAR TS 7~ el B ) SR !
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ZO—=AFE WM E BN EINEE4EE In 2013, we will face a more complex operating environment. The impact
ey ?ﬁ’%fﬁfﬁzqq o EEIME MG  of the global financial crisis will persist and the global economy will
%?E:%?EIE ﬂﬁ?ﬁ@‘z‘%)\(ﬂ?

>

& BT enter the period of adjustment. Local economy will be characterised by
B FEEHAMEIERZIMLZ A B increased uncertainties. Against this backdrop, the operating environment
HERT > K F%fﬁﬁ W& B I EEE s still challenging for the Bank. However, the steady progress of
Z %8y BN R B AL A ER 0 HEAE - internationalisation of Renminbi, closer economic linkage between Hong
A s B A b RS B AR AR H 45 B % - Wi Kong and China as well as the consolidation and enhancement of the
PEEE AR oK EFhEE R > HUEBIP¥ <& status of Hong Kong as an international financial, trading and shipping
Al &5~ WO R FE E A centre, coupled with deepening integration and cooperation with CMB,
PETF o DL B R ERATEE G TAEME A will bring new opportunities to the Bank for its future development.
B > o A Ak B SRAT EE R AR AR % Under the new situation, the Bank will further strengthen its integration
W oo ERIIEETT > KEERATIF#ME  with CMB and place emphasis on achieving breakthrough in various
L BRI ERAT RV B G i &) » EEEEAF 5 HE  businesses such as cross-border Renminbi, wealth management and
AR B E & - PSRRI 354 M interbank finance with an aim to establish a competitive cross-border
LGEM IS B E B > IR E financial service platform. Meanwhile, the Bank will make every effort
HHRF B EMRET-4 5 [ to implement management reform, foster the transformation of business
BN B e A B O B D) B N PR A4S B strategies, strive for innovation and strengthen competencies. Moreover,
A GIEALH > RAERES > UE M@ the Bank will offer quality services and achieve remarkable results to
BRI A R AT R 2645 > H ol 841 €4  reward the public for their valuable support.

PR SR BLUR5 o

HLW e S R — W BEAE B L~ X We sincerely look forward to the continuous support from the public in

FEK BESRATHO S - the years ahead.
iy MA Weihua
HHR Chairman

ZO—=4F=ZH 1A 19 March 2013
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

KOE O ATBEEK
ZHU Qi Chief Executive Officer

In 2012, the Hong Kong economy grew moderately. The Gross Domestic
Product grew slightly by 1.4% for the year as a whole. Against the
background of severe external economic conditions and weak external
demand, total exports of goods recorded a moderate growth. Thanks
to the stable employment market and salary improvement, domestic
demand remained strong, thus boosting private consumption expenditure.
Local property price went up visibly during most of 2012, and stabilised
towards the year-end after the launch of demand-management measures
by the Government in late October 2012. Given moderated imported
inflation, along with the slowdown in economic growth, inflation was on
an easing trend.

Externally, the global economic environment was sluggish. Amid
European debt crisis, the eurozone economy slipped into recession.
The US economy continued its slow recovery pace and uncertainties
grew over fiscal cliff. The Mainland economy saw a modest growth
given weak external demand and persistent rebalancing of economy
by the government. As an open economy, it is inevitable that Hong
Kong would be affected by the external economic environment. In the
light of uncertain economic conditions, the operating environment was
challenging for the banking sector.

2012 was the fourth year for China Merchants Bank (“CMB”) to takeover
the Bank. The Bank strived to strengthen its collaboration with CMB,
promote coordinated business as well as enhance key competencies, and
sign of synergies emerged. The Bank achieved remarkable results and
established a solid foundation for building cross-border financial service
platform.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012, profit attributable to shareholders
of the Group was HKS$2,131 million, representing an increase of 14.1%
as compared with that in 2011 (as restated), which was mainly driven by
net interest income. In 2012, the Group recorded a net interest income
of HK$2,504 million, representing an increase of 19.9% as compared
with that of 2011, which was mainly attributable to an increase in
average loan amount and average interest rate; the net interest margin
for the year was 1.57%, up by 10 basis points as compared with that
of 2011. Net non-interest income was HK$1,211 million, representing
a decrease of 10.7% as compared with that of 2011, primarily due to
the decrease in non-interest income such as income from securities
business as a result of the prudent investment sentiment across global
markets amidst the sluggish US economy and the European debt
crisis. Net fees and commission income amounted to HK$466 million,
representing a decrease of 4.1% from that of 2011. Insurance business
achieved a net operating income of HK$115 million, representing
an increase of 37.9% as compared with that of 2011, primarily due
to the steady improvement in operation performance of Wing Lung
Insurance Company Limited (“Wing Lung Insurance”). Net gains from
foreign exchange trading amounted to HK$286 million, representing a
decrease of 19.6% over 2011, primarily due to reduced gains from RMB
non-deliverable forward contracts and cross-border purchase and sale
of foreign exchange. Write-back of credit losses was HK$4.36 million,
as compared with impairment charge for credit losses of HKS$117
million in 2011. Operating expenses amounted to HK$1,340 million,
representing an increase of 16.7% as compared with that of 2011,
primarily due to increases in payroll, rental of premises, China business
tax and withholding tax. The cost-to-income ratio for 2012 was 36.1%,
representing a slight increase of 2.7 percentage points as compared with
that of 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, the total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$178.9 billion, representing an increase of 9.2% as compared with
that at the end of 2011. Equity attributable to shareholders amounted to
HKS$17.1 billion, representing an increase of 14.7% as compared with
that at the end of 2011 (as restated). Loan-to-deposit ratio was 62.9%, up
by 1.1 percentage points as compared with that at the end of 2011. As at
31 December 2012, the capital adequacy ratio and core capital adequacy
ratio of the Group were 14.9% and 10.0%, respectively, and the average
liquidity ratio for the reporting period was 45.0%, all above statutory
requirements.

Deposits

As at 31 December 2012, total deposits of the Group grew by 14.7% to
HKS$132.1 billion as compared with that at the end of 2011.
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Among the various kinds of deposits, Hong Kong Dollar deposits
increased by HKS$9,043 million or 14.3%; US Dollar deposits after
translation increased by HK$4,143 million or 23.9%; RMB deposits
after translation rose substantially by HK$5,759 million or 33.0%;
and deposits in other foreign currencies after translation decreased by
HK$1,990 million or 11.7%, as compared with those at the end of 2011.

Advances to customers

As at 31 December 2012, total advances to customers, including trade
bills, of the Group rose by 16.4% to HK$99.3 billion as compared with
that at the end of 2011 and the non-performing loan ratio, including that
of trade bills, was only 0.29%, implying a sound loan quality on the
whole.

With respect to corporate banking business, the total corporate loans
amounted to HK$38.1 billion as at 31 December 2012, an increase of
6.0% over that at the end of 2011. During the reporting period, the Bank
devoted efforts to obtaining loans for overseas enterprises which are
secured by guarantees from their respective parent companies, syndicated
loans, and corporate loans to enterprises in China and Hong Kong as
well as bilateral loans and the result was remarkable. In order to expand
its revenue source, the Bank actively explored non-interest income
business, strengthened the business coordination between the Bank’s
corporate finance and commercial banking activities, including selling
offshore Renminbi bonds and wealth management products, acting as the
receiving bank in initial public offering of newly listed shares and the
dividend paying bank for listed companies.

As to commercial banking business, the balance of loans amounted to
HK$7,223 million as at 31 December 2012, representing an increase
of 75.6% as compared with that at the end of 2011, which was mainly
attributable to the growth of loans granted to new customers. In 2012, it
became more difficult to expand business with the export-oriented small
and medium enterprises (“SMEs”) at home due to the adverse effect of
overseas economies on exports. However, the Bank managed to make
a breakthrough in both the lending modes and customer size through
expansion of cross-border business in cooperation with CMB.
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As for the mortgage and personal
loan business, as at 31 December
2012, the balance of loans amounted
to HK$26.0 billion, almost

ZO——FKIERER | cmwoan unchanged from that at the end of
Bor s HepfE ey g | - memes 2011. Of the total loans, the balance
1577 W0 R 2 v 183,81 x 9952 6666 of residential mortgage loans
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amounted to HK$8,381 million,
representing a decrease of 2.8% as
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compared with that at the end of
2011. Conventional mortgage lending demand was adversely affected
by the prudential supervisory measures for mortgage lending repeatedly
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introduced by the Government as well as the hikes in stamp duties levied
on property transactions to crack down on speculation of properties
in 2012. Hence, the Bank promptly adjusted its business development
strategy regarding retail loans and introduced favourable packages
for the “Purchase of the First Property” aiming at the non-residential
property mortgage market. Meanwhile, it developed credit loan products,
such as “Small Enterprise Unsecured Overdraft Facility” for SMEs,
comprehensive banking services for small and micro enterprises, and also
personal loan services to professionals and individuals. Loan facilities
secured by funds and bonds were also launched in late 2012.

With respect to the business of mainland branches, the total loans to
customers amounted to HK$10.2 billion, representing an increase of
27.1% as compared with that at the end of 2011. The Bank will increase
marketing activities on savings and Capital Investment Entrant Scheme
(“CIES”) products in a timely manner. It also intends to vigorously
market its individual-oriented products to branches of CMB, to enhance
business coordination and cross-selling. Moreover, it will put more
efforts on market expansion and continue to expedite the development of
various credit businesses.

Investments

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s debt securities investment
amounted to HK$19.4 billion, representing a decrease of 18.9% as
compared with that at the end of 2011. Almost 80% of the debt securities

were rated A3 or above for their comparatively low risks.

Treasury business
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In 2012, revenue from foreign exchange trading
business amounted to HK$79.62 million, representing a
decline of 45.1% as compared with that of 2011 because
the prevailing prudent sentiment in the market resulting
from tightening regulatory policies at home and abroad
and the challenging economic situation in China led to
reduced transaction volume of and gains from Renminbi
non-deliverable forward contracts and cross-border
purchase and sale of foreign exchange. However, thanks
to the overabundance of liquidity fuelled by the global
quantitative easing policies to rescue the economy and
the growing market share of the Bank amidst exit of
competitors from the market, revenue from foreign
money exchanges amounted to HK$66.29 million,
representing an increase of 23.9% as compared with that
of 2011.
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Strongly supported by CMB, the Bank seized the opportunities in
Renminbi related business through actively participating in Renminbi
connected transactions and expanding non-trade-based Renminbi
client base, so as to increase transaction volume and related revenue.
Meanwhile, the Bank will aggressively expand corporate customer
transactions, continue to strengthen foreign exchange trading by
individual customers, provide customers with latest information
promptly, and properly predict the trend of foreign exchange markets and
seize opportunities therein so as to promote the development of foreign
exchange business and create more revenue for the Group.

Financial institution business

As regards the banking businesses with financial institutions, the
Group seized market opportunities to adjust business structure and
further expand the base of small and medium financial institution
customers, which brought about satisfactory results. The Group
endeavoured to build a “Financial Service Platform for Cross-border
Small and Medium Banks”, constantly innovated cross-border products,
proactively promoted inter-bank asset, settlement and trading products
and vigorously increased cross-border Renminbi-related trade finance
products and services. Meanwhile, it constantly consolidated the base
of financial institution customers and added a number of domestic
and foreign bank customers during the year, with which it cooperated
in foreign exchange transaction, clearing services and cross-border
trade finance. In future, it will continue to explore the feasibility of
comprehensive cooperation with those banks.

Wealth management
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The Group’s wealth management business
realised revenue of HK$48.98 million in
2012, representing an increase of 29.3% as
compared with that of 2011.
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In 2012, the Bank officially introduced
“Wing Lung Private Wealth Management”
and established Wing Lung Private
Wealth Management Centre to provide
a full range of professional financial
services for high-end customers in the
Mainland and Hong Kong. The Bank is
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committed to developing comprehensive
wealth management products and services. In 2012, it introduced “Asset
Allocation Reference Portfolio” exclusively for CIES purposes, initial
private placement of bonds, online subscription of funds in initial public
offering, physical gold trading service, loans pledged by bonds and
funds, in order to provide customers with more options and increase
revenue for the Group.
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Credit card

The Bank issued more than 250,000 credit cards as at 31 December 2012.
The credit card receivables amounted to HK$409 million, representing
a decrease of 2.7% as compared with that of 2011. Merchant business
turnover was HK$4,111 million, representing an increase of 13.8% as
compared with that of 2011, reflecting the rigorous efforts in promoting
the merchant business and the continuous growth of the Hong Kong
consumption market. Since the Bank issued the world’s first diamond
credit card “Luxe Visa Infinite” and the first “World MasterCard for
Business” in the Greater China, the number of high-end individuals
and corporate customers has been in a steady growth. The Bank has
launched “CUP (China UnionPay) Dual Currency Credit Card”, which
allows cardholders to settle transactions taking place in Mainland China
in RMB and transactions outside Mainland China in Hong Kong dollars,
and its Hong Kong dollar account supports different forms of flexible
cash withdrawals. In addition, the Bank and CMB jointly launched the
“Dual Bank Logo Credit Card” imprinted with both the names and logos
of CMB and the Bank, which facilitates cardholders of the Bank to
enjoy the merchant offers and promotional activities for the credit card
businesses of CMB.
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Securities broking

In 2012, Wing Lung Securities Limited realised a brokerage commission
and related income of HK$131 million, representing a decrease of
26.8% as compared with that of 2011 primarily due to reduced volume
in securities broking as investors in Hong Kong market maintained a
prudent attitude during the reporting period, given the uncertainties in
the external economic environment and deep concerns over the European
debt crisis.
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O AKERBEB BREIWAN  Wing Lung Insurance realised a gross premium income of HK$756
¥e7.56f800 - B O ——FHER10.7% million in 2012, representing an increase of 10.7% as compared with that
MRMERE L T8.3%E W H3.98(8 0 » 7K of 2011. Total insurance claims increased by 8.3% to HK$398 million.
REERI O —— M ZE ML 2 Underwriting business recorded a profit of HK$56.15 million, indicating
5615870 » O — AP KIERFRASE S a significant increase as compared with that of 2011. Wing Lung
mifE T Insurance reported a steady improvement in its operating results in 2012.
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At present, the Bank has a total of 44
banking offices in Hong Kong. The
Bank is speeding up the construction and
renovation of branches to expand network.
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Currently, the Bank has 4 branches and
representative offices in the PRC, a branch
in Macau and two overseas branches,
located respectively in Los Angeles, the
United States and Cayman Islands.
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| www minglungbank com

H AP Information technology

AATHEBEBO R T A ARG > i The Bank continued to upgrade its IT infrastructure as well as enhance
MRS LABETE > LI AFE  the capability and stability of various systems in order to support strong
BRI PR R 5 BBCE EFEEE - A17  business growth. To facilitate business development, the Bank also
IR B J 45 TER SE 05 SR 6 - stepped up efforts to launch business support projects.
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Human resources

As at 31 December 2012, the total number of employees of the Bank is
1,725 (31 December 2011: 1,693), of which 1,530 are in Hong Kong,
143 are in the PRC, 34 are in Macau and 18 are overseas.

2013 is anticipated to be a year full of uncertainties. It is expected
that the eurozone sovereign debt crisis will still adversely affected the
eurozone economy. The fundamentals of the US economy will remain
weak. The persistent high unemployment in US and Europe may give
rise to protectionist sentiments and trade conflicts. The introduction of
the quantitative easing measures by advanced economies, coupled with
the heightened geopolitical tension and unstable political environment
in the Middle East, will add uncertainties to the global economy.
In view of uncertain economic outlook, the operating environment
continues to be challenging for the banking sector. The Bank will stay
alert to the ever-changing operating environment. Great emphasis will
be placed on strengthening risk capabilities, tightening cost control
measures and improving resources allocation. Being a member of the
CMB group, the Bank has strong parental support and much room for
further development. The Bank will devote great effort to realising
synergies through strengthening its integration and collaboration with
CMB. Meanwhile, the Bank will also cooperate with CMB to build a
cross-border financial service platform, so as to strengthen competitive
edge and enhance overall profit growth.

ZHU Qi
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

19 March 2013
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Report of the Directors

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.
Principal activities

The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the provision
of banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the

principal subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segment is set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend (2011:
Nil) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012.
Reserves

Details of the movements in the Group’s and the Bank’s reserves are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$100,000 (2011: HK$5,000,000).

Other properties and equipment

Details of the movements in the Group’s and the Bank’s other properties
and equipment are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of share capital of the Bank are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements. There were no movements during the year.
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Subordinated debt

During the year, the Bank issued callable subordinated notes (the
“Notes”) totaling US$200,000,000, which are qualified as supplementary
capital of the Group and the Bank. The Notes will mature on 7 November
2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 7 November 2017. The
net proceeds from the notes will be used by the Bank for general banking
and other corporate purposes. Details of the Notes are set out in note 34
to the financial statements.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of the financial
statements are as follows:

Dr MA Weihua (Chairman)

Dr ZHANG Guanghua (Vice-Chairman)

Mr LI Hao

Mr ZHU Qi* (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr XU Zhihong*

Mr WANG Wangqing

Dr ZUO Zhonghai (appointed as Non-executive Director
on 8 February 2012)

Dr WU Po Him Philip

Dr LEUNG Nai Pang Norman'

Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln'

Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard'

Mr KWOK Kin Hung *

Mr Zhang Xiaowei”

(resigned on 1 March 2012)
(appointed as Executive Director
on 1 January 2012 and resigned on
1 October 2012)

# Executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

Directors’ interests in shares

None of the directors have been granted, or have exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares of the Bank.

At no time during the financial year was the Bank, or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any
other body corporate.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Bank’s business to which
the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
which set out the minimum standards for public disclosure which
authorised institutions must make in respect of the income statement,
state of affairs and capital adequacy. The financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2012 comply fully with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates retirement schemes for its employees. Details of
the Group’s retirement schemes are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Bank is to
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
MA Weihua
Chairman

19 March 2013
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The Bank is devoted to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. To enhance the overall management quality of the Bank, the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) has put in place governance practices
with special emphasis on an effective Board for leadership and control,
sound business ethics and integrity in all business activities.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Bank is committed
to the guidelines set out in the “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority.

Board of Directors

The Board is charged with leading the Bank in a responsible and
effective manner. Its main responsibilities include, but are not limited to,
ensuring competent management, approving objectives, strategies and
business plans, ensuring prudent conduct of operations within the laws
and approved policies, ensuring and monitoring integrity in the Bank’s
conduct of affairs. Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share
responsibility for the proper direction and management of the Bank.

The Board currently comprises eleven members, two executive directors
and nine non-executive directors, of whom three are independent non-
executive directors. The individuals who make up the Board draw on a
rich and diverse background of experience from both within and outside
of the banking community. The independent non-executive directors
possess appropriate professional qualifications. The names and brief
biographical details of the directors are shown on pages 10 to 12 in this
Annual Report.

Since the Bank has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., the Board strives to improve its corporate
governance and ensure operational compliance so as to enhance
management quality. The Bank currently establishes Strategy Committee,
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee as well as Audit and Risk
Management Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Bank’s
affairs. Each of the committees has defined terms of reference setting
out its duties, powers and functions. The committees report to the
Board and, where appropriate, make recommendations on matters
discussed. The Board, in addition to its overall supervisory role, retains
specific responsibilities such as approving specific senior appointments,
approving financial accounts, recommending dividend payments,
approving policies relating to the Board’s compliance, etc.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer are
separate.

The Chairman, Dr MA Weihua, provides leadership for the Board. He
is responsible for ensuring that the Board works effectively and that all
key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner.

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr ZHU Qi, in conjunction with
the Management Committee, is delegated with the authority and
responsibility for running the Bank’s operation and implementing the
Bank’s business strategies.

Management Committee

The Management Committee consists of three members, all appointed by
the Board. The current members are Mr ZHU Qi, Dr XU Zhihong and
Mr LIU Jun. In accordance with its terms of reference and the directions
as the Board may determine from time to time, the Management
Committee is responsible for the implementation of policies and
execution of business plans as set by the Board, assisting the Board
to formulate the Group’s risk appetite and strategies for managing the
various types of risks to which the Group’s businesses are exposed, and
the implementation and maintenance of the overall risk management
framework across the Group’s businesses.

The Management Committee presents to the Board regularly by way
of detailed business reports on management’s business strategies and
objectives, updates on different lines of business, action plans, etc
for discussion at each Board meeting. The Committee also provides
appropriate and sufficient information to the other members of the Board
in a timely manner to keep them apprised of the latest development of
the Bank so as to enable them to discharge their duties.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee consists of five members, all appointed by the
Board. The current members are Dr MA Weihua (Chairman), Mr ZHU
Qi, Dr ZUO Zhonghai, Dr WU Po Him Philip and Mr SOO Hung Leung
Lincoln. The principal duties of the Strategy Committee are to establish
strategic development goals, and to formulate medium to long term
development strategies of the Bank.
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Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee consists of five members,
all appointed by the Board. The current members are Dr ZHANG
Guanghua (Chairman), Mr WANG Wanqing, Dr LEUNG Nai Pang
Norman, Mr SOO Hung Leung Lincoln and Mr CHAN Charnwut
Bernard. The principal duties of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee are to study the performance appraisal standards for the
Directors and senior management, and conduct appraisals and make
recommendations annually. Moreover, the Committee is also responsible
for making recommendations of the individuals for the appointment as
Directors and senior management to the Board. Besides, the Committee
participates in studying and reviewing the remuneration policies and
packages for the Directors and senior management as well as evaluating
and approving the employment or service agreements of the Bank’s
Directors and senior management, the Bank’s remuneration strategies,
the annual pay adjustment and benefits schemes for the staff of the Bank.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee consists of five members,
all appointed by the Board. The current members are Dr LEUNG Nai
Pang Norman (Chairman), Mr LI Hao, Dr ZUO Zhonghai, Mr SOO
Hung Leung Lincoln and Mr CHAN Charnwut Bernard. They possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications or related financial
management expertise, and are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties. The principal duties of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee are to ensure the rationality and accuracy
of the internal accounting and financial control systems of the Bank;
to propose the appointment or replacement of external auditors, and
assess their independence and performance; to evaluate the procedures
and performance of internal auditors as well as to monitor the risk
management system of the Bank, conducting regular assessment of
the risk position of the Bank and proposing the implementation of
the relevant policies. In addition, the Committee also takes part in
auditing the internal control system of the Bank, and monitoring the risk
management of the Bank’s exposures to credit risks, market risks and
operational risks, etc by the senior management.

Nomination of Directors

The Bank does not have a Nomination Committee. The Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee is responsible for making recommendations of
the individuals for the appointment as Directors and senior management
to the Board. The Board as a whole is responsible for the procedure
of agreeing to the appointment of its members and for nominating
appropriate person for election at the annual general meeting, either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing directors.



P

R LT BB EHROL - MR
FeAAT — AN ER B R A o AR
F A T8 B 4 AR A LA — IR 2 2 A AL AR R
RN A T A O ROER - ARG 2 E
SO F T EE R B R B g MR E R
B> DUt B A BRI B 45 4% o By o
FE AR TR RIS TAL A Gk B
2o O WS O A BOR SRR - B
FEAT o ~F JI) > TR R B R ) B R
BUR B WIS - ERgl O E& K
B b AT PR REST > DLRROR A A2

ARG 1 2 1A P B A AR B A — R S
LB AR - DGR A 42 ) % 52 4R
RS B s 2 3% RAT B wh AL Bk DLAR (1
]S A A R 5 B G S R
SR AT LB DL AR OR AR N
B o AREMCRT L BURMAR Y - AR
IR BAE - BT RS - T
JREARH S A S Y A o 0 3 ) SR DA I
B A R RGO AOCE
Z BV I — L AL AR AR B 2 A B
ZE Y8 - A QAR L R T =
B Ton B B B A AR A I 2 oA

A A L BT AN (7] 194 B A B IR S A A
e 3l A R E B & B R Bk
I~ REAL A R B B BT T A
5 Tl JEL g o G P BSR4 )
) By 19 AL PR o B e R B 2 B
SEMACHE o A B PR E B (RS
B T WE)E S SR R ) (Y L
WMAESY > wEIIAE B R FE 2 [l
JE B B | — A o

Annual Report 2012 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KBESATHIRA R —O— 4R

Internal Control

The Board and senior management are responsible for establishing,
maintaining and operating an effective system of internal control. The
internal control system of the Group comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee and other designated committees
have been established with the objective of assisting the Board to
manage and monitor various risks. The Board’s expectations regarding
duty, responsibility and integrity of each department are clearly spelled
out in formal policy statements, which include Code of Conduct, Internal
Control Policy Statement and Compliance Policy Statement, etc. The
Board has clearly defined the lines of authority and responsibilities
of each business and operational unit to ensure adequate checks and
balances.

The Group’s internal control system covers every business and
operational function so as to safeguard its assets against loss and
misappropriation; to maintain proper accounting records for producing
reliable financial information; to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material fraud and errors. Policies and procedures are
established to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
industry standards. To cope with the increasingly stringent requirements
from relevant regulatory authorities together with ever-changing business
environment, the Board has dedicated more resources and efforts to
further strengthen the Group’s management structure and oversight.
Internal Control Committee has been established with a primary
objective of assisting management to oversee the overall internal control
system of the Group.

The Group has had in place various risk management policies and
procedures. There are specific committees and units that are responsible
for identifying, assessing, monitoring and managing the risks that the
Group faces. Risk management policies and major risk control limits are
established and approved by the Board or the Management Committee.
A more detailed discussion of the policies and procedures for managing
each of the major types of risk the Group is facing, including credit,
market, liquidity and operational risk, is included in note 2 to the
financial statements “Financial Risk Management” section.
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The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Group’s internal audit function plays
an important role in the Group’s internal control framework. It provides
objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is
maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on all business
and operational functions. All internal audit reports will be submitted to
the Audit and Risk Management Committee for review. Significant issues
raised in the management letters from external auditors and reports from
regulatory authorities will be brought to the attention of the Audit and
Risk Management Committee to ensure that prompt remedial action is
taken. All recommendations will be properly followed up to ensure they
are implemented within a reasonable period of time. Pursuant to a risk-
based methodology, the Internal Audit Department plans its internal
audit schedules annually with audit resources prioritised towards higher
risk areas. The Internal Audit Plan is submitted to the Management
Committee as well as the Audit and Risk Management Committee for
approval. To preserve the audit independence, the Board has established
the Audit Charter to set out the authorities and responsibilities of
internal audit function. The Group Chief Auditor reports directly to the
Management Committee as well as the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

Accountability and Audit

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012, the directors have applied suitable accounting policies
consistently, approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards which are in conformity with the International Financial
Reporting Standards, and made prudent judgements and estimates, and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Bank has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of 4 months and 3 months respectively after the
end of the relevant period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WING LUNG BANK LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing Lung
Bank Limited (“the Bank™) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set
out on pages 35 to 188, which comprise the consolidated and the Bank’s
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2013
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ARl R

BE O~ %+ _"H=+1—HIEZ4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2012

7l

Restated

—0o0—= —O0O—

2012 2011

ik W T T T

Note HKS$°000 HK$’000

FLE WA Interest income 4 5,085,447 3,851,688
FE % H Interest expense 5 (2,581,796)  (1,763,123)
&S B A Net interest income 2,503,651 2,088,565
MR %5 22 B A Ui A Fees and commission income 552,111 563,130
IR 5 2 K A 4 3 Fees and commission expense (85,731) (77,058)
IR %5 2 Bl AU A Net fees and commission income 6 466,380 486,072
%@%%4&]\ Insurance operating income 7 512,615 450,683
528 5 i i Net trading gain 8 401,458 603,681

e EER Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale

el securities 10,044 10,099
HAth & FE A Other operating income 9 218,428 172,494
BERA Operating income 4,112,576 3,811,594
PR B3 2R HE A Charge for insurance claims 7 (397,828) (367,461)
IR RZE 2B ZEIW A  Operating income net of insurance claims 3,714,748 3,444,133
M Operating expenses 10 (1,339,605) (1,148,127)
PRI B i 2 2= %M Operating profit before impairment charge 2,375,143 2,296,006
fEEHR A WA I Impairment written back on/(charge for)

(W) credit losses 11 4,356 (117,368)
BERAH Operating profit 2,379,499 2,178,638
&Y 2 A PEE I Fair value gains on investment properties 28 140,554 59,451
B H A 3 M s 2 Net loss on disposal of other properties and

1R ) equipment (2,322) (877)
JRE AL [ $22 ) BT BS 2 35 F1) Share of net profits of jointly controlled entities 40,715 17,302
JREAG B 7 A ) 22 1 i ) Share of net profits of associate 2,243 2,879
B B il i A Profit before taxation 2,560,689 2,257,393
B A AL Income tax 14 (427,202) (390,274)
A4 B di ) Profit for the year 2,133,487 1,867,119
BB - Attributable to:

AT IR Equity shareholders of the Bank 2,130,947 1,867,119

FEHE T 1) JBE BRORE 2 Non-controlling interests 2,540 -

R SRA1H 2 55188 H X s R 4 I 45 B

Bk 2 —aR o

The notes on pages 41 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HEZO—ZMH 1+ H =+—HIEZH4JE For the year ended 31 December 2012

Eel

Restated

—~O0—= —O0O—
2012 2011

W T W oT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000

A AR i A Profit for the year 2,133,487 1,867,119
AR A By 2 T WL 4R Other comprehensive income for the year
HAGF E 2 B Surplus on revaluation of bank premises - 378
At B SR Changes in fair value of

A (E A available-for-sale securities 81,046 (137,539)
A B TR B BB SR FIA Transfer to income statement on disposal of

Wi 5 % available-for-sale securities (10,044) (10,099)
A AR BRI (B P Transfer to income statement on impairment of

i 25 2% available-for-sale securities 2,626 28,020
A Bh 55 ) 2 frbi Mg Share of associate’s reserves 99 (62)
JRE AV I [i] 42 ) BT B 2 febi s Share of jointly controlled entities’ reserves 462 (125)
At 2 A7 AL 5 2 40 A o IH Effect of deferred taxation on other

2 comprehensive income items (8,231) 7,532
ﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬂ:ﬂi"%ﬁ%ﬁ Other comprehensive income for the year 65,958 (111,895)
A AR BE 4 T W 2 48 A Total comprehensive income for the year 2,199,445 1,755,224
B B L - Attributable to:

ARATHER Equity shareholders of the Bank 2,196,905 1,755,224

FE P2 il (1 1S SR 2 Non-controlling interests 2,540 _

PR 41 EH 188 EH 2 sEFE A ILAE B The notes on pages 41 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
BwEz —HB 0 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—O— 4+ H=+4—H Asat31 December 2012

£
Restated
—O0—= —O0—
. w2201
R W T T
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
& o Assets
JREA 7 B 4 K R ,‘%é% Cash and short-term funds 16 28,260,619 19,593,109
ﬁ%fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁl&ﬁ?f\ Placements with and loans and advances to banks 17 24,581,533 27,988,459
FIEEE g2 &5 Trading securities 18 3,588,898 4,623,772
fiT A= 4 i T HL Derivative financial instruments 19 101,784 275,371
UIA-PEEGSABRERZ Financial assets designated at fair value
GRVERE through profit or loss 20 612,602 847,877
Al B Available-for-sale securities 21 13,086,399 16,539,151
¢ 2 2111562 Held-to-maturity securities 22 3,014,389 2,699,525
B A R IR Advances and other accounts 23 102,012,256 87,746,053
S ] 2 ] B B HE 4 Interests in jointly controlled entities 26 205,192 195,638
Eﬁ‘%%/&ﬁj%ﬁ Interest in an associate 27 5,218 4,901
ERS<C7E 3 Investment properties 28 2,296,600 2,167,240
FHE T ke 55 Interests in leasehold land 29 233,164 237,708
HoAth 2 K 5 A Other properties and equipment 30 865,043 821,353
A B s At IH Tax recoverable 9,452 7,786
I AL T Deferred tax assets 35 68,073 103,236
MEE Total assets 178,941,222 163,851,179
£ Liabilities
HEZ:Z: Deposits and balances from banks 12,357,949 12,873,133
THRIET Z AR Trading liabilities 31 39,918 437,905
A 4 il T HL Derivative financial instruments 19 89,308 323,234
PLAFEEE AR IR Z Financial liabilities designated at
2l B K fair value through profit or loss 32 570,036 994,385
EFJ FER Deposits from customers 33 132,094,341 115,139,814
%5’@27?%’\5& Certificates of deposit issued 6,951,577 11,621,577
AT 2 RAEEIH Subordinated debt issued 34 4,536,020 3,000,000
H HABLIE Current taxation 171,633 140,218
7% SE B T B (8 Deferred tax liabilities 35 20,024 26,361
HoAth BETE K T8 12 Other accounts and accruals 36 4,896,842 4,350,183
é@ﬁf@% Total liabilities 161,727,648 148,906,810
BE 4 Equity
A Share capital 37 1,160,951 1,160,951
it Reserves 38 15,980,323 13,783,418
E‘?ﬁ%ﬁ’;‘zliﬁﬂﬁﬁ Total equity attributable to shareholders of
i At the Bank 17,141,274 14,944,369
FE 132 Tl ) 1 SRORE 2 Non-controlling interests 72,300 -
T&kﬁz@%ﬁ Total equity 17,213,574 14,944,369
HE £ I B AR AR Total equity and liabilities 178,941,222 163,851,179
MONR_O—=4F=H T JUHH#EET Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19
I B BEHESE A o March 2013.
JiyoE s HHEE MA Weihua Chairman
E W LI Hao Director
& H o FAT AR ZHU Qi Director and Chief Executive Officer
HEE R XU Zhihong Director and General Manager

FA A1 E £ 55188 H 2 sE R /5y b 25 A

Bk — AR o

The notes on pages 41 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
—O— 4+ H=+4+—H Asat31 December 2012

£l
Restated
—~0—= —O0O—
2012 2011
FERE W T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
& Assets
EAAR 4 K S 4 Cash and short-term funds 16 27,647,839 19,561,570
[F] 2 72 B A7 T R B Placements with and loans and advances to banks 17 24,285,366 27,600,133
FEEE g2 &S5 Trading securities 18 3,425,646 4,622,884
A4 4 T E. Derivative financial instruments 19 101,784 275,371
PAAEE RS AR iR Financial assets designated at fair value
S RlE E through profit or loss 20 610,992 846,277
Al it 2 Available-for-sale securities 21 12,902,444 16,290,829
Fr & BRI Held-to-maturity securities 22 2,674,549 2,687,487
R HA R TH Advances and other accounts 23 101,212,947 87,061,810
RfF Jeg 2 A 4 Interests in subsidiaries 25 695,105 307,191
S [m] 2 ) B B RE A Interests in jointly controlled entities 26 39,337 62,600
ERS<C7/E 3 Investment properties 28 2,406,257 2,264,537
L+ b A 3 Interests in leasehold land 29 185,613 190,006
Ho At ) 3 Ko i A Other properties and equipment 30 772,508 726,888
A [m] Ui A JE Tax recoverable 9,418 6,974
% S B VE S I Deferred tax assets 35 24,727 45,175
MK Total assets 176,994,532 162,549,732
£ Liabilities
EE ¥:a/¢ Deposits and balances from banks 12,357,949 12,873,133
T RET 2 BfE Trading liabilities 31 - 437,905
fiitE &/ T H Derivative financial instruments 19 89,308 323,234
PLAFEERS AR iR Financial liabilities designated at
ot =K fair value through profit or loss 32 570,036 994,385
LR Deposits from customers 33 133,360,541 116,569,381
AT Z A7 Certificates of deposit issued 6,951,577 11,621,577
BT AEEE Subordinated debt issued 34 4,536,020 3,000,000
A TE Current taxation 157,536 130,487
AR SERLTE B 18 Deferred tax liabilities 35 18,070 24,705
HoAth BETE A 7 42 Other accounts and accruals 36 2,679,079 2,424,252
=R Total liabilities 160,720,116 148,399,059
T Equity
AR Share capital 37 1,160,951 1,160,951
G Reserves 38 15,113,465 12,989,722
HE 35 4R Total equity 16,274,416 14,150,673
WE 4 I B EAA%R Total equity and liabilities 176,994,532 162,549,732

MER O =4=HTLHEh#EHS

A K A7 R A o March 2013.
Jis)E i HHER MA Weihua
Z= B wa LI Hao
KRB AR T IR ZHU Qi
HEE HEFMAKH XU Zhihong

N B4 EH B 188 EH 2 5T 8 &y b &5 i

Bk —AB M o

Chairman
Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19

Director and Chief Executive Officer
Director and General Manager

The notes on pages 41 to 188 form part of these financial statements.



Annual Report 2012 Wing Lung Bank Limited 3 9
KBESATHIRA R —O— 4R

RO B R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEZO—ZMH 1+ H =+—HIEZHJ For the year ended 31 December 2012

i
B i & b
Bank  HERH R
Bk EARf  premises Investment AR EERE RERE  REEN Non-
Share Capital revaluation revaluation ~Contingency  Statutory ~ General  Retained /it controlling At
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve  earnings  Sub-total interest Total

(LS PTAN L S OTRNE -1 ST L ST L OTNNE - ST S OTR L S OTAN | & SR L O AT
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS'000

RZ0——H#—A—H>  AtlJanuary 2011,

WAEFFR as previously reported 1,160,951 57,500 41303 283,437 - 15 1,003,730 10,202,950 12,749,886 - 12,749,886
THEREE Effect of changes in

Va7 accounting policies - - 8,162 - - - - 31097 439259 - 439259
RZ0—% At 1 January 2011,

—A—H %l as restated 1,160,951 57,500 49,465 283,437 - 15 1,003,730 10,634,047 13,189,145 - 13,189,145

ZO——FERSHENYE  Change in equity for 2011:

AR Net profit for the year - - - - - - - 186719 1867119 - 1867119
Other comprehensive
AR M2 B income for the year = = 3 (1127) = = = - (11.8%) - (111,8%)

Total comprehensive income
AR TG A% for the year = = 3 (112,073) - = ~ 1867019 1755204 - 1755004

Transfer to contingency

HAGAR reserve - - - - 78 - - (180) - - -
RZ0——4
R I At 31 December 2011 1,160,951 57,500 49,843 171,164 781 15 1,003,730 12,500,384 14,944,369 - 14944369

RZ0—ZH—A—H>  AtlJanuary 2012,

GRS as previously reported 1,160,951 57,500 41,619 171,164 782 15 1,003,730 12,039477 14,495,238 - 14495238
artBoRE T Effect of changes in
Va7 accounting policies - - 8,224 - . . - 440,007 449,131 - 9131
RZ0—Z4 At 1 January 2012,
—A—H > &l as restated 1,160,951 57,500 49,843 171,164 782 15 1,003,730 12,500,384 14,944,369 - 14944369
ZO—ZAHERAHEMLE  Change in equity for 2012:
REE A Net profit for the year - - - - - - - 130947 2130947 1540 2,133,487
Other comprehensive
AR B2 mE income for the year - - - 65938 - - - - 65938 - 65958
Total comprehensive income
AEER NG AR for the year - - - 65,958 - - - 130947 2,196,905 2,540 2,199,445
Transfer from contingency
i REE Teserve - - - - (239) - - 239 - - -
Set up of non-wholly owned
RIF2ET A subsidiarics - - - - - - - - - 660 69,760
RZ0—2F
+-H=+-H At 31 December 2012 1,160,951 57,500 49,843 JRIAVY) 543 15 1,003,730 14,631,570 17,141,274 7,300 17,213,574

HNFAIEHEEI88H Z ik B A L% B The notes on pages 41 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
Brp®RZ — A o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEO— 4T H=1—HILZ4 S For the year ended 31 December 2012

—0—= —O0—
2012 2011
FERE BT BT
Note HK$°000 HK$°000

BREGBHZBHE

(R, WAHE Cash (used in)/generated from operations 43(a)  (7,674,135) 2,763,252
TAT U R AR B Hong Kong profits tax paid (265,753) (312,640)
A SN BEIE Overseas tax paid (111,019) (50,269)
BEHRIHZHE Net cash (used in)/generated from
777777 Gt ), WA operating activities (8,050,907) 2,400,343
& T B Investing activities
g A Rt B 2 B R K Purchase of available-for-sale securities and

Fi 2 2| B 3 75 held-to-maturity securities (12,749,965) (11,634,705)

I [ 422 il B 2 B K CéfL Loans repaid from jointly controlled entities 23,263 5,953
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% NI E o Proceeds from disposal of an associate - 637
qﬁﬂlﬁ[ﬁjﬁtﬁ?ﬂéﬁﬁ%& Dividends received from jointly controlled

i N F 2 IS entities and an associate 10,385 3,980
H A e S [m] m] 3t i Proceeds from sale and redemption of

w5 5 TR B R g available-for-sale securities and

A% 2 K IE held-to-maturity securities 15,964,285 13,597,777

Payment for additions of other properties and

g oA ) 3 KA equipment (115,963) (49,934)
bﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%%& B Proceeds from disposal of other properties and

g 2 3 equipment 1,842 58
BEWEH B EWAFH  Net cash generated from investing activities 3,133,847 1,923,766
Al i Bl Financing activities
BT B IEIEE Subordinated debt issued 1,535,937 =
T R T I 4 1 e R

W ) B 4 Cash received from non-controlling interests 69,760 =
ﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬁj}Zlﬁ%ﬁ]\@ﬁNet cash generated from financing activities 1,605,697 =
BeERkFERBESHAZ Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

& (WA), B cash equivalents (3,311,363) 4,324,109
B—H— BB & RER

H&EHH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 31,450,968 26,918,965
I TR SR 2 )y . 2 Effects of foreign exchange rate changes 72,654 207,894
RTH_H=1+—H8&R

ZFB4E&HEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 43(b) 28,212,259 31,450,968
BETRHBESFREMHR © Cash flows from operating activities include:
FEMA Interest received 5,023,428 3,679,424
FLE S H Interest paid 2,223,383 1,476,190
e B A Dividends received 29,580 26,390

R SE41EH EE188EH 2 sEFE A ILAE BF The notes on pages 41 to 188 form part of these financial statements.
Bk 2 —#B 1y o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies
1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”, a collective
term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading (including derivative financial instruments), financial assets and
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note
3.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs, which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
The Group adopted the following revised HKFRSs which are relevant to
its operations:

— Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

—  Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2012.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 enhance the disclosure requirements for
transferred financial assets where an entity has a continuing involvement
in the derecognised financial assets. As the Group does not have
continuing involvement in the derecognised financial assets, the
amendments will not have any financial impact on the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 12 relate to the deferred tax on investment
properties carried at fair value. As a result of this change in policy,
the Group now measures any deferred tax liability in respect of its
investment properties with reference to the tax liability that would
arise if the properties were disposed of at their carrying amounts at the
reporting date. In the prior year, where these properties were held under
leasehold interests, deferred tax was recognised on valuation gain and
was generally measured using the tax rate that would apply as a result of
recovery of the asset’s value through use.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

ORI BR A2 BB e The change in policy has been applied retrospectively with consequential
T‘E&Zﬁg(D**fﬁﬂ“#ﬁ =+—HIF% adjustments to comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2011. As
FE ) Lo B 7 C VAR E S 2 o B AAS4E  the Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong, this has resulted in a
H Y M E W > B AIMEA reduction in the amount of deferred tax provided on valuation gain as

YR AE B IH SR A T

follows:

AR

(Bt )

BRRZBE

Effect of

WAL adoption
As previously  of amendments H%|
reported to HKAS 12 As restated
EWT T BT BT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEZO—FF+ZA=+—HlL Consolidated income statement for
Zﬁfhﬁ’l ElER the year ended 31 December 2011:
AT AR S Income tax expense 400,084 (9,810) 390,274
$$Eﬁﬂ Profit for the year 1,857,309 9,810 1,867,119
Consolidated statement of
BWEZO——4F+H=1T—HI: comprehensive income for
ZEENGR2HINEGR the year ended 31 December 2011:
AR A Profit for the year 1,857,309 9,810 1,867,119
ot 4 T i 2 AR AE BT Effect of deferred taxation on
Va7 other comprehensive income items 7,470 62 7,532
AR A T Wi s A Total comprehensive income for the year 1,745,352 9,872 1,755,224
RZO——H—HA—HM Consolidated statement of financial
A MBRILE position as at 1 January 2011:
AR IE & Deferred tax liabilities 468,346 (439,259) 29,087
TR & A Retained profits 10,202,950 431,097 10,634,047
A EE Rt Bank premises revaluation reserve 41,303 8,162 49,465
RZO——HF+=H=+—H0 Consolidated statement of financial
LEMBTMRNE position as at 31 December 2011:
ERERTEAE Deferred tax liabilities 475,492 (449,131) 26,361
{7 i A Retained profits 12,059,477 440,907 12,500,384
B A Bank premises revaluation reserve 41,619 8,224 49,843
RZO——HF—H—HK Statement of financial position
BRI as at 1 January 2011:
RAERIIE A Deferred tax liabilities 466,260 (438,991) 27,269
{ B i Retained profits 9,500,876 431,097 9,931,973
A EE R Bank premises revaluation reserve 39,946 7,894 47,840
RZO——#+ZA=+—HH Statement of financial position
BRI E as at 31 December 2011:
TEAERIE A (K Deferred tax liabilities 473,568 (448,863) 24,705
% B i A Retained profits 11,446,122 440,907 11,887,029
A E Bank premises revaluation reserve 40,262 7,956 48,218

IR %% ﬂk*j (HFwa=twE ) 41298 =  The change in policy arising from the amendments to HKAS 12 is
& n{-@(%%@jmu@ ARG H  the only change which has had a material impact on the current or

ﬁﬁﬁ P wH A A O B ) comparative year.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
also issued certain new/revised HKFRSs which are not yet effective
for accounting period beginning on 1 January 2012 and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs is expected
to be in the period of initial application. The following new/revised
HKFRSs are relevant to the Group’s operations:

—  HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

— HKAS 19 (2011), Employee Benefits, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 9 may have an impact on the Group’s classification and
measurement of financial instruments.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments which introduce
changes in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and
losses. Other changes include modifications to the timing of recognition
for termination benefits, the classification of short-term employee
benefits and disclosures of defined benefit plans.

1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Bank and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. They include entities
in which the Bank, directly or indirectly, controls the composition of the
Board of Directors, controls more than half of the voting power or holds
more than half of the issued share capital.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the financial statements from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.3 Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets
and any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the jointly controlled entities and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
jointly controlled entities’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the interests in jointly
controlled entities are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

1.4 Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence,
but not control or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy decision. This is
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights.

The Group’s interest in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method and are initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the associates’ net assets and any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the associate’s other comprehensive income
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the interest in an associate
is stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
associate are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.



1 EEEFFBOR (4)
1.5 WARHE

ST 8 WA s A T ) P (8
B o RS F A AT BE A 1] A 45 B K
W AR S (s ) T 5 R
W AFENC AR R A RERE AN

(a) FILEHGA R Hi

Fir A <z 2L 2 FLR A B 32 T3 R
PR BRI E 7 35 A Wi ot 38 A DA R 5%

VA =5
HEHERR -

FREAE J7 ik T2 — A DL st A
B A A B A S A
EEAINE Sl SN N VS i s ay)
o HIA RIS R AR R 2 B &
FHEREA - P AHH B 2t TR 2 Tt
R (BBE 2 A W) R
Z B il A B B R IR
AR o FERTH H BRI RIS ALY
HEm TR A &R (IER
HRZATHERE) st HReRE
A ER A 2 (5 HIRK - EtH
LI TR G AN 3 5 B Ty P R B85
2 &8 IEREM U R R ALE
AT SR BE Y - 225
A B Jr A A i A el T i

A < L A (L TR B s 1R B
RIS B AR A T el s 4 B
Fv BRI AR AT 5 R A B 4 L R 22 M) e
TRERE o A1 I [ i 75 LA S0 Bol (L 5 7 P B
B3 > RS A AL B A -

(b) IREEE RN 2 A

<5 A T A o A 5 2 B A <z
Ao TR B IR s 42 At Rp AT > (HLAn IR
5 2R I A 1R A P AR M — TR
5 14 B A R 2 e g T o o
RS RIS o TEELEHFW T - MR
5 2 7 A 8% AR SR A2 JEL B 1Y 8 w0
i RR BRARAE AL MO

Annual Report 2012 Wing Lung Bank Limited
IKEESRATA PR —O— 4E4EHR

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as follows:

(a) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments are
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or received between
parties to the contract, including cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans, that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent increase of such
net present value of impaired assets due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest income.

(b) Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided
by the Group and is recognised when the corresponding service
is provided, except where the fee is charged to cover the costs
of a continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is
interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as income
in the accounting period in which the cost or risk is incurred and is
accounted for as interest income.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.5 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments
is recognised as interest income over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of return on
the outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned. Commission paid
to dealers for acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase
contracts is included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised
to the income statement over the expected life of the lease as an
adjustment to interest income.

(d) Rental income for operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised as
other operating income in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of
the investment is quoted ex-dividend.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets under the following categories:
loans and receivables, trading securities, financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity securities, and
available-for-sale securities. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including cash and short term funds,
placement with and loans and advances to banks, trade bills and
loans and advances to customers, are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods
or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses.

(b) Trading securities

A financial asset is classified as trading if it is acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group does not have derivative financial instruments which meet
the criteria for hedge accounting as described in note 1.9.

Trading securities are stated at fair value, and transaction costs taken
directly to the income statement. Changes in fair value are recognised
as “Net gain/loss from trading securities” in the income statement as
they arise.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are not
those financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term but designated by management as such at inception

if they meet the following criteria:

— The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred
to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains and

losses on them on different bases;

— A group of financial assets is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about these assets is provided internally to

the management; or

— It relates to those financial instruments embedded with
derivatives which significantly modify the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract and the separation of
the embedded derivative(s) from the financial instrument is not

prohibited.

These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement. Changes
in fair value are recognised as “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss” in the

income statement in the period in which they arise.

(d) Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group were to sell other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and

reclassified as available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using the

effective interest method less impairment losses.

If, as a result of a change in intention or ability, it is no longer
appropriate to classify a financial asset as held-to-maturity, it shall be

reclassified as available-for-sale and remeasured at fair value.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 Financial assets (Continued)
(e) Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets that
are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. Available-for-sale securities are those intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or
equity prices.

Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income shall be reclassified from equity to the income statement.

Purchases and sales of trading securities, financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale
securities are recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument. Loans are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.

1.7 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about the following loss events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i1) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

— national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes that asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial
assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
the financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics.
Those characteristics relevant to the estimation of future cash flows
for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtor’s ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets
are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the
group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data on economic and credit environment to reflect the
effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which
the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of
conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example, change
in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status, or other
factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group
and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount
of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowances for loan
impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Financial assets carried at fair value

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
income statement is removed from the other comprehensive income
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

1.8 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, deposits, certificates of deposit issued and
other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

recognised initially at fair value.

(a) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
carried at fair value and any gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value are recognised in the income statement.

(b) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is designated as fair value through profit or loss
if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities so designated
include certain certificates of deposit issued and certain deposits
received from customers that are embedded with derivatives. A
financial liability is typically so designated if it meets the following
criteria:

— The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred
to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases;
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

— A group of financial liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about these liabilities is provided internally
to the management; or

— It relates to those financial instruments embedded with
derivatives which significantly modify the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract and the separation of
the embedded derivative(s) from the financial instrument is not
prohibited.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at fair value and any gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value are recognised as “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss” in the
income statement.

(c) Deposits, certificates of deposit issued, subordinated debt issued and
other liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debt issued,
other than those classified as trading liabilities or designated at fair
value through profit or loss, together with other financial liabilities
are carried at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net
of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

1.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. Certain derivatives embedded in other financial
instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Subsequent changes in fair
value are recognised depending on the purpose of the derivatives.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets
or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (2) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or
liability, or a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting
is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria
are met.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as
its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or
liabilities that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the
effective interest method is used is amortised to the income statement
over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the carrying amount
of a hedged equity security remains in retained earnings until the
disposal of the equity security.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the hedging reserve. The gain and loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income statement
in the periods in which the hedged item will affect profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain
or loss existing in equity in the hedging reserve at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

The Group currently does not use hedge accounting.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments held for trading and those that do not
qualify for hedge accounting will be accounted for with changes in fair
value reported through the income statement.

Derivative transactions are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.10 Valuation of securities and derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market
prices at the valuation date without any deduction for estimated future
selling costs. Financial assets are priced at current bid prices while
financial liabilities are priced at current ask prices. For unlisted securities
and where the market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group
estimates fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

1.11 Investment properties

Land and/or buildings which are owned and/or held under a leasehold
interest for long-term rental yields and/or for capital appreciation, and
that is not occupied by the companies in the Group, is classified as
investment property. When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in the
income statement.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.11 Investment properties (Continued)

When a property is transferred to investment property following a
change in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between
the carrying amount of the property immediately prior to the transfer
and its fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the bank premises revaluation
reserve in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”.
However, a revaluation increase is recognised as income only to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense. Decreases are first set off against increases on
previous valuations of the same asset and thereafter are debited to the
income statement. Upon disposal of the property, the relevant portion of
the bank premises revaluation reserve is released and transferred from
the bank premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

When an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost.

1.12 Other properties and equipment
(a) Premises

Premises represent those properties held for own use and are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Where
the land and building elements of the leasehold properties held for
own use can be allocated reliably at the inception of the lease, the
land element is accounted for as finance lease if the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
leasee. As such, any leasehold land premiums for acquiring the land
leases, or other lease payments, are charged to the income statement
on a straight line basis over the period of the lease or where there is
impairment, the impairment is charged to the income statement. Any
buildings which are situated on such land leases are presented as part
of premises. Where the land and building elements of the leasehold
properties cannot be allocated reliably at the inception of the lease,
the land and building elements are treated as a finance lease and
classified as premises.

Depreciation of premises is calculated on a straight line basis to write
off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired terms of the
leases.

— Building and improvements thereto are depreciated over the
remaining estimated useful life.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.12 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
(b) Furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a reducing balance
basis to write off the assets over their estimated useful lives, at
annual rates ranging from 20% to 30%.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

1.13 Impairment of other assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

1.14 Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as “Other accounts” under
“Advances and other accounts” and the relevant loans are derecognised.
The repossessed collateral assets are measured at the lower of the
carrying amount and net realisable value.

1.15 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.15 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items such as
equities classified as available-for-sale securities are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity.

1.16 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income statement except to
the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing deductible
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.16 Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current
tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group or the Bank has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
Bank intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.17 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance
contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. As
a general guideline, the Group defines significant insurance risk as the
possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured
event that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured
event did not occur.

(a) Recognition and measurement

The Group issues various classes of insurance contract including
accident and health, motor vehicle, ships, goods in transit, property
damage, employees’ compensation, general liability and pecuniary
loss. Risks under these insurance policies usually cover one year
duration.

For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned
premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion of
premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks
at the end of the reporting period is reported as the unearned premium
liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and
are net of duties levied on premiums.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the income
statement as incurred. They include direct and indirect claims
settlement costs and arise from events that have occurred up to the
end of the reporting period even if they have not yet been reported
to the Group. Liabilities for unpaid claims are separately analysed by
class of business. They are estimated using the input of assessments
for individual cases reported to the Group and statistical techniques
for the claims incurred but not reported.

(b) Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities net of
related deferred acquisition costs assets. In performing these tests,
current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims
handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income
from the assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to the income statement and by subsequently
establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy
tests (the unexpired risk provision).
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.17 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(c) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which the
Group is compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by
the Group and that meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Insurance
contracts entered into by the Group under which the contract holder
is another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance
contracts.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets
consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and
benefits as arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.
Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance
contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for
reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when due.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on an
annual basis. If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance asset
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance
asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss
in the income statement.

1.18 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligation as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.19 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received) is
initially recognised as deferred income in the financial statements on
the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the amount determined in accordance with note 1.18 and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised. Any
changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are recognised in
the income statement.

1.20 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term leave entitlements and long-term
staff retirement benefits as follows:

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
recognised when the absences occur.

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group operates five staff retirement schemes. The assets of
these schemes are all held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to schemes with defined contribution
arrangements and the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) schemes
are expensed as incurred.

Annual contributions to the retirement benefit schemes with defined
benefit arrangements are determined based on periodic valuations
of the assets and liabilities of such schemes by qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the cost
of providing retirement benefits is charged to the income statement
so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of employees
in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries. The defined
benefit obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of government securities
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
liabilities.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Retirement benefits (Continued)

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions in excess of the 10% of the greater
of these schemes’ assets and the defined benefit obligations are
recognised in the income statement over the average expected future
working lifetime of the members of the schemes.

1.21 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals applicable to such operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group or the Bank is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out mainly include properties and equipment and are depreciated
in accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies except where the
asset is classified as investment property. Rental income (net of any
incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight line basis over the
lease term. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

1.22 Hire purchase contracts and finance leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing
the net investment in the lease is included in the statement of financial
position as “Advances and other accounts”. The net investment
represents the total rentals receivable under hire purchase contracts and
finance leases less unearned finance income. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1.7. Finance income implicit in the rental receivable is credited to the
income statement over the lease period or hire period so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.23 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in
the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.
Information provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
to make decisions about allocating resources and assessing performance
of operating segments is measured in accordance with HKFRSs.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

1.24 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity within three months from the
date of acquisition including cash, balances with banks, treasury bills
and certificates of deposit.

1.25 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a related party is a person
or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ii1) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.25 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

O

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the

entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group recognises that
taking risk is core to its financial business and the operational risks
are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group has established policies and procedures for the identification,
measurement, control and monitoring of the inherent risk of the
operations. The most important risks are credit risk, market risk,
liquidity risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks. The adequacy and effectiveness
of risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed by
the Management Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Management
Committee”). The Internal Audit Department also performs regular audits
to ensure compliance with policies and procedures.

2.1 Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Group by failing to
discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principally from loans
and advances, debt securities, derivative financial instruments, treasury
bills, and other on-balance sheet exposures to counterparties in the
Group’s asset portfolio. There is also credit risk in off-balance sheet
financial arrangements such as loan commitments. Significant changes
in the economy, or in the health of a particular industry segment that
represents a concentration in the Group’s portfolio, could result in losses
that are different from those provided for at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group has established credit policies that govern credit extension
criteria, credit approval, review and monitoring processes, the internal
credit rating system and impairment assessment processes. The
Group’s credit risk management and control are centralised in a credit
management department which reports to the Management Committee
regularly.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(a) Credit risk measurement

(i) Loans and advances

In assessing credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks
and other counterparties, effective systems are adopted for measurement
and monitoring of the credit risk as part of the credit assessment process.
The Group’s credit grading system, which in general, takes into account
the underlying credit-worthiness of the counterparties, including the
financial strengths of the guarantors (as the case may be), collateral
pledged and the risk of specific transactions, allows differentiation and
management of credit risk for asset portfolios of respective business
units.

(i1) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities, external ratings from recognised external credit
assessment institutions are used for assessing and managing credit
risk exposures. The investments in these securities allow the Group to
achieve an appropriate level of returns commensurate with the risks and
to maintain a readily available source of funding at the same time.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever
they are identified, in particular, to individual counterparties and groups,
and to industries and countries.

To avoid concentration risk, credit exposures to individual customers,
counterparties and industry sectors are carefully managed and
monitored by the use of limits. All credit risk limits are approved by the
Management Committee. The Management Committee is also responsible
for the review and approval of the largest credit exposures and portfolio
management of risk concentrations. Approval authorities are delegated
to the Group’s Credit Committee and other lending officers. Actual
credit exposures, including on- and off-balance sheet exposures, limits
and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by the Credit
Management Department by keeping a central liability record for each
group of related counterparties and are subject to checks by the internal
audit function.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted
by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily
delivery risk limits in relation to trading items such as forward foreign
exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

Some specific control and risk mitigation measures are outlined below:

(i) Collateral

The Group seeks to obtain collateral to mitigate credit risk to an
acceptable level. All credit decisions, whether or not secured by
collateral, are based on counterparties’ repayment capacity. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal types of collateral in
credit risk mitigation include:

—  Mortgages over residential properties and other properties;

—  Charges over business assets such as cash deposits, premises,
machineries, inventory and accounts receivable; and

— Charges over financial instruments such as equities and debt
securities.

The Group has established policies to govern the determination of
eligibility of assets taken as collateral for credit risk mitigation. In order
for an asset to be considered as effective risk mitigation, the market
value of the asset should be readily determinable or can be reasonably
established. The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposal of the asset. In addition, the Group is able
to secure control over the asset if necessary. The collateral is revalued
periodically ranging from daily to annually, depending on the type of
collateral. As for those past due exposures, the main types of collateral
held are cash deposits and properties.

(ii) Master netting agreements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into
master netting arrangements with counterparties with which it undertakes
a significant volume of transactions. Master netting arrangements do not
generally result in an offset of the assets and liabilities in the statement
of financial position, as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis.
However, the credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced
by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of default
occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a
net basis.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(iii) Derivatives

The principal derivatives used by the Group are interest and foreign
exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative positions have been entered
into to meet customer demand and to hedge these and other trading
positions. The Management Committee places trading limits on the level
of exposure that can be taken in relation to both overnight and intra-day
market positions. With the exception of specific hedging arrangements,
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures associated with these
derivatives are normally offset by entering into counterbalancing
positions, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions. Given the purpose for entering
into such derivative transaction, collateral or other security is not usually
obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except where the
Group requires margin deposits from counterparties.

(iv) Credit related commitments

The Group has issued credit related commitments including guarantees
and letters of credit. The primary purpose of these instruments is
to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. These
instruments represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third
parties. These instruments carry similar level of the same credit risk as
loans.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorised
facility limits in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With
respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is
potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the
total unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit are
contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The
Group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(c) Impairment allowance policies

The Group undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring of its
credit portfolios, and requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above preset thresholds at least annually or more regularly when
individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances are recognised
for losses that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period
based on objective evidence of impairment as described in note 1.7. The
Group’s internal credit rating system assists management to determine
whether objective evidence of impairment exists.

Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined
by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant
accounts. The assessment normally encompasses commitment of
collateral held and the anticipated cash flows for that individual account
adjusted at the relevant discount rates.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below preset
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet been
individually identified, using available data on historical loss experience,
and economic conditions, statistical analysis and supplemented by
experienced judgment.
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2 SmbE b P (%)
2.1 f5 & mBE (4)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(d) 5 [EHLSP dis SR At 1 B g P AT

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

BRI 5 B enhancements
A £ V. NF)
The Group The Bank
—~O0—= —Oo0— —~0—= —~O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011
EW T T T BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
I E 4 Short term funds 27,518,582 18,928,070 26,905,802 18,896,531
[A] 2£ 7€ Wi A7 M Placements with and loans
Bk and advances to banks 24,581,533 27,988,459 24,285,366 27,600,133
FREEE A% 2 % Trading securities 3,425,646 4,622,884 3,425,646 4,622,884
A4 T E Derivative financial instruments 101,784 275,371 101,784 275,371
LA PEE A Financial assets designated
HiRZ at fair value through
A RE E profit or loss 612,602 847,877 610,992 846,277
ik 2 B Available-for-sale securities 12,348,699 15,755,348 12,348,699 15,755,348
Fr &2 2 G I5 Held-to-maturity securities 3,014,389 2,699,525 2,674,549 2,687,487
B S H A BR TE Advances and other accounts 102,012,256 87,746,053 101,212,947 87,061,810
S [R] 2 o B B Loan to jointly controlled
B entities 14,337 37,600 14,337 37,600
5 BRI Credit commitments 28,345,626 29,464,604 28,412,271 29,531,249
201,975,454 188,365,791 199,992,393 187,314,690
(e) E9Sl-y ¢ L (e) Gross loans and advances to customers
() BEFERAFEBEE R (i) Gross loans and advances to customers by credit quality
A 42 1T
The Group The Bank
—~O0—= —Oo0—— —~0—= —O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011
EWT T T T BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
I 70 ) Ko HE e (E Neither past due nor impaired 86,789,700 78,212,711 86,858,609 78,218,668
VR EE S Past due but not impaired 1,256,267 816,528 1,255,618 811,471
EI(E Impaired 87,558 299,877 56,664 268,742
88,133,525 79,329,116 88,170,891 79,298,881
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2 4l B A B (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 f5 BEbE (4) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) /7 Bk kg (%) (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(i) A K M E 2 % S AR (i1) Gross loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor
impaired
A H The Group
Fofie
LE i Others
Real estate M3 & A aat
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

i T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

N _O0O—_4 At 31 December 2012
+ZA=+—H
A — Grade 1 18,924,954 65,329,033 2,184,037 86,438,024
il — Grade 2 27,518 195,664 5,494 228,676
Al = Grade 3 26,728 79,696 16,576 123,000
18,979,200 65,604,393 2,206,107 86,789,700
Y NF) The Bank
HAth
LB i Others
Real estate 13 (EPN Hak
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
W T W T 0 W T W T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’°000 HKS$°000
N_O— 4 At 31 December 2012
+oAStR
Wl — Grade 1 18,944,189 65,391,461 2,171,283 86,506,933
0 - Grade 2 27,518 195,664 5,494 228,676
SR = Grade 3 26,728 79,696 16,576 123,000

18,998,435 65,666,821 2,193,353 86,858,609
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2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

impaired (Continued)

(i1) Gross loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor

A H The Group
HoAth
E S Qfei
Real estate i1og i G
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
T T T T T BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R_O——4 At 31 December 2011
+=H=+—H
A — Grade 1 17,822,196 57,804,563 1,785,354 77,412,113
Al — Grade 2 87,108 683,575 4,082 774,765
A= Grade 3 20,995 4,838 - 25,833
17,930,299 58,492,976 1,789,436 78,212,711
17 The Bank
HoAth
ESiH Yoo
Real estate i1og (PN Gt
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
T T T T W T T T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BO——4F At 31 December 2011
+=A=+—H
Al — Grade 1 17,842,054 57,820,245 1,755,771 77,418,070
R — Grade 2 87,108 683,575 4,082 774,765
A= Grade 3 20,995 4,838 - 25,833
17,950,157 58,508,658 1,759,853 78,218,668
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(i1) Gross loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor
impaired (Continued)

The following definitions have been adopted for the purpose of the above
analysis:

Grade 1 “satisfactory” represents loans for which borrowers are currently
meeting commitments and for which full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Grade 2 “special monitoring” represents loans with which borrowers are
experiencing difficulties and which may threaten the Group’s position.

Grade 3 “substandard” represents loans in which borrowers are
displaying a definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment; or
collection in full is improbable without realisation of available collateral.

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment
loss where the loans are fully collateralised. While such loans are of
“substandard” grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and have
been included in the above table.
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2 4l B A B (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 f5 BB (4) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) /7 Bk kg () (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(iii) 7 M (E 2 & P B AR (iii) Gross loans and advances to customers which were past due but not
impaired
A H The Group
HAty
LE i Others
Real estate 138 il A ek
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
BT BT BT BT
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RZO—Z4 At 31 December 2012
+=g=4—H
=fEA BT Three months or less 541,815 633,256 64,950 1,240,021
=X s Six months or less but
EVay i DE| over three months 10,544 3,475 - 14,019
NE AL Over six months 125 2,102 - 2,227
552,484 638,833 64,950 1,256,267
AT The Bank
Hofth
LB i Others
Real estate 135 il A ek
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
N_O— 4 At 31 December 2012
+=ZH=+—H
=EA LT Three months or less 541,815 632,812 64,745 1,239,372
AL L Six months or less but
2N A over three months 10,544 3,475 - 14,019
NEH LB Over six months 125 2,102 - 2,227
552,484 638,389 64,745 1,255,618
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2 SmbE b P (%)

2.1 f5 & mBE (4)

(e) &/ B HAH ()

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(iii) A H S 2 & 5 Bk A ()

impaired (Continued)

(iii) Gross loans and advances to customers which were past due but not

A H The Group
HAth
) A Others
Real estate 12 (PN &5l
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
i BBTH BT e AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RO ——4 At 31 December 2011
+—-H=+—H
—{E A AT Three months or less 564,183 190,172 47,749 802,104
—fEAL L Six months or less but
2 MEH over three months 3,861 1,200 = 5,061
NE AL Over six months 1,215 8,148 = 9,363
569,259 199,520 47,749 816,528
N} The Bank
HoAth
ESISi Others
Real estate 12 EPN &5
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
T T s o T ok o BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
MN_O——4 At 31 December 2011
+=A=+—n
EX (PR 1Y Three months or less 564,183 186,485 46,379 797,047
=AU E Six months or less but
ZEMEH over three months 3,861 1,200 = 5,061
7MEH A B Over six months 1,215 8,148 - 9,363
569,259 195,833 46,379 811,471




Annual Report 2012 Wing Lung Bank Limited 7 7
TKRESATAH R A ] —O— A F4FH

2 4l B A B (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 f B)EBR (41) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) B AMEE (4 (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(iv) AR B a2 & F SR A5 (iv) Gross loans and advances to customers individually impaired

CHEZEF SR FERZEMA I The gross amount of impaired loans, which represents those individual
RERARRRE > HEEAEEKFIEIAFAE  advances where there is objective evidence of impairment resulting
BUE 2 ZBlEE > MK FHE AR  from loss events occurring after the initial recognition of the advances
) FE T AR AR B 48 I i 45 Y 2 o LM HT and where these loss events have an impact on the estimated future cash

mr flows of the advances, is analysed as follows:
L | The Group
FoAie
LE B0 Others
Real estate i(oE &l A Hat
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

T T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

—O— 4 2012 48,132 36,516 2,910 87,558
—O==" 2011 56,028 239,734 4,115 299,877
AT The Bank
HAty
LB i Others
Real estate 135 (PN ek
mortgage Corporate Individual Total

BT BT T W T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000

—O— A4 2012 48,132 5,622 2,910 56,664

ZO——4 2011 56,028 209,516 3,198 268,742
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2 4l B A B (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 f5 BEbE (4) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) /7 B A (4 (e) Gross loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(iv) TR A2 % F B A () (iv) Gross loans and advances to customers individually impaired
(Continued)
A £ V. NF)
The Group The Bank
—~O0—= —~O0— —~O0—= —O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011

BT i T T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

[SRRIERE R Impaired loans 87,558 299,877 56,664 268,742

hMEF R E Percentage of total advances

[ to customers 0.10% 0.38% 0.06% 0.34%
$f bl B R Individual impairment

Z AR RSB A allowances made in respect

(FEF#E23(a)) of such advances (note 23(a)) 67,693 132,711 36,947 101,763

Total value of collateral taken

A 20 4 Bl into account in respect of
WAEMERE % R the assessment of individual
ZAKHR 2 AR impairment allowances 18,399 164,700 18,399 164,700

A A A MR O % A BB Z S The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into

R - account the value of collateral in respect of such advances.
(v) HREHK (v) Renegotiated loans
A5 B R AT
The Group and the Bank
—O0—= — 00—
2012 2011

i wHT o
HK$’000 HK$°000

B 4n oA B R TR AT B Renegotiated loans that would otherwise
amﬁﬂiaﬂ{EZE B be past due or impaired 123,151 28,910
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(f) Gross balance with banks by credit quality

L V. NF)
The Group The Bank

—~O0—= —~O0— —~O0—= —O0—

2012 2011 2012 2011

i1 T i i AT BT BT

HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
[F] 3 B R AR Gross balance with banks
— RIEHA M S (H — Neither past due nor

(& HI—) impaired (Grade 1) 52,100,115 46,916,529 51,191,168 46,496,664

B —F [ ] > ARG REAR S
%o Ag XA B REEEEE -

RO~ +A=1t—H  F¥EE
AR Pl s W s B E R (0
AR ) o

() W lel &

J2 AT JBE A G [ A T 9 R 2 A A
B

Grade 1 “satisfactory” represents loans for which borrowers are currently
meeting commitments and for which full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

At 31 December 2012, there were no overdue or impaired balances with
banks (2011: Nil).
(g) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security, as follows:

AR [ e AR AT
The Group and The Bank
=0== —O==
2012 2011
EH T BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
fEEY %k Residential properties - 11,299
ENE7E S Commercial and industrial properties 5,286 7,048
HAthy Others 74 _
5,360 18,347

RZo—Z4H+A=+—H  A&EH
B A AT 2 0 | & E A ¥ 152,102,0007T
(C.O——4F : #%8,225,0007T) °

W 15 49y 3 € 7E AT AT RO I O T B b 6
FIr SRR VI P LA SR (5555 4 K

At 31 December 2012, the repossessed assets of the Group and the Bank
amounted to HK$2,102,000 (2011: HK$8,225,000).

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds
used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
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2 SmbE b P (%)
2.1 f5 & mBE (4)

() R o B o 2 B R

2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(h) Debt securities

(i) Debt securities and treasury bills by credit quality

A N}
The Group The Bank
—0—= —~O0—— —0—= — 00—
2012 2011 2012 2011

BT i T T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

WS e 7 S e Debt securities and treasury bills

— R & — Neither past due nor
HE Yol (EL impaired 19,401,336 23,925,634 19,059,886 23,911,996

WoOo—"HF+H=+—H  A&REH
KAATEWRAE 2 7] B 2 S o A A
HH R %519,920,0000C (O ——4F : i
#19,959,00070) ° AL R AITTHA 2
B U6k (48 2 2 EU7s 8 5 7 41K 0 5 3
1F 2 BOsE -

MRoo——"4F+_HA=+—H > A&4£H
K AT B WA 2 15 2 ) W 55 o o AR
£t 1116,267,0007C (—.O —— 4 : #5
#116,499,00070) o A 4E EH K& A1T R AH
2 COE S v 25 00 M 5 > CLET R
2 W AE A 5 ¥ 116,267,0000C (O
——4F : #51116,499,0007C) °

The gross amount of impaired available-for-sale debt securities of the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2012 was HK$19,920,000 (2011:
HK$19,959,000). No collateral was held by the Group and the Bank in
respect of the impaired debt securities and full impairment loss has been
charged to the income statement.

The gross amount of impaired held-to-maturity debt securities of the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2012 was HK$116,267,000
(2011: HK$116,499,000). No collateral was held by the Group and
the Bank in respect of the impaired debt securities, and impairment
allowance of HK$116,267,000 (2011: HK$116,499,000) has been
provided.
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2 4l B A B (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 f5 & ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(h) GBS (#H) (h) Debt securities (Continued)

(i) A A B S (E 2 (&5 7% 5 I %+ (ii) Debt securities and treasury bills that are neither past due nor impaired

T FNFRAE TIMRRIMESS BEFE M 2 5T The tables below present an analysis of debt securities and treasury bills
BT A S 78 7 B 2 {58 by rating agency designation based on the external credit assessment

JE B institutions’ ratings that the Group has used in relation to credit risk
exposures:
A The Group
I JeE 7 B &R
Treasury Debt fit
bills securities Total

T i HEd i i
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

B O— 4R At 31 December 2012
+=H=+—H
AA- BAAA AA- to AAA 2,559,802 3,292,845 5,852,647
A- BA+ A- to A+ - 9,176,071 9,176,071
BBB- 2BBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 2,057,035 2,057,035
{K A BBB- Lower than BBB- - 339,022 339,022
ST AR Unrated - 1,976,561 1,976,561
2,559,802 16,841,534 19,401,336
HBIT AR - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— HSBUR K b R ERAT central banks 2,559,802 868,699 3,428,501
— N — public sector entities - 16,568 16,568
— $RAT B A 4 Rl A A — banks and other financial institutions — 12,948,502 12,948,502
— {3 — corporate entities - 3,007,765 3,007,765
2,559,802 16,841,534 19,401,336
Ho R R of which classified by:
— FHEEE &2 #E 5 — trading securities 2,559,802 865,844 3,425,646
— DIAPEMEREA — financial assets designated at fair
HiERZ &g E value through profit or loss - 612,602 612,602
— nfit i S — available-for-sale securities - 12,348,699 12,348,699
— R B A — held-to-maturity securities - 3,014,389 3,014,389

2,559,802 16,841,534 19,401,336
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2 4 i b B A B (4 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 f5 BEbE (4) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(h) GBS (#H) (h) Debt securities (Continued)
(i) A7 B S (B~ 575 76 75 L %+ (ii) Debt securities and treasury bills that are neither past due nor impaired
(#8) (Continued)
N} The Bank
I Jek 75 R 27
Treasury Debt it
bills securities Total
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W _O— 4 At 31 December 2012
+=H=+—n
AA- ZAAA AA-to AAA 2,559,802 3,292,845 5,852,647
A- BA+ A- to A+ - 9,104,015 9,104,015
BBB- £BBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 1,888,731 1,888,731
{X7*BBB- Lower than BBB- - 300,014 300,014
AR Unrated - 1,914,479 1,914,479
2,559,802 16,500,084 19,059,886
HBIT AR - of which issued by:
— RBURM — central governments and
Fh gL ER AT central banks 2,559,802 868,699 3,428,501
— NEERE — public sector entities - 16,568 16,568
— $RAT B A 4 Rl A A — banks and other financial institutions - 12,906,614 12,906,614
— % — corporate entities - 2,708,203 2,708,203
2,559,802 16,500,084 19,059,886
Ho R R of which classified by:
—FEEE BB — trading securities 2,559,802 865,844 3,425,646
— DIAFEMERA — financial assets designated at fair
Ha iR &&= value through profit or loss - 610,992 610,992
— At S5 — available-for-sale securities - 12,348,699 12,348,699
— R B A — held-to-maturity securities - 2,674,549 2,674,549

2,559,802 16,500,084 19,059,886
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2 4 i b B A B (4 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 f5 & ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(h) GBS (#H) (h) Debt securities (Continued)
(i) A7 B S (B~ 575 76 75 L %+ (ii) Debt securities and treasury bills that are neither past due nor impaired
(#8) (Continued)
A The Group
I Jek 55 (e
Treasury Debt &t
bills securities Total
BT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BN _O——4& At 31 December 2011
+=H=+—H
AA- EAAA AA-to AAA 3,257,483 9,057,154 12,314,637
A- BA+ A-to A+ — 8,794,560 8,794,560
BBB- #BBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 1,175,523 1,175,523
BT 4] Unrated — 1,640,914 1,640,914
3,257,483 20,668,151 23,925,634
HBIT AL - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— YRR N A R AT central banks 3,257,483 849,273 4,106,756
— NS — public sector entities - 16,077 16,077
— $RAT B A 4 Rl A A — banks and other financial institutions — 15,890,235 15,890,235
— {3 — corporate entities — 3,912,566 3,912,566
3,257,483 20,668,151 23,925,634
HAEE - of which classified by:
—FEEE BB — trading securities 3,257,483 1,365,401 4,622,884
— DIA-FEMEA — financial assets designated at fair
HiERZ &g E value through profit or loss - 847,877 847,877
— At S5 — available-for-sale securities - 15,755,348 15,755,348
— FEE B AR — held-to-maturity securities - 2,699,525 2,699,525

3,257,483 20,668,151 23,925,634




84 Annual Report 2012 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KBESRATHIRA R —.0 — “AFR4FR

IR LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 4l B A B (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.1 f5 & ABE (%) 2.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(h) EE S () (h) Debt securities (Continued)
(i) A7 B S (B~ 575 76 75 L %+ (ii) Debt securities and treasury bills that are neither past due nor impaired
(#8) (Continued)
N} The Bank
I Jek 55 (e
Treasury Debt &t
bills securities Total
BT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BN _O——4& At 31 December 2011
+=H=+—H
AA- EAAA AA-to AAA 3,257,483 9,057,154 12,314,637
A- BA+ A-to A+ — 8,794,560 8,794,560
BBB- #BBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 1,173,923 1,173,923
BT 4] Unrated — 1,628,876 1,628,876
3,257,483 20,654,513 23,911,996
HBIT AL - of which issued by:
— central governments and
— YRR N A R AT central banks 3,257,483 849,273 4,106,756
— NS — public sector entities - 16,077 16,077
— SRAT B H At 45 il B A — banks and other financial institutions — 15,888,635 15,888,635
— {3 — corporate entities — 3,900,528 3,900,528
3,257,483 20,654,513 23,911,996
HAEE - of which classified by:
—FEEE BB — trading securities 3,257,483 1,365,401 4,622,884
— DIA-FEMEA — financial assets designated at fair
HiERZ &g E value through profit or loss - 846,277 846,277
— At S5 — available-for-sale securities - 15,755,348 15,755,348
— FEE B AR — held-to-maturity securities - 2,687,487 2,687,487

3,257,483 20,654,513 23,911,996
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet

b items
A H The Group
AR e AR o BRI
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
i3 T b3 W i1
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BZO—4 At 31 December 2012
+=ZH=+—H
T s Hong Kong 162,027,757 147,209,783 22,494,182
e United States of America 2,053,349 1,758,611 537,936
R N\ RN E People’s Republic of China 31,537,336 29,571,155 2,443,316
Y Macau 8,035,831 7,923,679 2,870,192
PSS Cayman Islands 22,529 - -
43T B A HE A Inter-segment elimination (24,735,580) (24,735,580) -
178,941,222 161,727,648 28,345,626
A7 The Bank
A8 e N =R o BRI
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
i3 T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BZO——4 At 31 December 2012
+ZHA=+—H
i Hong Kong 160,098,824 146,192,777 22,560,827
ESE| United States of America 2,039,510 1,756,208 537,936
e N\ R E People’s Republic of China 31,532,925 29,582,539 2,443,316
! Macau 8,035,831 7,923,679 2,870,192
PSS Cayman Islands 22,529 - -
o e EE i Inter-segment elimination (24,735,087) (24,735,087) -

176,994,532

160,720,116

28,412,271
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2 SmbE b P (%)
2.1 f5 & mBE (4)

() & ~ AR EE A [ERIIHF 9

B ()

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
items (Continued)

A H The Group
vl Restated A P HEfE 5 B
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
oY o BTH T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RO ——4 At 31 December 2011
+oA=t N
i Hong Kong 150,075,916 136,792,643 20,938,705
EH United States of America 2,023,484 1,788,641 465,316
A e A RS 2L B People’s Republic of China 21,543,189 20,231,709 7,585,461
LY Macau 4,059,317 3,967,770 475,122
PSS Cayman Islands 23,226 - -
B MW S B e Inter-segment elimination (13,873,953) (13,873,953) —
163,851,179 148,906,810 29,464,604
Y. The Bank
Evl Restated HE HE R 5 B
Total Total Credit
assets liabilities commitments
T i o BPTH L o W
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RO ——4F At 31 December 2011
FoA=T N
s Hong Kong 148,792,422 136,275,525 21,005,350
%[ United States of America 2,009,525 1,786,210 465,316
SEENEREE People’s Republic of China 21,538,706 20,243,018 7,585,461
! Macau 4,059,317 3,967,770 475,122
PSS Cayman Islands 23,226 = =
530 EL A S Inter-segment elimination (13,873,464) (13,873,464) -

162,549,732

148,399,059

29,531,249




2 SmbE b P (%)
2.1 f5 & mBE (4)
(i) B - BERE A ERIEH 1

B ()

a0 S Lo = &6 17 1 L (L

2.1 Credit risk (Continued)

items (Continued)

portfolio are as follows:
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

(i) Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet

Geographical sector risk concentrations within the customer loan

A H The Group
—0== —0== —_O0O—— —O0——
2012 2012 2011 2011
Wi T T T
HKS$°000 % HK$’000 %
i Hong Kong 73,178,514 83.0 67,523,713 85.1
e United States of America 1,947,515 2.2 1,980,776 2.5
FREE N RN People’s Republic of China 10,217,186 11.6 8,039,192 10.1
M Macau 2,790,310 3.2 1,785,435 2.3
88,133,525 100.0 79,329,116 100.0
VN F) The Bank
—~O0—= —~O0—= —_O0O— —O0——
2012 2012 2011 2011
W T T T
HKS$°000 % HK$’000 %
T Y Hong Kong 73,196,645 83.0 67,473,620 85.1
5 B United States of America 1,966,750 2.2 2,000,634 2.5
SRR People’s Republic of China 10,217,186 11.6 8,039,192 10.1
| Macau 2,790,310 3.2 1,785,435 2.3
88,170,891 100.0 79,298,881 100.0
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2 < B A PR ()
2.2 i 5 A B

A AR [ BT R 4f 2 T35 R o T3 R T
S e BT 5 B M TR 2 A EE
Bl AR A B <5 I A A e B o i A
E2R BB E R - S R BRE E S
AR TR AR > SRR T — A S E
T 35 5 T % T 355 JE R AR AR A R R - B
28 I e S AR AR S D W 1) oA S T S B o R
W 2 TG E R A R EEE A
i S AE SRAT AR A 2 A1 5 A o M AT AR
TH-

(a) 55 g 2 /%

BT B I ) E A TH A 5 BRAE LR
B A 1 A A (] 9 B T T 2 T 3 A
B o JEURR ) LA & %) B 4% 28 B(E R HR
itk B R N K o w2 IRAE A
B R b B R AR > DAKE G B
% AR IRA - URUE PR Ik A
BRI 5 o S R B 8 A B P A
W5 JE\ b B 2 52 o e A - AL B
WA~ B F T A (E SRR 2 5 Y
FoAt S8 57 ¥R FYAEAT o T AS 4R B 2 RS A% T
PR 72 AT B A% Modg - DA PR fE
IR B E 2 B IRBUEAT S 5y - BT
7 R 2 JE 7 o A B 22 A L T A
WZ B e M E o B t R
HHMZAEEE -

A S [ 7 Bz 22 JRE O Wt DA i b
2 SR A A T 3 L i A 4 I B S IR
W B o ) Wt 2 A 2R vy el g
ZEEHEY -

2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices. The Group’s market risk primarily
arises from its positions in foreign exchange, securities and derivatives
in its trading and banking books.

(a) Market risk measurement

The Group’s market risk exposures in different activities are managed
by way of limits established by the Management Committee. Exposures
are measured and monitored on the basis of contractual or notional
amount and outstanding balances. Limits are set by portfolio, product
and risk type, using a combination of risk measurement techniques,
including position limits, sensitivity limits, as well as stop loss limits.
All market risk trading positions are monitored and managed by the
Treasury Department. Independent monitoring, checking, daily mark-to-
market valuation and trade confirmation are undertaken by departments
independent of the Treasury Department. Regular checking and reviews
are also conducted by the Group’s internal audit function to ensure
compliance with risk limits. All exceptions are reviewed and approved
by the appropriate level of management and the Management Committee.
Actual positions are monitored by the Risk Management Committee.

The Group also applies a wide range of stress testing to assess the
financial impact of more extreme events on the market risk exposure
of the Group. The results of the stress testing are reviewed by the Risk
Management Committee.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis

(i) Currency risk

The Group’s currency risk positions mainly arise from foreign exchange
dealing, commercial banking operations and structural foreign currency
exposures.

At 31 December 2012, if USD had weakened/strengthened within the
pegged range of 0.64% (2011: 0.64%) against HKD with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation
for the year would have been HK$8,604,000 (2011: HK$22,068,000)
and HK$2,755,000 (2011: HK$18,408,000) lower/higher respectively.
The lower impact on the Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation in
2012 compared with 2011 was attributable to the decrease of net USD
positions.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from the timing differences
in the repricing of interest bearing assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
positions.

Any changes in interest rates would affect the value of those financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value. The Group enters into interest
rate swaps to mitigate the interest rate risk associated with the fixed-
rate financial assets and financial liabilities. At 31 December 2012, if
interest rates at that date had been 100 basis points higher with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation
for the year would have been HK$451,000 (2011: HK$3,563,000 lower)
and HK$460,000 (2011: HK$3,541,000 lower) higher respectively,
mainly as a result of revaluation of trading securities, financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss and interest rate contracts.
The Group’s and the Bank’s other comprehensive income would
have been HK$32,086,000 (2011: HK$40,203,000) lower due to the
revaluation of those available-for-sale securities. At 31 December 2012,
if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis points lower with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the Bank’s profit after taxation
for the year would have been HK$900,000 (2011: HK$509,000 higher)
and HK$906,000 (2011: HK$493,000 higher) lower respectively, mainly
as a result of revaluation of trading securities, financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss and interest rate contracts. The
Group’s and the Bank’s other comprehensive income would have been
HK$24,486,000 (2011: HK$31,772,000) higher due to the revaluation of
those available-for-sale securities.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(iii) Equity risk

The Group’s equity risk position mainly arises from the holdings
of certain equity securities and option-linked financial assets with
underlying equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The majority of this
position is held for long term investment purposes.

At 31 December 2012, if the Hang Seng Index at that date had been
10% lower/higher with all other variables held constant and all the
equity instruments had moved according to their historical correlation
with the index, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year would
have been HK$11,929,000 (2011: HK$74,000) lower/higher, and the
Group’s and the Bank’s other comprehensive income would have been
HK$41,606,000 (2011: HK$44,156,000) and HK$21,870,000 (2011:
HK$19,066,000) lower/higher respectively. The higher equity sensitivity
for trading securities and financial assets designated as fair value through
profit or loss in 2012 compared with 2011 was mainly attributable to an
increase in holdings of trading portfolios. The lower equity sensitivity
on the Group’s available-for-sale securities in 2012 compared with 2011
was contributable to a reduction in the Group’s holdings of available-
for-sale portfolios. The higher equity sensitivity on the Bank’s available-
for-sale securities in 2012 compared with 2011 was contributable to an
addition in the Bank’s holdings of available-for-sale portfolios.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.2 WA BE (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(b) 755 /& g 1L /8 77 (A (b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(iv) T 5 Jm B A B H 434 15 0L (iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue

AT REHE A RN =0 — Z4FN » The average daily revenue in 2012 earned from market risk-related
e S BT 35 A\ B A B S ) BT BB 2 B B activities by the Bank and certain subsidiaries, including trading-
TR (IR E E A B 2 3 FE W related net interest income and other revenue was HK$1,029,000 (2011:
A B H A A) £ s %71,029,0000C (- HK$1,058,000). The standard deviation of this daily revenue was
O ——4F : #%1,058,00070) ° %% &  HKS$1,981,000 (2011: HK$2,064,000).

H B 2 AR HE 25 15 W 101,981,000 7T

(ZO——4F : #2,064,0007C) °
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
The Group’s exposures mainly comprise foreign exchange dealing
by the Treasury Department and currency exposures originated by its
commercial banking businesses.

The Management Committee sets limits on the level of exposure by
currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions. All
exposures are centrally managed by the Treasury Department and
independently monitored by a separate department on a daily basis.

Foreign currency exposures arising from customer transactions,
including currency options embedded in certain customer deposits, are
normally offset against other customer transactions or transactions with
the market. Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar
assets is hedged using currency swaps or forward exchange contracts to
mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in
the tables are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency. The off-balance sheet gap represents the net
notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to manage the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

A H The Group
T 7t T N Hf At
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
EWTE  W%Tr  WwBTxk  BWTE O #%Tx W%t
HKS$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS$°000
RZO—Z4 At 31 December 2012
+ZH=+—H
B Assets
EFRERENES Cash and short-term funds 8,450,408 8,017,205 3,900,512  6,118362 1,774,132 28,260,619
EE3et )3 Placements with and loans and
T &% advances to banks 538361 5826438 1,182,659 16,186,642 847433 24,581,533
FHEEERRZE R Trading securities 2,915,243 176,483 - 497,172 - 3,588,898
fEemM TR Derivative financial instruments 101,784 - - - - 101,784
DIATEERABER  Financial assets designated at
R fair value through profit or loss - 612,602 - - - 612,602
it 7 Available-for-sale securities 3,004,266 3,207,708 1,692,370 5,073,999 108,056 13,086,399
SRR Fe Held-to-maturity securities 1,149,653 1,360,188 - 453,567 50,981 3,014,389
Bk R HRIR Advances and other accounts 70,979,986 19,765,625 241,834 10,383,449 641,362 102,012,256
A R Other assets 3,584,744 60,626 - 34,159 3213 3,682,742
WEE Total assets 90,724,445 39,026,875 7,017,375 38,747,350 3,425,177 178,941,222
i1 Liabilities
FEYE"¢ Deposits and balances from banks 753,855 3,494,325 - 7,692,067 417,702 12,357,949
CHEE T2 Al Trading liabilities - 39,918 - - - 39,918
MEEMIE Derivative financial instruments 89,308 - - - - 89,308
DIATFEEFEABLE  Financial liabilities designated at
2EBMAE fair value through profit or loss 522,957 47,079 - - - 570,036
K Deposits from customers 72445618 21,473,492 8,862,631  23,20459 6,092,141 132,094,341
BT Certificates of deposit issued - 3,153,005 - 3,798,572 - 6,951,577
BTz BEEE Subordinated debt issued 3,000,000 1,536,020 - - - 4,536,020
HibA Other liabilities 3,295,745 674,750 27,900 902,153 187,951 5,088,499
=l Total liabilities 80,107,483 30,418,589 8,890,531 35,613,251 6,697,794 161,727,648
HEAMBNELEE  Net on-balance sheet position 10,616,962 8,608,286  (1,873,156) 3,134,099  (3,272,617) 17,213,574
BEAERNLESR Off-balance sheet net notional
W position 3,075,407 (6,998,266) 1,845,723  (1,763,270) 3,851,875 11,469
R Bk YE Credit commitments 22,050,731 3,627,327 140,793 2,392,384 125391 28,345,626
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) BHm fg () (c) Currency risk (Continued)

HE - BEAERERERINER B

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Continued)

(%)
YN iy The Bank
o e T NI Al At
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
WTL  WBTx  WWTx  BWTa  W%Txk EBTx
HKS$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS$°000
RZO—Z4 At 31 December 2012
+ZA=+—H
B Assets
JEAE S REHES Cash and short-term funds 8,251,244 7,608,001 3,900,512 6,113,950 1,774,132 27,647,839
[F] 2 E M TR Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 31438 5,702,515 1,182,659 16,180,321 847,433 24,285,366
HEEEMGRZES  Trading securities 2,914,360 14,114 - 497,172 - 3,425,646
ilacoy: W= Derivative financial instruments 101,784 - - - - 101,784
PIANTEEREABEGIR  Financial assets designated at
ZEREE fair value through profit or loss - 610,992 - - - 610,992
ik 2 Available-for-sale securities 2,826,137 3,207,708 1,692,370 5,073,999 102,230 12,902,444
R 3 HeE Held-to-maturity securities 1,149,653 1,082,430 - 391,485 50,981 2,674,549
Bk R H At RTE Advances and other accounts 70,167,618 19,779,525 241,834 10,382,683 641,287 101,212,947
HoAh & Other assets 3,663,875 431,719 - 34,159 3212 4,132,965
AR Total assets 89,447,109 38,437,004 7,017,375 38,673,769 3,419,275 176,994,532
ff Liabilities
HEZ2- Deposits and balances from banks 753,855 3,494,325 - 7,692,067 417,702 12,357,949
ik emT A Derivative financial instruments 89,308 - - - - 89,308
ATEEEABLE  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMA R fair value through profit or loss 522,957 47,079 - - - 570,036
EEHH Deposits from customers 73,148,109 22,020,856 8,862,706 23,236,045 6,092,825 133,360,541
BIT 2153 Certificates of deposit issued - 3,153,005 - 3,798,572 - 6,951,577
BT BIBEE Subordinated debt issued 3,000,000 1,536,020 - - - 4,536,020
HAh & Other liabilities 1,064,649 671,883 27,900 902,302 187,951 2,854,685
BATK Total liabilities 78,578,878 30,923,168 8,890,606 35,628,986 6,698,478 160,720,116
BREARKNIFAFAE  Net on-balance sheet position 10,868,231 7,513,836 (1,873,231) 3,044,783  (3,279,203) 16,274,416
BEAGERIN RS Off-balance sheet net notional
B position 3,075,407 (6,998,266) 1,845,723  (1,763,270) 3,851,875 11,469
fr BTk Credit commitments 22,126376 3,627,327 140,793 2,392,384 125391 28,412,271
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

HE - BEAERERERINER B

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Continued)

(%)
A The Group
vl Restated o E " AR HE HAty i)
HKD usSD AUD RMB Others Total
WL w%Tr wW%fr wRTr B%Tr BT
HK$’000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$°000
RZO——4 At 31 December 2011
+ZH=+—H
203 Assets
EFRERENES Cash and short-term funds 3,536,453 2,605,505 2,408,047 6830215  4212,880 19,593,109
GE ek V394 Placements with and loans and
e advances to banks 1,252,299 14,813,315 - 11,822,846 99,999 27,988,459
FHERE Mg 2 ibs Trading securities 4,091,196 14,315 189 400,072 - 4623112
it em TR Derivative financial instruments 29,050 5,784 ,166 125,608 11,763 275,371
DIATFE(EFEABLE  Financial assets designated at
2EREE fair value through profit or loss 203,174 644,703 - - - 847,877
{7 % Available-for-sale securities 1,336,509 6,011,602 2,972,695 5169345 1,049,000 16,539,151
ESERil e Held-to-maturity securities - 1,349,298 714,144 375,231 260,852 2,699,525
R R AR I Advances and other accounts 62,653,107 14,823,570 281,561 9,374,955 612,860 87,746,053
HAb &z Other assets 3,444,683 81,018 = 6,894 5267 3,537,862
g Total assets 76,546,471 40349110 6,597,802 34,105,166 6,252,630 163,851,179
s Liabilities
HEYiE¢ Deposits and balances from banks 767,806 6,980,379 - 4737251 387,697 12,873,133
RREET 2 afE Trading liabilities 437,905 = = = = 437,905
il W=, Derivative financial instruments 18,702 187,962 1518 107,364 1,688 323,234
DATEERARLR  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMARK fair value through profit or loss 791,832 202,553 = = = 994,385
RE SR Deposits from customers 63,402,973 17,330,549 10,018,960 17,461,155 6,926,177 115,139,814
BT Certificates of deposit issued 1,728471 5,748,899 — 4144207 - 11,621,577
BT REEE Subordinated debt issued 3,000,000 = = - - 3,000,000
Hitve & Other liabilities 3,176,901 368,007 39,330 853,421 79,103 4,516,762
A f Total liabilities 73,324,590 30,818,349 10,065,808  27,303398 7,394,665 148,906,810
ERAMEFNFFAFHE  Net on-balance sheet position 3,221,881 9,530,761  (3,468,006) 6,801,768  (1,142,035) 14,944,369
BEAERINGHEA Off-balance sheet net notional
x| position 6,050,172 (5,401,194) 3,580,191  (5,690451) 1,473,022 11,740
R BRIE Credit commitments 23,401,502 2,272,999 111,082 3,412,109 266,912 29,464,604
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) BHm fg () (c) Currency risk (Continued)

HE - BEAERERERINER B

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Continued)

(%)
YN iy The Bank
£l Restated T ESR U UNEL HAh At
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
BHTr Wl R BEFxo B%Tr Bl
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
RZO——4 At 31 December 2011
+ZA=+—H
B Assets
EFRE R EHES Cash and short-term funds 3,513,924 2,600,769 2,408,047 6,825,941  4212,880 19,561,570
REEMER R Placements with and loans and
v advances to banks 931,417 14,745,871 - 11,822,846 99,999 27,600,133
BIEE G 5 Trading securities 4,090,308 14315 118,189 400,072 — 4,622,884
MESRIA Derivative financial instruments 29,050 5,784 103,166 125,608 11,763 275,371
PIATEE AR R Financial assets designated at
ZhERERE fair value through profit or loss 203,174 643,103 = = = 846,277
{7 Available-for-sale securities 1,094,000 6,011,602  2972,695 5,169,345 1,043,178 16,290,829
R E R Held-to-maturity securities 1,349,298 714,144 363,193 260,852 2,687,487
Bk LA ARIR Advances and other accounts 61,949,101 14,843,380 281,561 9,374,908 612,860 87,061,810
HAh Other assets 3,528,065 63,353 = 6,686 5207 3,603,371
BB Total assets 75,339,048 40277475 6,597,802 34,088,599 6,246,808 162,549,732
il Liabilities
EEF7E Deposits and balances from banks 767,806 6,980,379 — 4737251 387,697 12,873,133
THRETZ AR Trading liabilities 437,905 - - _ _ 437,905
MESMIA Derivative financial instruments 18,702 187,962 7,518 107,364 1,688 323,234
DIAFEExABGE  Financial liabilities designated at
2hRARE fair value through profit or loss 791,832 202,553 _ _ _ 994,385
EF Deposits from customers 64,164,489 17,946,253 10,019,034 17,512,729 6,926,876 116,569,381
152 1 s Certificates of deposit issued 1728471 5,748,899 - 4144207 - 1Le2LSTT
BT EEE Subordinated debt issued 3,000,000 = = = - 3,000,000
Hib A5 Other liabilities 1,241,891 365,692 39,330 853,428 79,103 2,579,444
g fE Total liabilities 72,151,006 31431738 10,065,882  27,354979 7,395,364 148,399,059
HEAMRNFFAESH  Neton-balance sheet position 3,187,052 8,845,737  (3,468,080) 6,733,620  (1,148,556) 14,150,673
B AERIILFES  Off-balance sheet net notional
e position 6,050,172 (5,401,194) 3,580,191  (5,690,451) 1,473,022 11,740
{5 Bkl Credit commitments 23,468,147 2,272,999 111,082 3,412,109 266,912 29,531,249
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates in respect of its fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Interest margin may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce
or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Group
has established policies and systems to monitor its interest-sensitive
positions and net repricing gap to ensure that they are all properly
managed under the limits approved by the Management Committee.
Actual positions are compared with the approved limits and monitored
by the Asset and Liability Management Committee on a monthly basis.

While the primary objective of interest rate risk management is to limit
potential adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest
income, interest rate positions may be taken for yield enhancement
within the risk limits.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure
to interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amount categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.2 WA BE (%) 2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) FIZ i (45) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
EE K EE PR E - 2 B R Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis
iy
P The Group
—fiA
gUT WAL Z@ANE —EUE BAENUE At B
Up to A A ZERAE Over  Non-interest it
1 month  1-3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
T T i ST T T T T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
REO—Z4 At 31 December 2012
FZAEF—H
B Assets
AP B4 a4 Cash and short-term funds 23,193,879 - - - - 5,066,740 28,260,619
[EEa Y319/ Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 3,482,628 9,980,055 11,118,850 - - - 24,581,533
RERE R 2B 5 Trading securities 1,360,015 953,163 623,660 488,808 - 163,252 3,588,898
fiksMIT R Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 101,784 101,784
PLAT-E (AR AR R Financial assets designated at
ZERERE fair value through profit or loss - 116,934 1,610 494,058 - - 612,602
ik &7 E Available-for-sale securities 4,632,180 6,496,922 324,469 895,128 - 737,700 13,086,399
FEIES Held-to-maturity securities 287,454 1,442,226 228,527 1,041,230 14,952 - 3,014,389
B T A RTR Advances and other accounts 62,858,308 28,651,400 5,535,595 1,022,949 918,121 3,025,883 102,012,256
Hihg s Other assets 14,337 - - - - 3,668,405 3,682,742
g Total assets 95,828,801 47,640,700 17,832,711 3,942,173 933,073 12,763,764 178,941,222
aff Liabilities
EEY:="¢ Deposits and balances from banks 2,815,145 3,271,576 5,058,663 - - 1,212,565 12,357,949
RHEIET 2 £l Trading liabilities - - - - - 39,918 39,918
AT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 89,308 89,308
DUAFE RS AR AR Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMARK fair value through profit or loss - - - 570,036 - - 570,036
BFEHH Deposits from customers 65,156,706 32,494,011 23,533,445 3,514,185 - 7,395,994 132,094,341
BIT 2 fEi Certificates of deposit issued 2,697,747 966,292 1,922,618 1,364,920 - - 6,951,577
Liipai A Subordinated debt issued 800,000 700,000 - 1,536,020 1,500,000 - 4,536,020
Hihf & Other liabilities - - - - - 5088499 5,088,499
iUt Total liabilities 71,469,598 37,431,879 30,514,726 6,985,161 1,500,000 13,826,284 161,727,648
TR 5 R 2 B Total interest sensitivity gap
(REgmE) (unadjusted) 24359203 10,208,821 (12,682,015  (3,042,988)  (566,927)
FIRAVETEA# 22 Effect of interest rate derivatives 353,138 251,396 (46,293) (389,457) (123,656)
TR R 2 B A Total interest sensitivity gap
(%) (adjusted) 24,712,341 10,460,217 (12,728,308)  (3,432,445) (690,583)
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis (Continued)

YN F) The Bank
—fiA
gUT —WANE  ZWANE —EUE BAENUE At B
Up to Z=iA A ZERAE Over  Non-interest it
1 month  1-3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
T T i ST T T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZO—Z4 At 31 December 2012
+ZHA=+—H
B Assets
AP B4 B a4 Cash and short-term funds 22,998,811 - - - - 4,649,028 27,647,839
EEH ilcd 9 Placements with and loans and
BN advances to banks 3,482,628 9,690,208 11,112,530 - - - 24,285,366
RERE R B 5 Trading securities 1,360,015 953,163 623,660 488,808 - - 3,425,646
fitsMIT R Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 101,784 101,784
PLATE(E R A B4R Financial assets designated at
ZERERE fair value through profit or loss - 116,934 - 494,058 - - 610,992
k&7 E Available-for-sale securities 4,632,180 6,496,922 324,469 895,128 - 553,745 12,902,444
eI Held-to-maturity securities 287,454 1,442,226 198,656 731,261 14,952 - 2,674,549
B R AR Advances and other accounts 62,868,836 28,659,161 5,591,568 1,017,871 918,121 2,157,390 101,212,947
HAhERE Other assets 14,337 - - - - 4,118,628 4,132,965
B Total assets 95,644,261 47,358,614 17,850,883 3,627,126 933,073 11,580,575 176,994,532
g Liabilities
EEZ: Deposits and balances from banks 2,815,145 3,271,576 5,058,663 - - 1,212,565 12,357,949
Chilaco e Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 89,308 89,308
PIATE(E R AR R Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMARK fair value through profit or loss - - - 570,036 - - 570,036
K FE Deposits from customers 65,483,770 32,605,221 24,126,036 3,518,102 - 1627412 133,360,541
BT 75 Certificates of deposit issued 2,697,747 966,292 1,922,618 1,364,920 - - 6,951,577
B2 HIERE Subordinated debt issued 800,000 700,000 - 1,536,020 1,500,000 - 4,536,020
A& Other liabilities - - - - - 2,854,685 2,854,685
HEfR Total liabilities 71,796,662 37,543,089 31,107,317 6,989,078 1,500,000 11,783,970 160,720,116
5 R 2 B A Total interest sensitivity gap
(R (unadjusted) 23,847,599 9,815,525  (13,256,434) (3,361,952 (566,927)
FEfETERHZE Effect of interest rate derivatives 353,138 251,396 (46,293) (389,457) (123,656)
TR R 2 B A Total interest sensitivity gap
(Fe3HEE) (adjusted) 24,200,737 10,066,921  (13,302,727)  (3,751,409) (690,583)
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2 il R B PR (4E)
2.2 TisG b (4)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) FIZ i (45) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

EERA B A RGBT — HE R

Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis (Continued)

orHr (A1)

P The Group
£ Restated —{@A
gUT  —MAMLE =AML —FME HE L AitE
Up to =] A BTNk Over  Non-interest At
I month  1-3months  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
T T T T T T Wi
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZO——4 At 31 December 2011
+ZHA=+—H
i Assets
A B4 R E S Cash and short-term funds 18,398,257 - - - = 1,194,852 19,593,109
[F] 3 72 AR R Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 6,194964 18,670,596 3,122,899 = = - 27988459
RERE AR # 5 Trading securities 570,025 3,375,253 275,795 401,811 - 888 4,623,772
fikeMIT R Derivative financial instruments = = = - - 275,371 275,371
DLATE (AR AR R Financial assets designated at
ZERERE fair value through profit or loss 169,966 - 37,768 640,143 - - 847,877
A2 E Available-for-sale securities 4735086 9,965,166 214,590 840,306 = 783,803 16,539,151
FFEE R H Held-to-maturity securities 479,743 1,271,088 394,543 530,924 23,207 - 2,699,525
B IRIE Advances and other accounts 55433362 26,302,157 2,022,373 511,467 612,061 2,864,633 87,746,053
HAERE Other assets 17,171 20,429 = - - 3,500,262 3,537,862
B Total assets 85998774 59,604,689 6,067,968 2,924,651 635,288 8,619,809 163,851,179
Ak Liabilities
GEY:=¢ Deposits and balances from banks 3,957,498 6,582,999 723,744 - - 1,608,892 12,873,133
RORET 2 A& Trading liabilities 429,478 - - 8,427 = = 437,905
fiEEMTH Derivative financial instruments = = - - - 323,234 323,234
PUATE R AR 4R Financial liabilities designated at
ZERAR fair value through profit or loss - 431,400 - 562,985 - - 994,385
BT Deposits from customers 62,060,069  32,184281 12,114,839 2,956,094 - 5804531 115,139,814
B2 Certificates of deposit issued 2,393,045 3,383,296 5,228,636 616,600 - - 11,621,577
B2 BEEE Subordinated debt issued 800,000 700,000 = = 1,500,000 ~ 3,000,000
A A Other liabilities - - - - —- 4516762 4,516,762
BEMR Total liabilities 69,640,090 43281976 18067219 4,144,106 1,500,000 12,273,419 148,906,810
LR 2 B A Total interest sensitivity gap
(R (unadjusted) 16,358,684 16,322,713 (11,999.251)  (1,219,455) (864,712)
FlEfTE TRARZ Y Effect of interest rate derivatives 703,773 155,557 (615,971) (139,688) (152,284)
Tl S U 2 B AR A Total interest sensitivity gap
(43R (adjusted) 17,062,457 16478270 (12,615222)  (1,359,143)  (1,016,996)




2 <l B L (A0)

2.2 i G EBE (%)
(d) FIFm B ()

HELARZARERE - HE L

orHr (A1)

3

Annual Report 2012 Wing Lung Bank Limited

KBESRATA AT —.0 — “AR4FR

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis (Continued)

PN iy The Bank
£ Restated —{@A
gUT  —MAMLE =AML —EDE HE L Rt B
Up to =] i BTNk Over  Non-interest At
I month  1-3months  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years bearing Total
Wi T T T T T Wi
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
RZO——4 At 31 December 2011
+ZH=+—H
B Assets
AP B4 B a4 Cash and short-term funds 18,393,983 = - - - 1,167,587 19,561,570
[F] 3 7 AR R Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 6,194964 18,282,270 3,122,899 - - - 27,600,133
FEEE R B5 Trading securities 570,025 3,375,253 275,795 401,811 - — 4,622,884
fikeMIT R Derivative financial instruments = = = - - 275,371 275,371
PLAT-E (AR AR R Financial assets designated at
ZERERE fair value through profit or loss 169,966 - 37,768 638,543 - - 846,277
A2 E Available-for-sale securities 4735086 9,965,166 214,590 840,306 = 535481 16,290,829
FFEE R H Held-to-maturity securities 479,743 1,271,088 394,543 518,886 23,207 - 2,687,487
BRI AR Advances and other accounts 55,432,797 26,301,081 2,050,982 489,398 611,731 2,175,821 87,061,810
HAERE Other assets 17,171 20,429 - - = 3,565,771 3,603,371
HERE Total assets 85,993,935 59215287 6,096,577 2,888,944 634958 7,720,031 162,549,732
fifk Liabilities
GEY:=¢ Deposits and balances from banks 3,957,498 6,582,999 723,744 - - 1,608,892 12,873,133
RORET 2 A& Trading liabilities 429,478 - - 8,427 = = 437,905
fiEEMTH Derivative financial instruments = = - - - 323,234 323,234
PUATE R AR 4R Financial liabilities designated at
ZERAR fair value through profit or loss - 431,400 - 562,985 - - 994,385
BT Deposits from customers 62,198,581 32,304940 12,769,885 2,957,481 - 6338494 116,569,381
B2 Certificates of deposit issued 2,393,045 3,383,296 5,228,636 616,600 - - 11,621,577
BT R IERE Subordinated debt issued 800,000 700,000 = - 1,500,000 ~ 3,000,000
A A Other liabilities - - - - = 2,579,444 2,579,444
BEMR Total liabilities 69,778,602 43.402,635 18,722,265 4,145,493 1,500,000 10,850,064 148,399,059
LU 2 B A Total interest sensitivity gap
CREE %) (unadjusted) 16215333 15,812,652 (12,625,688)  (1,256,549) (865,042)
FlEfTE TRARZ Y Effect of interest rate derivatives 703,773 155,557 (615,971) (139,688) (152,284)
Tl S U 2 B AR A Total interest sensitivity gap
(43R (adjusted) 16,919,106 15968209  (13241,659)  (1,396,237) (1,017,326
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2 SmbE b P (%)
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) FIZ i (45) (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
TR e TR g CRRAATE
E s AR AR IR IA) A A 3 22 68 W o T IR

The table below summarises the effective interest rate by major
currencies of monetary financial instruments not carried at fair value

FIE through profit or loss:
A4 The Group
Wt F70 g AR it i
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
% % % % % %
RZO— 24 At 31 December 2012
+-HA=Z+—H
2903 Assets
B & R %4 Cash and short-term funds 0.13 0.35 3.01 3.08 1.33 1.30
GEye:ii¥ed 94 Placements with and loans
B and advances to banks 1.57 1.44 3.26 5.13 1.98 3.99
a] it s Available-for-sale securities 1.18 1.50 4.10 3.84 1.40 2.67
F5 2 5 MR 5 Held-to-maturity securities 0.54 3.01 - 5.34 2.10 2.42
EEEHR Advances to customers 2.49 2.43 5.91 475 3.31 2.71
ffR Liabilities
EEYeE¢ Deposits and balances from banks 0.12 0.46 - 4.30 0.09 2.82
KL Deposits from customers 0.56 0.81 2.62 3.10 1.07 1.21
W4T AT s Certificates of deposit issued - 1.81 - 2.96 - 2.44
BT 2 B IEGEE Subordinated debt issued 4.23 3.61 - - - 4.02
BZO——4 At 31 December 2011
+=ZH=+—H
2903 Assets
B4 R4 &4 Cash and short-term funds 0.38 1.36 4.46 1.23 1.26 1.50
GE i3 94 Placements with and loans
Bk and advances to banks 3.34 3.69 - 7.44 4.45 5.27
a] it s Available-for-sale securities 0.64 1.39 5.31 4.89 2.88 3.22
RIS Held-to-maturity securities - 2.40 5.14 4.68 3.22 3.48
ZFAHR Advances to customers 221 2.93 7.38 4.05 1.73 2.53
ffR Liabilities
FEYex¢ Deposits and balances from banks 0.03 1.54 = 4.84 0.67 2.64
BT Deposits from customers 0.89 1.29 4.02 2.42 1.17 1.47
BT A7 E Certificates of deposit issued 1.45 1.67 = 1.53 = 1.59
BiT LR ERA Subordinated debt issued 4.20 - = - - 420
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and
to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the
failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments to
lend. The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources
from overnight deposits, current accounts, matured deposits, loan
drawdowns and guarantees, and from margin and other calls on cash-
settled derivatives.

(a) Liquidity risk management process

The Group has established policies and systems to monitor and control
its liquidity position on a daily basis. The Treasury Department manages
the Group’s day-to-day funding by monitoring future cash flows to
ensure that requirements can be met. This includes replenishment
of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers. The Group
maintains an active presence in money markets to enable this to happen
and a portfolio of high quality liquid assets that can easily be liquidated
to meet emergency funding needs. The Group also monitors the off-
balance sheet cash flow activities, such as loan commitments, contingent
liabilities under guarantees and standby facilities received, as part of
its liquidity risk management process. Sources of liquidity are regularly
reviewed by the Treasury Department to maintain diversification in
currency, geography, provider, product and term.

Limits for liquidity ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio and maturity mismatch
amount have been set to ensure that the Group is able to meet its funding
requirements. All limits are approved by the Management Committee.
Actual positions are compared with the approved limits and monitored
by the Asset and Liability Management Committee. Stress scenario
analysis for normal business conditions, an institution-specific crisis
and a general market crisis are also conducted on a regular basis to
assess the liquidity risk of the Group. The liquidity management process
is regularly reported to the Management Committee and the Board of
Directors.

(b) Maturity analysis

The tables on the following pages analyse the Group’s assets and
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The
analysis in respect of insurance liabilities is based on the estimated
timing of net cash outflows resulting from recognised insurance
liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
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2 <l B L (A0)
2.3 HBE &b ()

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) ZIHI 05 (#5) (b) Maturity analysis (Continued)
A4 H The Group
—WA —WAULE ZWANUE
Wi 12 KU E=MA - YL HENL TERED
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ETA: Over A it
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
whTE  wWTE W% Tx  W¥Tx  WRTx WRTx W% Tx  #%Tx
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS$000
RZO—Z4 At 31 December 2012
+ZRA=+—H
i Assets
JEfF B4 RN E S Cashand short-term funds 5715425 20,832,603 - - - - 1,712,591 28,260,619
7 3 76 B AE AR Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 9913 3,386,659 9,976,655 11,201,562 6,744 - 24,581,533
FEEEFMHRZ#S  Trading securities - 1,359,974 953,163 623,322 489,187 - 163,252 3,588,898
EEMTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 101,784 101,784
MATEEE ARG  Financial assets designated at
ZEMERE fair value through profit or loss - - 116,935 1,610 494,057 - - 612,602
kil 2 A Available-for-sale securities - - 378,127 1,027,410 10,943,162 - 737,700 13,086,399
SEEIChe Held-to-maturity securities - 249,930 1,442,226 28527 1,078,754 14,952 - 3,014,389
BRI AR Advances and other accounts 1,437,892 2,358,705 10,100,448 26,103,306 41,359,610 19,653,064 999,231 102,012,256
HibERE Other assets - - - 9,452 14,337 68,073 3,590,880 3,682,742
MR Total assets 7,163,230 28,187,871 22,967,554 39,195,180 54,385,851 19,736,089 7,305,438 178,941,222
ffig Liabilities
EELZ Deposits and balances from banks 1,213,679 2,814,031 3271576 5,058,663 - - - 12,357,949
THIRIET 2 AfR Trading liabilities - - - - - - 39,918 39,918
fEEMTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 89,308 89,308
PLAT-(E(ERE AL Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMAE fair value through profit or loss - - - - 570,036 - - 570,036
%Ptk Deposits from customers 39,680,000 32,872,361 32,494,340 23533445 3,514,186 - — 132,094,341
B Certificates of deposit issued - 2,697,748 695,083 2,193,826 1,364,920 - - 6,951,577
Bz HEEE Subordinated debt issued - - - - - 4,536,020 - 4,536,020
& Other liabilities 583,582 881,102 665260 1,591,272 914,310 25,430 427543 5,088,499
Mgtk Total liabilities 41477270 39265242 37,126,259 32,377,206 6,363,452 4,561,450 556,769 161,727,648
W% 4 % W Net liquidity gap (34,314,040) (11,077,371) (14,158,705) 6,817,983 48,022,399 15,174,639 6,748,669 17,213,574
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2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
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(b) 1B (#5) (b) Maturity analysis (Continued)
Y NF) The Bank
—WA —WAULE ZWANUE
B £ KU E=MA - —FYE HENL TERED
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ETA: Over A it
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
whTE  wWTE W% Tx  W¥Tx  WRTx WRTx W% Tx  #%Tx
HK$000  HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HKS$000
RO~ At 31 December 2012
+ZRA=+—H
i Assets
BifiB 4 BEM&S  Cash and short-term funds 5293301 20,641,947 - - - - 1,712,591 27,647,839
[F 5 AR R Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks 9913 3,386,659 9,686,809 11,195,241 6,744 - - 24,285,366
FIEEE G2 H%  Trading securities - 1,359,974 953,163 623,322 489,187 - - 3,425,646
it &m TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 101,784 101,784
WATEEH AR  Financial assets designated at
2R fair value through profit or loss - - 116,935 - 494,057 - - 610,992
ki 7 Available-for-sale securities - - 378,127 1,027,410 10,943,162 - 553,745 12,902,444
25 Held-to-maturity securities - 249,930 1,442,226 198,656 768,785 14,952 - 2,674,549
Bk R IRIR Advances and other accounts 1,439,520 1,988,160 10,038,613 25,889,557 41,291,947 19,715,927 849,223 101,212,947
HAbERE Other assets - - - 9,418 14,337 24,727 4,084,483 4,132,965
MR Total assets 6,742,734 27,626,670 22,615,873 38,943,604 54,008,219 19,755,606 7,301,826 176,994,532
ffit Liabilities
EEY:=¢ Deposits and balances from banks 1,213,679 2,814,031 3,271,576 5,058,663 - - - 12,357,949
it amTHE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 89,308 89,308
PVATE(FE B IE  Financial liabilities designated at
ZEMARE fair value through profit or loss - - - - 570,036 - - 570,036
KF s Deposits from customers 39,984,469 33,126,383 32,605,551 24,126,036 3,518,102 - - 133,360,541
BATZ A5 Certificates of deposit issued - 2,697,748 695,083 2,193,826 1,364,920 - - 6,951,577
BTz RERE Subordinated debt issued - - - - - 4,536,020 - 4,536,020
HAh s 5 Other liabilities 543,382 543,854 508,046 1,000,208 122,543 23,475 BATT 2,854,685
etk Total liabilities 41,741,530 39,182,016 37,170,256 32,378,733 5,575,601 4,559,495 112,485 160,720,116
WE & & 200 55 Net liquidity gap (34,998,796) (11,555,346) (14,554,383) 6,564,871 48,432,618 15,196,111 7,189,341 16,274,416
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2 <l B L (A0)
2.3 HBE &b ()

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) ZIHI 05 (#5) (b) Maturity analysis (Continued)
A H The Group
£ Restated —MA —MANL =@AML
B A BUT  E2=MA g —FNE HELE b
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ZTAF Over H # &t
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
BT BT W% T %I BTk B¥Tx  ERTr BT
HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
R_O——4 At 31 December 2011
FoAZ N
B Assets
B4 A4S Cash and short-term funds 5,704,490 12,410,078 - - - ~ 1478541 19,593,109
IF 3 7€ A TR Placements with and loans and
ik advances to banks ~ 6194964 18395032 3398463 - - ~ 27,988,459
HERE MG %% Trading securities = 569,939 3,257,064 393,984 401,897 - 888 4,623,772
fEsM TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 275,371 275,371
UATEfEA Financial assets designated at
Rk aEERE fair value through profit or loss = 169,966 - 37,768 640,143 - - 847,877
i 7 # 5 Available-for-sale securities - 821,258 2981717 4912373 7,040,000 - 783,803 16,539,151
FEE 5% Held-to-maturity securities - 54,382 453,263 1,512,360 617,460 62,060 - 2,699,525
B R AMIRIE Advances and other accounts 1,540,666 3,180,453 10,424,644 18,608,848 34,423,444 18,949,228 618,770 87,746,053
Hibg s Other assets - - - 7,786 37,600 103,236 3,389,240 3,537,862
MR Total assets 7,245,156 23,401,040  35511,720 28,871,582 43,160,544 19,114,524 6,546,613 163,851,179
AR Liabilities
EEY:="¢ Deposits and balances from banks 1,611,569 2,242,956 8,100,699 917,909 - - - 12,873,133
TR T Z AR Trading liabilities - 429,478 - - 8,427 - - 437,905
fitsM TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 323,234 323,234
A TEERA Financial liabilities designated at
BERz eMa R fair value through profit or loss = = 170,054 261,346 562,985 = = 994,385
B Deposits from customers 34,320,449 33,563,985 32,184,281 12,115,005 2,956,094 - - 115,139,814
BT i Certificates of deposit issued — 2354223 3235796 5,376,136 655,422 - - 11,621,577
BT REEE Subordinated debt issued - - - - - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
HAbA Other liabilities 601,093 901,347 632,065 1,151,903 816,325 29,945 384,084 4,516,762
BEMR Total liabilities 36,533,111 39,491,989  44322.895 19,822,299 4,999,253 3,029,945 707,318 148,906,810
WHE & X Net liquidity gap (29,287,955) (16,090,949)  (8,811,175) 9,049,283 38,161,291 16,084,579 5,839,295 14,944,369
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
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(b) 1B (#5) (b) Maturity analysis (Continued)
Y NF) The Bank
7 Restated —fA —MAML Z=MAMEL
B EMT  E=AA g —FUE HELE HEREW
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ZTAF Over H # &t
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
BT WETr W WMTE W¥Te w¥Te  w¥Tr  B¥Tx
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$000
REO——4 At 31 December 2011
FZAET—H
B Assets
EFB 4 RN ES  Cash and short-term funds 5,672,951 12,410,078 - - - - 1478541 19,561,570
7 3 7% B AE AR Placements with and loans and
B advances to banks - 6194964 18,006,706 3,398,463 = - - 27,600,133
HERE MG %% Trading securities = 569,939 3,257,064 393,984 401,897 - - 4,622,884
fEsM TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 275,371 275,371
UATEfEA Financial assets designated at
Rk aEERE fair value through profit or loss = 169,966 - 37,768 638,543 - - 846,277
ik 7 5 Available-for-sale securities - 821258 2,981,717 4912373 7,040,000 - 535481 16,290,829
PR 5IE S Held-to-maturity securities - 54,382 453263 1,512,360 605,422 62,060 — 2,687,487
B R AMIRIE Advances and other accounts 1,563,012 2,961,135 10,356,933 18,366,111 34,330,495 19,007,834 476,090 87,061,810
Hibg s Other assets - = - 6,974 37,600 45175 3,513,622 3,603,371
B Total assets 7235963 23,181,722 35,055,683 28,628,033 43,053,957  19,115069 6,279,305 162,549,732
£ Liabilities
EEY:="¢ Deposits and balances from banks 1,611,569 2,242,956 8,100,699 917,909 - - - 12,873,133
AT 2 Atk Trading liabilities - 429,478 - - 8,427 - - 437,905
fitsM TR Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 323,234 323,234
A TEERA Financial liabilities designated at
BERz eMa R fair value through profit or loss = = 170,054 261,346 562,985 = = 994,385
EFE Deposits from customers 34915219 33,621,690 32,304,940 12,770,050 2,957,482 - - 116,569,381
BT i Certificates of deposit issued — 2354223 3235796 5,376,136 655,422 - - 11,621,577
BT REEE Subordinated debt issued - - - - - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
A& R Other liabilities 544,987 712,993 562,440 619,395 93,999 28,290 17340 2,579,444
Ak Total liabilities 37,071,775 39361340 44373929 19944836 4278315 3,028,290 340,574 148,399,059
B 4 %M Net liquidity gap (29,835,812) (16,179,618)  (9,318,246) 8,683,197 38,775,642 16,086,779 5,938,731 14,150,673
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as transacted
business is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of
losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and currency risks.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the commitment
because the Group does not generally expect the third party to draw
funds under the agreement. The total outstanding contractual amount of
commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, as many of these commitments will expire or terminate
without being funded.

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The tables on the following pages analyse the cash flow payable by the
Group in respect of non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities, and by
estimated timing of net cash outflow for insurance liabilities at the end
of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash flows.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c) GRIZIH H Z RITH B2 E (H)

(c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

A H The Group
—fA —WANE ZMANL
WP 52 kUT  E=MA g8 —EDE HEDE JERkm
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ETA: Over A it
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
EHTe  EWTx  #WTx  #%Tx  #WTx #%Tx #RTx #RTx
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RZO—_4 At 31 December 2012
FoAZ R
FRiEB LR EAM  Non-derivative cash flow liabilities
BRI Deposits from customers 39,685,277 32,972,481 32,701,009 23,757,868 3,772,767 - - 132,889,402
EEY:="¢ Deposits and balances from banks 1,213,679 2,830,005 3,306,048 5,219,715 - - - 12,569,447
THRET 2 B Trading liabilities - - - - - - 39,918 39,918
MATFHEEEA Financial liabilities designated at
BalRzEMARE fair value through profit or loss - - 4,495 10,313 581,914 - - 596,722
BATZ I3 Certificates of deposit issued - 2,707,294 697,524 2,272,359 1,397,064 - - 7,074,241
B2 % EEE Subordinated debt issued - 4,787 25,130 145,524 702,982 5,226,498 - 6,104921
Hie g Other liabilities 579,804 774,708 450,388 1,325,764 817,183 25,430 47,541 4,400,818
i Bl & i & Derivative cash flow
it sMT R Derivative financial instruments - 5,934,810 8,047,535 6,084,685 52,343 1,291 - 20,120,664
41,478,760 45,224,085 45,232,129 38,816,228 7,324,253 5,253,219 467,459 183,796,133
£ Restated —fHA —EANE =@EAMUE
Bl T F=fAA g —FEDE HEME )
Repayable Up to 1-3 3-12 FHE Over H i At
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
BT BT WETr wMTr w%Te wETrc w¥Tr BT
HKS’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS’000 HK$’000
R_O——4 At 31 December 2011
+ZHA=+—H
FRAEBHSHEAMR  Non-derivative cash flow liabilities
BT Deposits from customers 34325,629 33,664,105 32,390,949 12,339,428  3214,675 - - 115,934,786
EEY:=¢ Deposits and balances from banks 1,611,569 2,268,627 8,192,689 937,851 - = - 13,010,736
LHIRIAT Z AfE Trading liabilities - 429,500 40 154 8,331 - - 438,025
MATEEEA Financial liabilities designated at
BiEEZeBAR fair value through profit or loss = - 175,854 272,802 596,794 = — 1,045,450
Bz Certificates of deposit issued ~ 2357637 3247461 5461262 666,634 = — 11,732,994
Wi BEER Subordinated debt issued - 4,700 25,435 90,204 481,086 3,523,121 - 4,124,546
HA & Other liabilities 595,174 801,535 461,312 1,047,753 752,167 29,945 384,085 4,071,971
iR ERE Derivative cash flow
i &M E Derivative financial instruments - 6,474,859 8,626,858 2,206,132 73,040 3,358 - 17,384,247
36,532,372 46,000,963 53,120,598 22,355,586 5,792,727 3,556,424 384,085 167,742,755
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

A (c) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)
ENE) The Bank
—fA —WANE ZMANE
WP 12 kUT  E=EMA g8 —EPDE HEDE ERkm
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 ETA Over A it
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
wHFL  B%Fx ¥t ¥ EWFx %t i T 3 5
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000
RZO—Z4 At 31 December 2012
+ZHA=1+—H
FRiEB LR EAM  Non-derivative cash flow liabilities
BRI Deposits from customers 39,989,737 33,226,602 32,812,221 24,358,158 3,776,694 - - 134,163,412
EEY:="¢ Deposits and balances from banks 1,213,679 2,830,005 3,306,048 5,219,715 - - - 12,569,447
MAFEEREA Financial liabilities designated at
BiRZEMARE fair value through profit or loss - - 4,495 10,313 581,914 - - 596,722
HITPAE € Certificates of deposit issued - 2,707,294 697,524 2,272,359 1,397,064 - - 7,074,241
BT HIEETR Subordinated debt issued - 4,787 25,130 145,524 702,982 5,226,498 - 6,104,921
HA & 15 Other liabilities 539,604 437,386 382,889 734,118 25,405 23,475 23,178 2,166,055
Bl 4 Derivative cash flow
iR T A Derivative financial instruments - 5,934,810 8,047,535 6,084,685 52,343 1,291 - 20,120,664
41,743,020 45,140,884 45,275,842 38,824,872 6,536,402 5,251,264 23,178 182,795,462
£ Restated —fA —fAULE =@ALL
BT fE HUF Z={HA 4 —EME T4 B L
Repayable Up to 13 3-12 EHA Over A Gl
on demand 1 month months months 1-5 years 5 years Undated Total
BFr BT W T WWTx BT BWFx BT %
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
RZO——4 At 31 December 2011
+ZH=+—H
FMAEBAREAK  Non-derivative cash flow liabilities
LAV + ¢ Deposits from customers 34,920,400 33,721,909 32,511,610 13,002,171 3,216,074 - - 117,372,164
EEY:=¢ Deposits and balances from banks 1,611,569 2,268,627 8,192,689 937,851 = = - 13,010,736
TOHRET 2 A& Trading liabilities - 429,500 40 154 8,331 = = 438,025
MAFEEGEA Financial liabilities designated at
BilRZEMAR fair value through profit or loss - - 175,854 272,802 596,794 - ~ 1,045,450
BT A3 Certificates of deposit issued - 2357,637 3247461 5,461,262 666,634 - - 11,732,994
BTz BEEE Subordinated debt issued - 4,700 25,435 90,204 481,086 3,523,121 - 4,124,546
HAbf Other liabilities 539,069 613,124 391,561 515,115 29,841 28,290 17,340 2,134,340
iR R Derivative cash flow
fEEBTA Derivative financial instruments - 6,474,859 8,626,858 2,206,132 73,040 3,358 - 17,384,247
37,071,038 45,870,356 53,171,508 22,485,691 5,071,800 3,554,769 17,340 167,242,502
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

A H The Group
—HEHEUT —4EDL B
Not later FhA LU E it
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
i T T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZO— 24 At 31 December 2012
+=ZH=+—H
TR Loan commitments 26,412,552 - - 26,412,552
A WK Forward forward deposit placed 140,793 - - 140,793
I8 PR3 B oAt 4 Guarantees and other financial
W facilities
— ERE LA — Guarantees and standby
fg AR letters of credit 571,197 - - 571,197
— Documentary and commercial
— 5 ik letters of credit 1,221,084 - - 1,221,084
ST A R YE Operating lease commitments 62,456 102,535 7,558 172,549
B TKAE Capital commitments 49,699 189,895 - 239,594
28,457,781 292,430 7,558 28,757,769
—EEHUT —4fP b
Not later Z R FAERL E =)
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
L I T o O i B
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R_O——4 At 31 December 2011
+ZH=+—H
ORI Loan commitments 26,143,670 — — 26,143,670
7 A A7 K Forward forward deposit placed 861,016 = = 861,016
Y (R B At 4 i Guarantees and other financial
T facilities
— PEE R H — Guarantees and standby
f& Ak letters of credit 800,564 - - 800,564
— Documentary and commercial
— fF Rk letters of credit 1,659,354 - - 1,659,354
AR Operating lease commitments 39,592 64,629 12,174 116,395
BEAR KIS Capital commitments 122,942 4,015 - 126,957
29,627,138 68,644 12,174 29,707,956
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2.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(d) Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

2 Financial risk management (Continued)

ENF) The Bank
—4EEU T —EY E
Not later FhA LU E it
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
W T U W% Tou W Tou W Tou
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZO— 24 At 31 December 2012
+=R=+—H
TR Loan commitments 26,412,552 - - 26,412,552
A WK Forward forward deposit placed 140,793 - - 140,793
18 DR % L At 4 Guarantees and other financial
W facilities
— ERE LA — Guarantees and standby
fg AR letters of credit 637,842 - - 637,842
— Documentary and commercial
SECLIEIN letters of credit 1,221,084 - - 1,221,084
ST A R YE Operating lease commitments 81,942 116,734 7,558 206,234
EA K Capital commitments 46,032 189,895 - 235,927
28,540,245 306,629 7,558 28,854,432
—EERLT —4ELE
Not later Z R HEME GEi
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
T T T T T T T T
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
R_O——4 At 31 December 2011
+ZA=+—H
ORI Loan commitments 26,143,670 — — 26,143,670
7 A A7 K Forward forward deposit placed 861,016 = = 861,016
Y (R B At 4 i Guarantees and other financial
T facilities
— PEE R H — Guarantees and standby
f& Ak letters of credit 867,209 - - 867,209
— Documentary and commercial
— fF Rk letters of credit 1,659,354 - - 1,659,354
AR Operating lease commitments 39,592 64,629 12,174 116,395
BEAR KIS Capital commitments 118,371 4,015 - 122,386
29,689,212 68,644 12,174 29,770,030
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.4 Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people or systems, or from external events.

The Group has established an operational risk management framework to
identify, measure, monitor and control operational risk. The Operational
Risk Management Policy, approved by the Management Committee,
defines responsibilities of various committees, business units and
supporting departments and encompasses various tools including control
self-assessment, risk event management and key risk indicators to
facilitate measurement and assessment of operational risk. The Group
also relies on internal control mechanisms within the business lines,
supplemented by the internal audit function to manage and control
operational risk.

The internal control system of the Group comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The
Board’s expectations regarding duty, responsibility and integrity are
clearly spelled out in formal policy statements. The lines of authority and
responsibilities of each business and operational unit have been clearly
defined to ensure adequate checks and balances. Procedures including
risk assessments, segregation of duties, use of limits, training and regular
verification and reconciliation of transactions and accounts are used in
the internal control mechanism.

Risk assessment will be conducted on the outsourcing services, new
products and new systems implementation. Business continuity plans are
in place to mitigate the impact and interruptions to business activities
caused by system failure or natural disaster. Adequate insurance is taken
out to cover a reasonable extent of operational risk.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for regular review of
the operational risk profile and the Group’s internal audit function plays
an important role in the Group’s operational risk framework. It provides
an objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system
is maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on all business
and operational functions.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for
financial liabilities is the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instruments. The fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated
as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value
of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward
exchange market rates at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at fair
value in the Group’s statement of financial position are estimated as
follows:

(a) Balances, placement with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits
is their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed interest
bearing deposits, which is normally less than one year, is based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity. Therefore
the fair value is approximately equal to its carrying value.

(b) Advances and other accounts

Advances and other accounts are net of allowances for impairment.
All except a very insignificant portion of loans and advances to
customers bear interest at a floating rate. The Group has assessed the
fair value of advances to customers and trade bills, after taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and noted that the total fair
value is not materially different from the total carrying value.

(c) Deposits and balances from banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no stated
maturity, which include non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The fair value of those balances bearing
interest at a floating rate is their carrying value.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits from banks
and deposits from customers without quoted market price is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar
remaining maturity. As they are normally less than one year, their fair
values are approximately equal to their carrying values.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(d) Certificates of deposit and subordinated debt issued

The fair value of certificates of deposit and subordinated debt issued
is based on quoted market prices. For those where quoted market
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used
based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term
to maturity. The Group has assessed the fair value of certificates of
deposit and subordinated debt after taking into account the relevant
yield curve and noted that the total fair value is not materially
different from the total carrying value.

(e) Other accounts and accruals

The estimated fair value of other accounts and accruals, which are
normally non-interest bearing balances, is their carrying value.

Except for the above statement of financial position items, the following
table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of other financial
assets and liabilities not presented on the Group’s statement of financial
position at their fair value.

A The Group
% TH A 2 FEAE
Carrying value Fair value
—~0—= 00— —O== —O0——
2012 2011 2012 2011
EW T BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ERE E Financial assets
Fr 2 55 Held-to-maturity securities 3,014,389 2,699,525 3,042,601 2,696,014
YN The Bank
% TH AL 2
Carrying value Fair value
—~0—= —~O0— —O0== —O0——
2012 2011 2012 2011
#EWT T BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
SRE E Financial assets

R A Held-to-maturity securities 2,674,549 2,687,487 2,693,953 2,684,915
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

HKFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether
the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable.
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the Group’s market assumptions. These two
types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

* Level 1 — Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This
category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in
active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical
or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than
active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data.

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable
inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. The Group considers relevant and observable market prices in
its valuations where possible.
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair value hierarchy

AT into which the fair value treatment is categorised:
L | The Group
e e B fat
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
#WT T BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BO— 4 At 31 December 2012
+=A=+—H
HiE Assets
FrEH & A& 2 %% © Trading securities:
— fEH I — Debt securities 2,963,884 461,762 - 3,425,646
— RS S K BERE — Equity securities and
e g = investment fund 163,252 - - 163,252
itk &/ T H Derivative financial instruments - 101,784 - 101,784
PIAFEETEA Financial assets designated at
Bk fair value through
ERVEE profit or loss:
— &5 — Debt securities 612,602 - - 612,602
Ak SR Available-for-sale securities:
— BB B — Debt securities 6,190,322 6,158,377 - 12,348,699
— HERS S R BERE — Equity securities and
B S investment fund 448,468 32,506 256,726 737,700
10,378,528 6,754,429 256,726 17,389,683
i Liabilities
RHMRE TN Z A Trading liabilities 39,918 - - 39,918
fiAd 4 T H Derivative financial instruments - 89,308 - 89,308
PAATPEEREA Financial liabilities designated
HulRZ at fair value through
Bt =K profit or loss - 570,036 - 570,036
39,918 659,344 - 699,262
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

ENE) The Bank
ER 5 H= writ
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BO—4 At 31 December 2012

+=A=+—H
HiE Assets
FrEH & A& 2 %% © Trading securities:

— B &S — Debt securities 2,963,884 461,762 - 3,425,646
fiitE &/ T H Derivative financial instruments - 101,784 - 101,784
PAAPAEE S Financial assets designated

Bk at fair value through

SRERE profit or loss:

— fEH % — Debt securities 610,992 - - 610,992
Ak SR Available-for-sale securities:

— BB — Debt securities 6,190,322 6,158,377 - 12,348,699

— JREAERE S K BERE — Equity securities and

RERE investment fund 278,293 32,506 242,946 553,745
10,043,491 6,754,429 242,946 17,040,866
i Liabilities
fii A4 T H Derivative financial instruments - 89,308 - 89,308
LA PEEREA Financial liabilities designated
HulRZ at fair value through
ot =K profit or loss - 570,036 - 570,036
- 659,344 - 659,344
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2 4l B A B (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.5 axhbe e R AEZ A FEME (8) 2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

A H The Group
H—E oy oy G
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Wi Ton W T W% T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

N _O——4 At 31 December 2011
+=H=+—H
HiE Assets
FrEH & A& 2 #%J © Trading securities:
— fEH I — Debt securities 4,386,207 236,677 - 4,622,884
— RS K BERE — Equity securities and
WG RS investment fund 888 = = 888
it &/ T H Derivative financial instruments - 275,371 = 275,371
LA EE R Financial assets designated at
Bl fair value through
BRERE profit or loss:
— &S — Debt securities 847,877 - - 847,877
Ak SR Available-for-sale securities:
— BB — Debt securities 11,995,410 3,759,938 — 15,755,348
— HERS S B — Equity securities and
BB S investment fund 457,402 23,140 303,261 783,803
17,687,784 4,295,126 303,261 22,286,171
=L Liabilities
EGWEIE T 2 A fh Trading liabilities 437,905 - - 437,905
it & mT R Derivative financial instruments - 310,567 12,667 323,234

LA PEEREA Financial liabilities designated
Rl at fair value through
B A R profit or loss - 994,385 - 994,385

437,905 1,304,952 12,667 1,755,524
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

ENE) The Bank
5—8 %I %=8 a3t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T T T BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
N _O——4 At 31 December 2011

+ZH=+—H
HiE Assets
FrEH & A& 2 %% © Trading securities:

— fEH I — Debt securities 4,386,207 236,677 - 4,622,884
fiitE &/ T H Derivative financial instruments - 275,371 = 275,371
PAAPAEE S Financial assets designated

Bk at fair value through

SRERE profit or loss:

— fEH % — Debt securities 846,277 - - 846,277
Ak SR Available-for-sale securities:

— BB — Debt securities 11,995,410 3,759,938 — 15,755,348

— JEAERE S K BERE — Equity securities and

BB S investment fund 222,782 23,140 289,559 535,481
17,450,676 4,295,126 289,559 22,035,361
i Liabilities
EGWRIE T 2 A fh Trading liabilities 437,905 - - 437,905
it & mT A Derivative financial instruments - 310,567 12,667 323,234
PAAPEEREA Financial liabilities designated
HulRZ at fair value through
=K profit or loss - 994,385 = 994,385
437,905 1,304,952 12,667 1,755,524
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2 4 i b B A B (4 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.5 SR ERAKZ A FEEA (8) 2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
BEEA T EEFENGRNFINZSE  The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value
uE measurements is as follows:
A [ The Group
44 fafg
Assets Liabilities
] ffk
2%
— I hE e 77
Available- ik
for-sale SMITA
securities Derivative
- Equity financial
securities instruments
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
R_0—_%—H—H At 1 January 2012 303,261 (12,667)
(B518) /Wi g BB e RS Total (losses)/gains recognised in
— R4 — Profit or loss - 12,667
— Hofth 2 i g — Other comprehensive income (46,535) -
RZO0O——H#+-A=Z+—H At 31 December 2012 256,726 -
RZo—Z&#+ZA=+—H Total losses for the year
P AR - HAFER included in other comprehensive
AR HAM A T gs A 2 R R A8 4 income for assets held at 31 December 2012 (46,535) -
17 The Bank
443 fifi
Assets Liabilities
] ffk
Z %
— I HEE %7
Available- ik
for-sale SMTHR
securities Derivative
- Equity financial
securities instruments
BT BT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
RZO0—Z4—H—H At 1 January 2012 289,559 (12,667)
(B518) /Wi g BB RS Total (losses)/gains recognised in
— R4 — Profit or loss - 12,667
— Heh 2wl — Other comprehensive income (46,613) -
RZO—ZHF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2012 242,946 -
RoOo—ZF+_A=+—H Total losses for the year
P - HAFER included in other comprehensive

AF B H A 2T S R 2 s TR AR income for assets held at 31 December 2012 (46,613) -
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2 4l B A B (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.5 axhbe e R AEZ A FEME (8) 2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
FEEA T EEFENGERAFNZE  The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value
R measurements is as follows:
L The Group
i =L
Assets Liabilities
AFEE
s ARG IR
ZEMERE
— B
Financial ATl
assets 2B
designated — BeHE R %
at fair value Available- fiitk
through for-sale EMTH
profit or loss securities Derivative
— Debt — Equity M financial
securities securities Total instruments
T T BT T T T T T
HKS$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
R_0——4%—H—H At 1 January 2011 1,575 290,774 292,349 (171,400)
5 % AR L Total gains recognised in
— i ~ Profit or loss 47,627 - 47,627 158,733
— Fofth A i — Other comprehensive income - 12,487 12,487 -
HEE Purchases 47,529 = 47,529 =
iz Settlements (96,731) - (96,731) -
RZO——4
+-H=1+—H At 31 December 2011 - 303,261 303,261 (12,667)
RZO——4#
+ZH=+—H Total gains for the year
FrishifEeE /A K included in profit or loss
HAFreFEREnN for assets/liabilities held at
W 4 31 December 2011 - - - 21,017
R0~
+ZA=+—H
fres A &R > HA  Total gains for the year included
TERAE R A 2 in other comprehensive income

Wi g 2 W4 AR for assets held at 31 December 2011 = 12,487 12,487 -
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2 4l B A B (%) 2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.5 axhbe e R AEZ A FEME (8) 2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
ENE) The Bank
B fafi
Assets Liabilities
ot i 8
2%
— M HER %
Available- fiik
for-sale SMITR
securities Derivative
- Equity financial
securities instruments
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000
RZO0——#—H—H At 1 January 2011 277,055 (171,400)
e iRy Total gains recognised in
— R4 — Profit or loss - 158,733
— Hith 2l s — Other comprehensive income 12,504 _
RZO——#+-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 289,559 (12,667)
BRZO—#+ZH=1+—H Total gains for the year
FrtshifEeE / Ak included in profit or loss for
HEHERFEREN assets/liabilities held at
2t 4e 31 December 2011 - 21,017
RZO——#+ZA=1+—H Total gains for the year
A EE > HEf included in other comprehensive
FERAE A 2 i aR N income for assets held at

g AR 31 December 2011 12,504 =
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Effect of changes in significant non-observable assumptions to
reasonably possibly alternatives

The fair value of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances,
measured using valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are
not supported by prices from observable current market transactions in
the same instrument and are not based on observable market data. The
following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to reasonable possible
alternative assumptions due to parallel movement of plus or minus 10%
of the fair value.

A The Group
i 2 T VL i ) 2
Effect on other
comprehensive income
H R EH) A F 52 8
Favourable Unfavourable
T i T
HKS$°000 HK$’000
—O—Z4 2012
293 Assets
Ayl 2 S g Available-for-sale securities 25,673 (25,673)
A7 The Bank
i 2 WL i 1 2
Effect on other
comprehensive income
HREH) A F 52 8
Favourable Unfavourable
BT i
HKS$°000 HK$’000
—O—Z4 2012
B Assets

] it 2 S Available-for-sale securities 24,295 (24,295)
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)

2.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

A H The Group
oA 2 T i 2 1Y R B
Weas /(1R 12 Effect on other
Effect on profit/(loss) comprehensive income
HRIRE  RASE HAEE RS
Favourable  Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
T T BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—O——# 2011
R Assets
Al 2 S g Available-for-sale securities — — 30,326 (30,326)
AE Liabilities
frtbemTH Derivative financial instruments 1,267 (1,267) - -
ENF) The Bank
oA 2 T i 2 1Y R
Weas /(1R (% Effect on other
Effect on profit/(loss) comprehensive income
HREY  RAEH AR RS
Favourable  Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—O——# 2011
B Assets
Al 2 g Available-for-sale securities — — 28,956 (28,956)
=X Liabilities
frtb e TH Derivative financial instruments 1,267 (1,267) - -
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2 Financial risk management (Continued)
2.6 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are as follows:

—  To comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital)
Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance;

—  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders;

—  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

— To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

The Hong Kong Banking Ordinance requires each bank or banking group
to maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted assets
(the capital adequacy ratio) at or above the minimum of 8%. Subsidiaries
of the Group are also subject to statutory capital requirements from other
regulatory authorities, including the Securities and Futures Commission
and Office of the Commissioner of Insurance.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk
weights as defined in the Banking (Capital) Rules according to the nature
of and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated
with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible
collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance
sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent
nature of the potential losses.

Capital adequacy and the use of capital are monitored on a regular basis
by the Group’s management. The Group applies an internal trigger capital
adequacy ratio which is well above the minimum statutory requirement
as an indicator for managing the capital adequacy. In addition, the Group
will assess the impact on its capital adequacy ratio when there are new
products, new investments or any significant transactions.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with
all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 and are well above the minimum required
ratio set by the HKMA.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policy

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on
a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that
portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers
in a group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience. Changes in the assumptions used would affect the
reported impairment allowances on loans and advances.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values,
they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the department that created them to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both
own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management
to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors would
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policy (Continued)

(c) Impairment of available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity
securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when
available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securities are impaired.
This determination requires judgment. In making this judgment, the
Group evaluates among other factors, the duration and extent to which
the fair value of an investment has declined; and the credit quality of and
near-term business outlook for the investee or issuer, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flows.

(d) Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances —
for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be
required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale as such class
is deemed to have been tainted. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value instead of at amortised cost.

(e) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open market
basis. The fair values are assessed based on the capitalisation of the
net income for the properties using Investment Method of Valuation.
The contractual rental income and the expected future market rental
income after allowing for outgoings and maintenance requirements
are capitalised at observed market yields. The principal assumptions
underlying the estimation of market value are those related to: the receipt
of contractual rentals; expected future market rentals; void periods;
maintenance requirements; and observed market yields.

In addition, the valuations are also assessed by reference to comparable
market transactions as reported in the relevant market at similar
locations. Appropriate adjustments have been made on the values of
the subject properties for relevant factors, such as location difference,
building age, time of transaction, shop frontage and pedestrian flow, etc.

Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the fair
value of investment properties.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policy (Continued)

(f) Ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance
contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under
insurance contracts is one of the Group’s critical accounting estimates.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of loss
events that have been incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) to the Group
as of the end of the reporting period. The estimation of IBNR claims is
generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation
of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim events is available. IBNR claims may not be
apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gives rise to
the claim has happened.

Estimation of the ultimate cost of certain liability claims can be a
complex process. There are several sources of uncertainty that need
to be considered in the estimating of the liability that the Group will
ultimately pay for such claims. In particular, the claims arising from the
employees’ compensation and other liability policies can be longer in
tail and difficult to estimate. The Group has appointed an independent
actuary to estimate the claim liabilities using established actuarial
methodologies. The methodologies are statistical in nature and can be
affected by various factors. The more significant factors that can affect
the reliability of the liability estimation include jurisprudence that can
broaden the intent and scope coverage of the protections offered in the
insurance contracts issued by the Group, the extent to which actual claim
results differ from historical experience and the time lag between the
occurrence of the event and the report of such claim to the Group.

(g) Staff retirement scheme

Actuarial assumptions are made in valuing future pension obligations as
set out in note 13. There is uncertainty that these assumptions will hold
true in the future. They are reviewed periodically and are updated where
necessary.

(h) Provisions
Judgment has been exercised in determining the amount which may be

payable to customers in respect of complaints or legal claims arising
from the sale of investment products.
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4 2 WA 4 Interest income
—~0—= —O0—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
e A7 3 <5 I A ] 3 Cash and balances with banks 1,638,760 1,080,660
RN E Investments in securities
— Eian] — listed 308,796 309,906
— JE ETH AT — unlisted 214,101 356,703
LA Advances to customers 2,661,637 2,052,302
Hofts Others 262,153 52,117
5,085,447 3,851,688
FILE SO 4% 4 il A AN A A T Interest income is analysed by types of financial assets as follows:
—~0—= —O0—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
KA TPAEEREA Financial assets that are not at fair value through
BiSEZ S REE profit or loss 4,762,961 3,765,153
FHIEEER B &S5 Trading securities 40,268 21,309
A FEE RS A Financial assets designated at fair value through
Hit k2 & RlE = profit or loss 22,834 18,745
F| R 35 8 & 4 Interest rate swaps 259,384 46,481

5,085,447 3,851,688

AE7EF) B A N A B E S EPrdni#  Included in interest income is unwinding of discount on impaired assets
[ ) B g A HE #55.327,0007C (O ——  of HK$5,327,000 (2011: HK$12,623,000).
A H5612,623,0000T) ©
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5 #E3Z H 5 Interest expense

—0== —0o——

2012 2011
T wT o
HK$°000 HK$°000

Deposits and balances from bank and

[F ZEF R R F A7k deposits from customers 1,938,286 1,467,123
AR AR NBREEREZ Certificates of deposit issued which are

BT Z A7 wholly repayable within 5 years 252,461 116,035
BT BB Subordinated debt issued 130,118 119,538
FiAt Others 260,931 60,427

2,581,796 1,763,123

FJE S H e B BB A0 BT N T Interest expense is analysed by types of financial liabilities as follows:

—0—= —~o——

2012 2011
oL wHT o
HK$°000 HK$°000

KLAATEERE AH R Financial liabilities that are not at fair value

2 AR AR through profit or loss 2,307,371 1,696,639
LA ERIE T 2 Al Trading liabilities 157 2,439
PAA-FAE (B 56 A H 42 iR Financial liabilities designated at fair value

ey =L through profit or loss 16,711 13,161
| R 1 & 4 Interest rate swaps 257,557 50,884

2,581,796 1,763,123
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6 NIk %5 E Kl A 6 Net fees and commission income
—0—= —0——
2012 2011
i T wHTr
HK$’000 HK$’000
5 e B A 4 e A Fees and commission income
o o A0 A T B RO Securities brokerage and investment services 174,423 208,935
s FI R 3685 Credit cards 99,329 90,526
HRGEEHR 2 RG24 Credit related fees and commission 166,713 152,540
H o Mg Trade finance 37,886 44,803
Hoph Z2 B SR AT 26T Other retail banking services 15,344 15,762
oAb AR E A Other fee income 58,416 50,564
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 552,111 563,130
R 2 J A 3 Fees and commission expenses
{5 R 3EH Credit cards (67,380) (59,805)
HC At I 5 S Other fee expenses (18,351) (17,253)
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 (85,731) (77,058)
%5 s B AR 4 A Net fees and commission income 466,380 486,072
He: Of which:
R B R EE E D
INTEEGSABGIRZ Net fees and commission income, other than amounts
TRERESAERESEZ included in determining the effective interest rate,
55 2 A 4 A arising from financial assets or financial liabilities
(REE R B BRA R that are not held for trading nor designated at fair
Z &) value through profit or loss
— MR & AR E A — fees and commission income 235,229 222,415
— MRps e R AR 45 — fees and commission expenses (59,510) (52,508)
AEEMAKEFHAEME L Net fees and commission income on trust and other
AL A 37 FE S I AR fiduciary activities where the Group holds or invests
Z s 2 B & A on behalf of its customers
— IRH & R E YA — fees and commission income 10,421 9,769

— s B B A 4 3 — fees and commission expenses (428) (425)
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income and charge for insurance

claims
—0—= —0——
2012 2011
BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
PREGEERA Insurance operating income
HagR Gross
HRARZ B AR L 400 Gross insurance premium written 755,992 682,763
o 7T PR 2 Al 2 o s Change in unearned premium provision (36,394) (52,222)
BT Z R B 4 B e Premium revenue arising from insurance
ZIREWA contracts issued 719,598 630,541
AR Reinsurance
I3 2 F AR Reinsurance premium outward (122,817) (135,081)
A B PR el 2 i Change in unearned premium provision (946) 25,354
CEGTZRBREHZ Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers arising
(7% CUN - SEELTIN from insurance contracts issued (123,763) (109,727)
(75 SETLUN Net earned premium income 595,835 520,814
HE VN Commission income 9,635 11,245
FAtYg A Other income 1,216 1,070
iES Commission expenses (94,071) (82,446)
512,615 450,683
PR R (GERE) Charge for insurance claims (note)
HagR Gross
TR RE Gross claims paid (344,218) (325,717)
CERZREME - C8AEME
KB RE KA Change in reported claims, IBNR and
(PG other insurance provision (108,935) (63,831)
(453,153) (389,548)
PR Reinsurance
e el P 4 R 2 R AE Claims recovered from reinsurers 30,350 11,584
CERZRE  CBEMH
F Bz RE KA Change in reported claims, IBNR and
R B Al < Bl other insurance provision 24,975 10,503
55,325 22,087
e Total claims incurred (397,828) (367,461)
- SEA PN Net insurance operating income 114,787 83,222

AERE PR R M AR SR I DR B R
RIEZEEFEEEAR THRR

B SZ -

Note:

Charge for insurance claims represents net claims incurred on the Group’s
insurance business and the related claims settlement expenses.
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8 WA 5 W Ak

8 Net trading gain

—O0== —0——
2012 2011
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FEHER®RZ
WAF IR (k1) Net gain/(loss) from trading securities 31,673 (14,381)
DAAPEE RS AR iR Net gain arising from financial instruments
R T H iR designated at fair value through profit or loss 27,113 5,505
i & T HEH s Net gain arising from derivative financial instruments 56,314 256,207
A HE B T A Net gain from foreign exchange trading 286,358 356,350
401,458 603,681
9 Hibh&EEWA 9 Other operating income
—0o—= —O0——
2012 2011
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
J B A Dividend income
— bR — Listed equity securities 16,047 16,434
— Ik bt emERE 2 — Unlisted equity securities 13,532 9,956
BEWEZHEBA
SR HHE B 5
5 %°25,982,00070 Rental income from investment properties
(ZO——4F: less direct outgoings of HK$25,982,000
7 430,590,000 %) (2011: HK$30,590,000) 110,483 99,894
PRAE FRAH 42 1 U s Net rental income on safe deposit boxes 27,629 26,040
HoA Others 50,737 20,170
218,428 172,494
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10 B 10 Operating expenses
—~O0—= —O0—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
ANFE#EH Staff costs
— Hr e M HAh NS — Salaries and other costs 735,859 672,187
— B RAE A S — Retirement benefit costs 37,931 21,611
55 i S i Premises and equipment expenses,
NELFE TS excluding depreciation
— VM & — Rental of premises 63,864 39,772
— HAts — Others 47,781 38,969
e Depreciation
— AW 3 S Mg — Other properties and equipment
(71 HE30) (note 30) 79,647 75,196
— FHE T (FERE29) — Leasehold land (note 29) 4,544 4,545
4 T ZES Advertising and business promotion 38,621 46,297
T F B i B Electronic data processing 45,838 44,509
TR A% S 2l Postage and communications 36,158 32,252
CH K B Printing and stationery 13,435 13,109
1% BT 4 Auditors’ remuneration 5,003 4,156
7K Water and electricity 15,352 12,711
Y E E X ¢ Legal and professional fee 81,761 66,914
5 i e Insurance 12,312 10,400
i 75 R BH 22 Securities related expenses 6,776 8,173
Hofte Others 114,723 57,326

1,339,605 1,148,127

11 f5 B4R Z WA (I138%), o 38

11 Impairment (written back on)/charge for credit losses

—0—= —0o——

2012 2011
oL ET o
HK$°000 HK$°000

BAE (4 5k
— B RS
— At 2 R

Impairment (written back)/losses on

— loans and advances and accrued interest

— available-for-sale securities

(6,982) 89,348
2,626 28,020

(4,356) 117,368
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115 EEEZ WM (HB), #@E n Impairment (written back on)/charge for credit losses
(%) (Continued)

(a) SOk K EGT A B (IR0 48) 7 dE 2R (a) Impairment (written back)/losses on loans and advances and

accrued interest

—0—= —o——

2012 2011
T wT o
HK$°000 HK$°000

18 A B Ay Individually assessed
— i — new allowances 24,235 71,896
— 15[ — releases (37,307) (8,389)
— g [ml — recoveries 297) (2,776)
(13,369) 60,731
SR Gl Collectively assessed
— Wi — new allowances 29,517 54,254
— $¥ [ — releases (21,441) (23,951)
— g [ml — recoveries (1,689) (1,686)
6,387 28,617
TEW %5 0% (BE8]) 4% Net (release)/charge to the income statement (6,982) 89,348
(b) VI 4 B8 27 Z AR 1B 2R (b) Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities
—0o—= — 00—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
R A A Individually assessed

— i — new allowances 2,626 28,020
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12 Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to directors of the
Bank during the year are as follows:

—0== — 00—

2012 2011

BT BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

4 Fees 850 810
Brar > (AL S A B Salaries, bonus and other allowances 14,773 16,317
B PR )k 3k Retirement benefits contribution 1,092 1,121
16,715 18,248

13 13 B 2B p s A st

ASE B Iy A AT 2 Wk B A DU TR BB AR
REAEEE o 55 By ARAT — ] B T 2 ] 2 B
BBCA — ARk # o w0 THE BB
RAgFI s E > Ho AR E (R 2
[azat #]) G045 — {57 48 A w35 4y
Lo 5 7 R akat B Ay > HoAb A —
TE % S A AR AR & —TH T i 1
BT % 2 5 ket 81 & — T 5 i i
ARl o FLA A 2 7 HE 2 1 B 3 AT A
—WPERY SR > 2 0% w8 A 5 E K
ARGy B 2 N R A e R o

TE 5% #1053 0 > AN 4R E
5 H TGS Z AWM A FH10%
E R R o A5 42 B 3 5% 518 5 E R
HB A 2 A FCARE AT RE R B T A5 A
Bt T Al B A% w1 R O SE B A A 4
T o A AE B Cfl 2 S R A
R W N5,231,0000C (O ——4F @ i
#4,057,00070) ° RFELEH > KREHZ
T A 2K AT AR £ A A Bl 2 3 K 4R AE
5 W %249.0000C (O — —4F ¢ # W
1,132,0007C) ° JA4E&S H - Sif M6 R A5 i
H(ZO——4F : #) -

AL ) 3 50 B 4 R 2 (IR i B i
o ) A A T VR B > AR B5 A K
BEAZAEMARZ%E > MABA
BRI 20,0000 45 LR -

TAAE R B2 5 A S R OR Ay 2w &
50 R 4 w1 ] 2 Ak 3R 2 v 629,282,000
JG (O ——4F : #¥25,871,00078) °

13 Staff retirement schemes

The Group operates four staff retirement schemes for the staff of the
Bank and an MPF scheme for the staff of a subsidiary of the Bank.
The four staff retirement schemes comprise a principal scheme (the
“Scheme”) which includes a defined benefit (“DB”) section and a
defined contribution (“DC”) section, a defined benefit pension scheme,
a defined contribution scheme for overseas employees and an MPF
scheme. All new Hong Kong employed staff members who join the Bank
are offered a one-off choice between the DC section of the Scheme and
the MPF scheme.

Under the DC section of the Scheme, the Group is required to contribute
10% of the monthly salary of the members who opted for the DC
arrangement. The Group’s contributions to the DC section of this Scheme
may be reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totaling HK$5,231,000 (2011: HK$4,057,000) were utilised
during the year. The unutilised forfeited contributions at the year end
amounted to HK$249,000 (2011: HK$1,132,000) which are available to
reduce future contributions. No contributions were payable at the year
end (2011: Nil).

The Group’s contributions to the MPF schemes are based on 5% of the
monthly relevant income of each employee up to a maximum monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000 in accordance with the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The contributions to schemes with defined contribution arrangements and
the MPF schemes during the year amounted to HK$29,282,000 (2011:
HK$25,871,000) in aggregate.
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13 ok E A8 A A 3 ()

% wt #1055 Am A Ry e T — R E AR
AR ARG B (FE[R] 2 08 7 T3% 45 1B IRkt
B 1) 2B RS S A E AT AL R S
BARGHH 2 B B AR E - 2RI
At BRI BB 2 R B & 1F 2 it S AR A
ZFEHE > A BRYE A A o

5% 55 B RET B B 9 — R 2K A (B R
ZO—ZHEtTZH=+—H  mEER
HRE AN TBARAR > HES R
FemEEera LG REFES
FRI 2 8 r AT 2 s w e RIS 199
YEREA, > 5% R IRET 8 2 A 48 F| 2675
1) BRL(EL B IR S o A 3 DA T8 R 1 B B RE v
A o MEMEH > FZERIRGFIEI 2R
IKFEE109% (O ——4F : 104%) °

RZO—"H+"A=t—HILZHE
PSR DR AR 2 RN T

13 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

For the DB section of the Scheme and the defined benefit pension
scheme (collectively referred to as the “Plan”), the contributions are
determined based on periodic valuations by qualified actuaries of the
assets and liabilities of the Plan. The Plan provides benefits based on
members’ final salary. The costs are solely funded by the Group.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was performed in accordance
with HKAS 19 issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants as at 31 December 2012 by Towers Watson Hong Kong
Limited, a professional actuarial firm, who have among their staff
Fellows of the Actuarial Society of Hong Kong. The present values of
the defined benefit obligation and current service cost of the Plan are
calculated based on the projected unit credit method. At the valuation
date, the Plan had a funding level of 109% (2011: 104%).

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012 are analysed as follows:

—0== — 00—
2012 2011
il BT T
HKS$’°000 HK$’000
EAFEY NS )yl
INFAEE Fair value of Plan assets 520,144 489,992
C 2B EmAFEH 2 BIEH  Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation (478,205) (471,762)
KR 2GR R Unrecognised actuarial losses 156,917 189,275
i~ BAES IR DL R N HERR 2 Net asset recognised in the statement of
B E R AR financial position 198,856 207,505

DAy 2 B TR 2 R — R AR
[\ o b0 JH < N A 78 B BOR AR AR A
A WS R 2 B 0 B B o PR R AR
AR BB R A 4 AR 5 £ 3t A B R Al
ARG A A T S 2 AL - B — O —
SAEAG R E R RAE AR EE

24,
wA °

A portion of the above asset is expected to be recovered after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from
the amounts receivable in the next twelve months, as future contributions
will also relate to future services rendered and future changes in
actuarial assumptions and market conditions. No contribution to the Plan
is expected to be paid in 2013.
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13 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

—0—= —O0—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
JIRHS AR Current service cost (19,084) (16,333)
) B R AR Interest cost (6,937) (11,502)
T2 S R B A
2 [ Expected return on Plan assets 30,665 32,521
TR RR 2 HG R 4R 1 8 Net actuarial losses recognised (13,293) (426)
A0, 55 7E A R AR RAE A1) AR Net (expense)/income for the year included in retirement
Z () IR AR benefit costs (8,649) 4,260

BE_O——_H+_H=+—HILF
BE > S RRE R E 2 B 3R 5

#60,312,0007C (—.O ——4F : iR

44,733,0007T) °

FERNFERARB Z EB T

The actual return on Plan assets for the year ended 31 December 2012
was HK$60,312,000 (2011: a loss of HK$44,733,000).

The movements in the defined benefit obligation during the year are as

follows:
—0o—= —O0——
2012 2011
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
—H—HZ R e Present value of obligation
H(H at 1 January 471,762 391,823
lii&7 3% Current service cost 19,084 16,333
FILE B A Interest cost 6,937 11,502
B R AR I S Actual benefits paid (30,160) (25,471)
KEkE (k) Actuarial loss/(gain) 10,582 77,575
RT_A=+—HZ
B L E AR F RS Actual obligation at 31 December 478,205 471,762
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13 Bk BB Ok A st 30 (A7) 13 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)
FENZERKGI B EEATEMEZ2E  The movements in the fair value of the Plan assets during the year are as
mr follows:
—O0—= —O0——
2012 2011

T wT o
HK$’000 HK$°000

i —H— H3Z 5 B IR5THH Fair value of Plan assets

HEZ N FEE at 1 January 489,992 560,196
T R% S R AR B o

PACIE Expected return on Plan assets 30,665 32,521
BB S Actual benefits paid (30,160) (25,471)
KE (1) ke Actuarial (loss)/gain 29,647 (77,254)

i S oy el B £

BIRFHEIE E 2 AN FE(E  Fair value of Plan assets at 31 December 520,144 489,992
FZAE R ARG S E E IR The major categories of the Plan assets are as follows:
—O== —O0——
2012 2011

BT BT

HK$°000 % HK$’000 %
JRCHE RS J5 Equities 344,720 66.3 305,115 62.3
(FeiE e Bonds 87,361 16.8 97,482 19.9
B Cash 88,063 16.9 87,395 17.8
A Total 520,144 100.0 489,992 100.0
W TO— 4> ARG B Z EEM  The amount of the Plan assets includes deposits with the Bank of

FEAFTAE AT Z A7 4B %567,245,000  HK$67,245,000 in 2012 (2011: HK$69,708,000).
JG (ZO——4 : #7%69,708,00070) °
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13 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the valuation are as
follows:

—0o—= —O0——
2012 2011
% %
Ex Discount rate
— BRI T — Retirement benefit scheme 0.7 1.5
— k3w # — Pension scheme 0.1 0.5
EAFELINGE (Pa =3 R Long-term average return on
7 R Plan assets
— BRI T — Retirement benefit scheme 6.5 6.5
— 3t # — Pension scheme 1.5 1.5
Wt B 2 FE AR RIS 2 Long-term average rate of salary increase for
= HH O ) 35 B - e the DB section of the Scheme 5.0 5.0
R ARG 2 Pension increase rate for the defined benefit
AR R4 1 R pension scheme 3.0 3.0

BEz_o——HFEER_O0—H+_H=
B Il & 0 B -5 = 1 e o= R (S
R o

14 i3
(a) &AW R 2 BLHATT ¢

There was no curtailment or settlement impact for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.

14 Income tax

(a) Taxation charged in the consolidated income statement represents:

£l

Restated

—0o—= —O0——
2012 2011
BT BT T
HKS$’°000 HK$°000

AIIBLIH Current taxation:
— F s A5G — Hong Kong profits tax 278,092 292,262
— Under provision of taxation in respect of
— FRAF MR R 2 prior years 6,972 1,209
285,064 293,471
— AR IE — Overseas taxation 121,543 86,823
IRIERLIH Deferred taxation:
—HREYEFH — Relating to the origination and reversal of
JEE LB T s (] temporary differences 20,595 9,980
427,202 390,274

7 W F 15 B C 4% A 48 B2 Al T B ST v A1)
Ph B #16.5% (Z O — — 4 : 16.5%)7T
B o Mg B TE O 4 A 4E G BB ST B
I DA A 4 [0 SE S BT 7E Hh 35 AT 0 i 2 Bl %
G

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year is calculated at
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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14 Fifs Bt (%)

(b) 745 1 A7 B BBt i i 1) < Fd T Bl A
PR A 2 B AT 5 2 B B

14 Income tax (Continued)

(b) The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

ZRWT - Kong as follows:
£
Restated
—~0—= —O0—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
o B T Y ) Profit before taxation 2,560,689 2,257,393
PABEE16.5% (. O——4F : Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
16.5%)7T 5 (2011: 16.5%) 422,514 372,470
ANH] HIB 2 3 B B IE Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
a4 taxation purposes 2,543 10,926
AT B 2 A BB TH Tax effect of income not subject
2 to taxation (41,976) (21,057)
L HA 5] R AN [R] Bl 2R Effect of different taxation rates in
a4 - other tax jurisdictions 32,425 22,128
TR MRS B Under provision of taxation in respect of prior years 6,972 1,209
RMERFIIA R 2 B Effect of unrecognised tax loss (393) 194
HAth Others 5,117 4,404
RG) Income tax 427,202 390,274
(c) At 4 T i o 19 45 AL ER 0 1Y r 5B (¢) The income tax effects relating to components of other comprehensive
L income are as follows:
=3
Restated
~0—= —o——
2012 2011
B &8 BEeHE  BlEEeH BE B
Before- P {3 Net-of- Before- ikEy Net-of-
tax Income tax tax Income tax
amount tax amount amount tax amount
T T WWTx W% Te WWTrx E¥TI
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
Surplus on revaluation of
FEFEE 2 Bk bank premises - - - 378 378
Ak R S Changes in fair value of
N B R available-for-sale securities 81,046 (8,231) 72,815 (137,539) 7,532 (130,007)
Transfer to income statement
& B T4 B on disposal of available-for-sale
A i £ securities (10,044) - (10,044)  (10,099) = (10,099)
Transfer to income statement on
P T A 2 ek impairment of available-for-sale
[FL YN €T E securities 2,626 - 2,626 28,020 = 28,020
MERL M A ) 2 [ff  Share of associate’s reserves 99 - 99 (62) (62)
JHE Ao ] 2 ) Share of jointly controlled entities’
2 fibifhe reserves 462 - 462 (125) - (125)
Other comprehensive income
A R A A T for the year 74,189 (8,231) 65,958  (119,427) 7,532 (111,895)
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15 JBE 3 A %z ) 15 Profit attributable to shareholders

JE HROME Ak 35 A P4 HE %52,075,384,000  The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
TP AT RN (O ——44%  statements of the Bank to the extent of HK$2,075,384,000 (2011

#4l : #%1,955,056,00000) ° restated: HK$1,955,056,000).
16 BEAE I & B 0 W& & 16 Cash and short-term funds
A Ny
The Group The Bank
—0—= =0—= —0—= —0——
2012 2011 2012 2011

BT i T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

EAET 4 R AEE 2 Cash and balances with banks 2,235,018 2,914,610 1,812,893 2,883,071
A7 T B ER AT Balances with central bank 5,192,998 4,270,881 5,192,998 4,270,881
s HR A7 iR 2 Money at call and short notice 20,832,603 12,407,618 20,641,948 12,407,618

28,260,619 19,593,109 27,647,839 19,561,570

oo ——"H+_"H=+—H . 3%4ME The balances with central bank that are subject to exchange control and
B Ko vk S PR I b 4847457 B regulatory restrictions amounted to HK$1,712,591,000 at 31 December
Ve BT 712,591,0007C (O — —4F : #2012 (2011: HK$1,478,541,000).

#51,478,541,0007T) °

17 R E M EB R B 17 Placements with and loans and advances to banks
A4 PN iy
The Group The Bank
—0== —O0— —0—= —_O0O—
2012 2011 2012 2011

W T oL WWT W T
HK$°000 HKS$°000  HK$’000 HK$°000

[7] 2£ & WA 3K Placements with banks 7,622,779 3,265,406 7,326,612 2,877,080
A SE B Gross loans and advances to banks 16,958,754 24,723,053 16,958,754 24,723,053

24,581,533 27,988,459 24,285,366 27,600,133
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18 FEEE M id 2 # %5 18 Trading securities
A4 N}
The Group The Bank
—0== —o—— —0—== —0——
2012 2011 2012 2011

BT M Tou T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

INEE At fair value:
B E S Debt securities
— &b — Listed in Hong Kong 419,175 17,775 419,175 17,775
— WA BTl — Listed outside Hong Kong 13,484 210,584 13,484 210,584
— kT — Unlisted 2,992,987 4,394,525 2,992,987 4,394,525
3,425,646 4,622,884 3,425,646 4,622,884
R AERE 7 Equity securities
—HE LW — Listed in Hong Kong 97,618 865 - =
(s ] — Listed outside Hong Kong 55,680 — -
153,298 865 - —
JRCREAR T B Equity investment fund
— Fis bl — Listed in Hong Kong 6,321 23 -
— gAh bl — Listed outside Hong Kong 3,633 = - =
9,954 23 -

3,588,898 4,623,772 3,425,646 4,622,884

AL H ENE)
The Group The Bank
—0== —0== —0== —O0o——
2012 2011 2012 2011

W T U VT T U T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

Included within debt

B securities are:
B % (55 Treasury bills (including
HEAB TR Exchange Fund Bills) 2,559,802 3,257,483 2,559,802 3,257,483
Ho At AT w6 75 Other debt securities 865,844 1,365,401 865,844 1,365,401
3,425,646 4,622,884 3,425,646 4,622,884
HEEE MRz &S KB NG Trading securities are analysed by issuer as follows:
A YN )
The Group The Bank
—0—= —O0O—— —0o—= —O0——
2012 2011 2012 2011

BT T U T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

Central governments and

BN B SR AT central banks 2,924,114 4,102,830 2,924,114 4,102,830
I Public sector entities 4,528 4,577 4,521 4,568
SRAT AN HoAth 4 il Banks and other financial

Bt institutions 27,780 32,616 20,540 32,580
2 Corporate entities 632,476 483,749 476,471 482,906

3,588,898 4,623,772 3,425,646 4,622,884
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19 Derivative financial instruments

The following is a summary of the notional or contractual amounts,
fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of each significant type of
derivatives, without taking into account the effects of bilateral netting

arrangements:
A M R AT The Group and the Bank
4%/ AFRE %%/ WFRE
Y ole Fair values x| Fair values
Notional/ Notional/
contractual 2974 fiff  contractual <4 =L
amount Assets  Liabilities amount Assets  Liabilities
—0== Z0== Z0== Z0=— Z0=— Z0——
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
EWTFr  wWTx  B%Tx BT %I BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FEEEMEZAETH Derivatives held for trading
INEES 4 Exchange rate contracts
HIAH Forward contracts 2,358,117 15,445 12,535 13,370,484 129,651 108,169
g zb Currency swaps 11,453,704 46,773 33,706 15,978,798 121,369 157,116
B g Cross currency interest rate swaps 6,156,548 1,987 1377 = = -
Tt Options written 493,523 - 2,072 649,556 = 3,437
YN Options purchased 525,736 2,271 - 638,333 3,468 =
20,987,628 66,476 49,690 30,637,171 254,488 268,722
FEEH Interest rate contracts
2 4 1 Interest rate swaps 6,065,331 10,539 15346 5,553,473 2,938 12,623
FHEA %) Equity contracts
T it 4 Options written 92,512 - 1,058 56,024 = 424
Jile A\ S Options purchased 92,512 1,058 - 56,024 424 =
185,024 1,058 1,058 112,048 424 424
Derivatives managed in
A2 DL P conjunction with financial
ik &M TR instruments designated
ZHikE TR at fair value through profit or loss
INEES 4 Exchange rate contracts
el il Cross currency interest rate swaps - - - 106,000 = 81
FRAH) Interest rate contracts
| ZR i Interest rate swaps 1,127,843 23,711 23,214 1,683,493 17,521 39,216
RHER 4 Equity contracts
i 1A Options written - - — 59,066 _ 2,168
28,365,826 101,784 89,308 38,151,251 275,371 323,234

145
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19 i T (4)

HAXZSH ERHRATHEF AERS S
WZERFAREMAANEM TARE - m
Fofth 55 52 5 T A DL ph A 4R B 2 T 35
JEg o T R E B ARE R

19 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

The trading transactions are mainly positions arising from the execution
of trade orders from customers or transactions taken to hedge these
positions. The other trading transactions are used to hedge the
Group’s own exposure to market risks as part of its asset and liability
management.

A ] B A AT
The Group and the Bank
—0—= —~ 00—
2012 2011
W T BT
HK$’000 HK$°000

EREYN e e Credit risk weighted amount
HNES 4 Exchange rate contracts 134,649 348,029
MEEH Interest rate contracts 16,451 15,049
JHE G # Equity contracts 4,615 3,327

155,715 366,405

WS THZ GHEMABRRER AR
T & > WAMRGEEB KD -
T TSGR~ e S HE B AR D B - AT
LT AR AR (EE) SR (&
i) - i emEREXKERZ A TFHEE
AR AT BEIRF A R A -

{5 £ o By b < R AR 4B A U AT 3
CEA) B W > A eI HB
PG T 2 B K% e T E 2 F
SR BRI EE A o PR BB B /0%
£150% °

The contractual amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period and they
do not represent amounts at risks. The derivative instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or equity prices relative
to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets
and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount depends on
the status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of the
instrument. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%.
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20 A FEMAF ABAERRZ &B 20 Financial assets designated at fair value through profit
& or loss

A AR M A7
The Group The Bank
—O0—= 00— —0—= —O0——
2012 2011 2012 2011

BT i T ki
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

NFAB(E At fair value:

li=vrgces Debt securities
— & bl — Listed in Hong Kong 369,493 406,090 369,493 406,090
— g BTl — Listed outside Hong Kong 243,109 271,821 241,499 270,221
— b — Unlisted - 169,966 - 169,966

612,602 847,877 610,992 846,277

DIANTFEEAABEIEZ &R EE > B Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are

BT NE analysed by issuer as follows:
A4 H Y NF)
The Group The Bank
—O0—= —O0—— —0== —0==
2012 2011 2012 2011

W T oL WwWT W T
HK$°000 HK$°000  HK$’000 HK$°000

SRAT AN Ath 2 Banks and other financial
ik institutions 495,667 655,039 494,057 653,439
12 Corporate entities 116,935 192,838 116,935 192,838

612,602 847,877 610,992 846,277
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21 Wit B 2 i R 21 Available-for-sale securities
AAE M YN )
The Group The Bank
—~0—= O —~O0O—= —O0O—
2012 2011 2012 2011

BT i T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

INEA(E At fair value:
&5 i 55 Debt securities
— A b — Listed outside Hong Kong 5,632,191 6,850,661 5,632,191 6,850,661
— s b — Listed in Hong Kong 287,879 - 287,879 -
—JE LT — Unlisted 6,428,629 8,904,687 6,428,629 8,904,687
12,348,699 15,755,348 12,348,699 15,755,348
JBCHE 7% 55 Equity securities
— & bl — Listed in Hong Kong 384,294 411,529 214,118 176,909
—JE LT — Unlisted 330,723 354,275 316,944 340,573
715,017 765,804 531,062 517,482
JRMEH & B Equity investment fund
— & Ll — Listed in Hong Kong 22,683 17,999 22,683 17,999
13,086,399 16,539,151 12,902,444 16,290,829
N y.NT)
The Group The Bank
—0—= —0o—— ~—0—== =0==
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT oo it T BT Wi
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFE R Included within debt securities are:
il 2 fF s R Certificates of deposit held with
WA remaining maturity of:
— —@ASUT — Up to 1 month - 355,336 - 355,336
——@HA EE=MH - 1-3 months 120,788 300,107 120,788 300,107
—=MHLI EZE—4  —3-12 months 399,948 414,151 399,948 414,151
— —4ED EE R — 1-5 years 4,541,408 1,772,702 4,541,408 1,772,702
5,062,144 2,842,296 5,062,144 2,842,296
HAbfE % Other debt securities 7,286,555 12,913,052 7,286,555 12,913,052

12,348,699 15,755,348 12,348,699 15,755,348
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21 Available-for-sale securities (Continued)

Available-for-sale securities are analysed by issuer as follows:

AAE Y.
The Group The Bank
—~O0—= O —~O0—= —O0O—
2012 2011 2012 2011
T T T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
e BUR B Central governments and
HR YL R AT central banks 200,320 - 200,320 =
AT I oAt Banks and other financial
B Rl institutions 11,174,386 13,896,508 11,155,811 13,856,363
12k Corporate entities 1,711,693 2,642,643 1,546,313 2,434,466
13,086,399 16,539,151 12,902,444 16,290,829
22 FEIWE S 22 Held-to-maturity securities
A4 PN iy
The Group The Bank
—0== —O0— —0—= —O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011
Wi T T W T T
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
EifEBESFZ Listed debt securities,
e ALA at amortised cost:
— & b — Listed in Hong Kong 542,547 27,386 470,636 27,386
— YA BT — Listed outside Hong Kong 672,072 1,645,209 500,455 1,645,209
1,214,619 1,672,595 971,091 1,672,595
I L fETE R Unlisted debt securities,
S A A at amortised cost 1,916,037 1,143,429 1,819,725 1,131,391
3,130,656 2,816,024 2,790,816 2,803,986
W TE A Less: Impairment allowances (116,267) (116,499) (116,267) (116,499)
3,014,389 2,699,525 2,674,549 2,687,487
T EBERE Fair value of listed debt
INAE(E securities 1,196,261 1,638,915 945,085 1,638,915
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22 FHEIYRE () 22 Held-to-maturity securities (Continued)
AL H N )
The Group The Bank
—~0—= —0— —0—= —0——
2012 2011 2012 2011
T BT T T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BB B AR Included within debt securities are:
il 2 fF s Rk Certificates of deposit held with
WA remaining maturity of:
— =AU EZE—4F — 3-12 months - 237,568 - 237,568
HoA A 855 Other debt securities 3,014,389 2,461,957 2,674,549 2,449,919
3,014,389 2,699,525 2,674,549 2,687,487
FEFIMESE > HBETAR Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by issuer as follows:
A4 AT
The Group The Bank
—~0—= —O0— —0o—= —O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011

W T wWToL  WWTX W T
HK$°000 HKS$°000  HK$’000 HK$°000

o R BUR M Central governments and

H LR AT central banks 304,067 3,926 304,067 3,926
IS Public sector entities 12,047 11,509 12,047 11,509
SRAT S At Banks and other financial

4 Rl institutions 1,605,152 1,734,757 1,605,152 1,734,757
o Corporate entities 1,093,123 949,333 753,283 937,295

3,014,389 2,699,525 2,674,549 2,687,487

23 A 2 WEEEIEE 2 ¥1#E3X  The reconciliation of the allowance account for impairment on held-to-

R maturity securities is as follows:
ASE B B AT
The Group and the Bank
—0== —O==
2012 2011
W T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
w—H—H At 1 January 116,499 116,606
e 4 42 ) Exchange difference (232) (107)

R+ HA=+—H At 31 December 116,267 116,499
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23 Bk A R IR

23 Advances and other accounts

(a) Bk B fth W IH (a) Advances and other accounts
AL N F)
The Group The Bank
—0—= — 00— —0—= —O0——
2012 2011 2012 2011
W T BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
& F &% Advances to customers 88,133,525 79,329,116 88,170,891 79,298,881
W (GERE24) Impairment allowances (note 24)
— GEAEHE — Collectively assessed (177,629) (184,846) (176,706) (181,176)
— {534 _ Individually assessed (67,693) (132,711) (36,947) (101,763)
87,888,203 79,011,559 87,957,238 79,015,942
[HE X4 Trade bills 11,192,260 5,983,338 11,192,260 5,983,338
BHEMR (GERE24) Impairment allowances (note 24)
— EEA TR — Collectively assessed (17,499) (8,389) (17,499) (8,389)
11,174,761 5,974,949 11,174,761 5,974,949
JRE=H A Accrued interest 420,781 359,475 415,555 358,722
BEER (GERE24) Impairment allowances (note 24)
— {8 Al FE Al — Individually assessed ) (906) 4) (906)
420,777 358,569 415,551 357,816
H AR Other accounts
— M2 — Insurance premium receivable 176,837 187,189 67 84
— AR A [ — Recoverable from reinsurers
(FEFE36) (note 36) 289,784 269,142 - =
— JER F HoAth HETE — Accounts and other receivable 2,094,406 1,977,151 1,697,842 1,745,525
2,561,027 2,433 482 1,697,909 1,745,609
WEER (GERE24) Impairment allowances (note 24)
— (RS _ Individually assessed (32,512) (32,506) (32,512) (32,506)
2,528515 2,400,976 1,665,397 1,713,103
102,012,256 87,746,053 101,212,947 87,061,810
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23 Bk M HABMRIE (4)

(b) AlE fl B &AL A

EFEFRACFEMENELHBEHZ
BE > ot

23 Advances and other accounts (Continued)
(b) Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Advances to customers include investment in finance lease receivables
and hire purchase contracts, analysed as follows:

A4 .
The Group The Bank
—~0—= —O0O— —0—= —~O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T T BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
JRE 4% ¥ KRR Gross investment, receivable
— —4FER — Within one year 194,597 215,660 175,826 146,878
— After one year but within
— 4D LB HF five years 222,452 205,724 217,132 179,468
— HAER L — After five years 24,424 20,157 22,211 17,553
441,473 441,541 415,169 343,899
TR B B U A Unearned finance income (26,672) (28,426) (25,883) (24,173)
P& A Net investment 414,801 413,115 389,286 319,726

il B H B A5 2 2 BOE R T
T

The net investment in finance lease receivables and hire purchase
contracts is analysed as follows:

A4 A7
The Group The Bank
—~0—= —O0—— —O0—= —~O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011
EW T BT T W T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—4E N Within one year 178,786 198,169 160,726 132,816
After one year but within
—A4EDL B AR five years 211,591 194,789 206,349 169,357
HAERL | After five years 24,424 20,157 22,211 17,553
414,801 413,115 389,286 319,726

AEHEARTZAEHE RHBEEGLH
8 AR B 4R S 2 AR RS 2 AR E
(ZO——4 : ) -

AKE B JARAT 2 R ] Wi ] A A
B B #) 2 45 A U (H ME M & AR 0 Al B
7 #16,214,0007C (—- O — —4F : ¥k
19,009,0007C) K # %15,291,0000C (—
O——4F : #%15,339,00070) °

AL [ Je AR AT 2 AN BT i ] s A R AR
W A 49 22 A8 Tk (A e A 4 AR 4 Bl
# #2.375,000C (. O — —4F : ¥
3,430,0007C) K 5 "1,629,0000C (— O
——4F 1 #%2.482,0000C) °

No unguaranteed residual values were included in the gross investment
in finance lease receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group and
the Bank (2011: Nil).

The collective impairment allowances for uncollectible finance lease
receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group and the Bank
included in the impairment allowances for the receivables amounted
to HK$16,214,000 (2011: HK$19,009,000) and HK$15,291,000 (2011:
HK$15,339,000) respectively.

The individual impairment allowances for uncollectible finance lease
receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group and the Bank
included in the impairment allowances for the receivables amounted
to HK$2,375,000 (2011: HK$3,430,000) and HK$1,629,000 (2011:
HK$2,482,000) respectively.
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24 Bk B - fth R I Uk 1 YE 5 24 Impairment allowances on loans and advances and other
accounts
A H The Group
181 1] F: Ak &R AR
Individual  Collective L
assessment assessment Total

T T T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000

AR_O0O——_F—H—H At 1 January 2012 166,123 193,235 359,358
[P 2% ) Exchange adjustments (166) (81) (247)
=SNG Tl Amounts written off (47,349) (6,102) (53,451)
Wi ] 3 4F L B 2 B Recoveries of advances written off
(FERELL) in previous years (note 11) 297 1,689 1,986
e A R (R ok Net (release)/charge to income
(FERE1D) statement (note 11) (13,369) 6,387 (6,982)
HEAE 1) 7 5L (B 938 ] Unwind of discount on allowance
(FERE4) (note 4) (5,327) - (5,327)
RZO—ZfF+=H=1+—H At3l December 2012 100,209 195,128 295,337
A A HRIE N IR Deducted from:
P (5ER23(a)) Trade bills (note 23 (a)) - 17,499 17,499
PR TR Advances to customers and accrued
(5EF#23(a)) interest (note 23 (a)) 67,697 177,629 245,326
HABHRIA (F1FE23(a)) Other accounts (note 23 (a)) 32,512 - 32,512
100,209 195,128 295,337
Y. N5 The Bank
(G ERT A erhh .
Individual  Collective fat
assessment  assessment Total

W Tou W Tou W T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000

Bm_o0——_%—H—H At 1 January 2012 135,175 189,565 324,740
[P 2% ) % Exchange adjustments (166) (81) (247)
A IR SR Amounts written off (47,042) (6,102) (53,144)
Wi H] 3 4F L AR Recoveries of advances written off

ZEH in previous years 174 1,689 1,863
FEM A5 22T (HE ) Net (release)/charge to

R income statement (13,371) 9,134 4,237)
HEA 00 4 BB 4 [l Unwind of discount on allowance (5,307) - (5,307)
WO ——4F+"H=Z1+—H At 31 December 2012 69,463 194,205 263,668
N AIIRIE AR Deducted from:
PR (GERE23(a)) Trade bills (note 23 (a)) - 17,499 17,499
&SR R T RLE Advances to customers and

(5EF#23(a)) accrued interest (note 23 (a)) 36,951 176,706 213,657
HARRIE (3EfE23(a)) Other accounts (note 23 (a)) 32,512 - 32,512

69,463 194,205 263,668
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24 Bk R HAMMRIEWMMAYER (%) 24 Impairment allowances on loans and advances and other
accounts (Continued)

A H The Group
8 I FEAG Bra Rl
Individual Collective &F
assessment assessment Total
T T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
KZ_O0——4—H—H At 1 January 2011 162,298 167,966 330,264
[P 2% ) % Exchange adjustments 24 446 470
AR R Amounts written off (47,083) (5,480) (52,563)
Wi m] 3 4F L BB 2 Bk Recoveries of advances written off
(FER11) in previous years (note 11) 2,776 1,686 4,462
TE i 4 2% T A1 BR Net charge to income statement
(FERELL) (note 11) 60,731 28,617 89,348
HE AR 1) 7 B (B 438 ) Unwind of discount on allowance
(FhRe4) (note 4) (12,623) - (12,623)
R Oo——%+"H=1—H At31 December 2011 166,123 193,235 359,358
R HIERIE N AIER Deducted from:
PR GERE23(a) Trade bills (note 23 (a)) = 8,389 8,389
& PR T RE Advances to customers and
(5ER£23(a)) accrued interest (note 23 (a)) 133,617 184,846 318,463
HALKRIA (3EFE23(a)) Other accounts (note 23 (a)) 32,506 = 32,506
166,123 193,235 359,358
ENE) The Bank
8 I FEAG BRa Wl N
Individual ~ Collective &t
assessment assessment Total
T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W_O——4—H—H At 1 January 2011 153,649 155,720 309,369
[FEE 2% ) & Exchange adjustments 24 446 470
AR R Amounts written off (39,963) (5,480) (45,443)
Wiz [B] 13 4F EL AR Recoveries of advances written off
ZEH in previous years 2,739 1,686 4,425
TE W i R VR IR Net charge to income statement 31,337 37,193 68,530
WA B 47 B (R4 1] Unwind of discount on allowance (12,611) = (12,611)
W _Oo——4+_"H=4+—H At31 December 2011 135,175 189,565 324,740
AN IR N FIER Deducted from:
IR (5ERE23(a)) Trade bills (note 23 (a)) - 8,389 8,389
& PR KRR Advances to customers and
(523 ()) accrued interest (note 23 (a)) 102,669 181,176 283,845
HALKEIA (3EFE23(a)) Other accounts (note 23 (a)) 32,506 = 32,506

135,175 189,565 324,740
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PN )
The Bank
~0O—= —0——
2012 2011
T 0 T oT
HK$°000 HK$°000
I b SR 2 AE Unlisted shares, at cost 695,105 307,191

THIBATR - O——4F+—H=+—
H> WA EEMEAFR -

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries owned by the Bank at
31 December 2012:

CHITRCHRZ RA
Issued and paid up

share capital

5 I 1 £
Al Place of i % Nominal
K%  incorporation Number of  value per Principal

A Name bk and operation shares share FEFER activities

K R B A PR 2 ] Wing Lung Insurance 7 it Hong Kong 29,000,000 HKS$10 fRBrErs Insurance
Company Limited” underwriting

7K I il A PR R Wing Lung Capital ik Hong Kong 7,000,000 HKS1 B ¥ak#IE  Financial
Limited” consultancy

services

K B A PR A ) Wing Lung Finance Fit Hong Kong 2,500,000 HKS$10 f2{EEERES Provision of
Limited” financial services

K I A B R A T Wing Lung Asset Tk Hong Kong 1,000,000 HK$10 HEEH Asset
Management Limited” management

K & A PR Tl Wing Lung Futures Fit Hong Kong 800,000 HKS$10 HAEL AT Futures broking
Limited”

K B 5 A PR A w Wing Lung Securities 7 it Hong Kong 700,000 HKS$10 @884 RH Securities broking
Limited”

K RESRAT(F R A PR Al Wing Lung Bank Fit Hong Kong 300,000 HKS$10 fFit¥EH Trustee services
(Trustee) Limited”

T {5 e o P A R ) Wing Lung Insurance 7 it Hong Kong 250,000 HKS10 5 B i Insurance broking
Brokers Limited”

K AR R ] Wing Lung Agency ik Hong Kong 50,000 HKS$10 fRpftHn Insurance agency
Limited”

K ESRAT % FEALE A PR/ Rl* Wing Lung Bank Fit Hong Kong 1,000 HKS$10 Z#EAERE Nominee services
(Nominees) Limited”

KR SR PR A A Wing Lung Property 7 it Hong Kong 1,000 HKS$10 48 Property
Management Limited” management

AR BRA A Hongnet Limited* e Hong Kong 1,000 HK$10 & EH Investment

holding

Wingspan Incorporated” Wingspan Incorporated’ JZ[H] U.SA. 1,500,000 USS1 WA Property holding

Wing Lung Opportunities ~ Wing Lung Opportunities [ S Cayman Islands 65,000 USS$0.01 & EFH Investment

Fund Limited* Fund Limited* pii = holding

MR EEEESAZWE A -

©RAT AT N A B AT

82 76.9% >

[A] A AT Hoh — [ 7 2\ 5 A 199.2% %
By > ARG IR Z A R BT IR

86.1% °

#  Wholly and directly held by the Bank.

* The Bank directly holds 76.9% of the shares issued by the company, together
with 9.2% of the company’s shares held by one of the Bank’s subsidiaries, the
Group holds 86.1% of the shares issued by the company.
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26 A [n] ¥ i) B 75 HE £ 26 Interests in jointly controlled entities
A4 Ny
The Group The Bank
—~O0—= —O0—— —0o—= —O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011
EWT T BT BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
FE EHia SR 2 AN Unlisted shares, at cost - - 25,000 25,000
JREAG A Share of net assets 190,855 158,038 - -
BT ALEFERIE R Loans to jointly controlled
(FFRa) entities (note a) 14,337 37,600 14,337 37,600
205,192 195,638 39,337 62,600

R_O—H+A=+—HzEEH

The following is a list of the principal jointly controlled entities at 31

FIERI BN December 2012:
BEHEZ
B
Place of #EAHE#:  Proportion
313 incorporation Ownership of voting
A Name WY and operation interest power FEEFH Principal activities
SR PE A B A Bank Consortium 7k Hong Kong 13.33% 14.29% #RALRRGETE#]Z Provision of trustee,
Holding Limited* {556~ fTHUZ MR administration and
ERE custodian services for
retirement schemes
SR B AT PR 7]+ Joint Electronic 7 Hong Kong (FERED) (FERED) Mt P B)HE S Provision of ATM
Teller Services (note b) (note b)  Z A& MHs network services
Limited*
EBANFEREAMR/AR  Hong Kong Life & Hong Kong 16.67% 16.67% AFMREE¥EH  Life insurance
Insurance Limited business
SRR TR B PR BC Reinsurance A& Hong Kong 21.00% 21.00% FHRRREER Reinsurance business
Limited
i-Tech Solutions Limited* i-Tech Solutions A ik Hong Kong 50.00% 50.00% EFX/FEEM  Electronic document

Limited*
* AT B 2 LR R

RERE  (a) IR 40 R 2 6 R S A
St A TE P SE R A

(b) ALE A RIIERE Z — > i
IR BEA %A 7 2 PERIHERS o A
42 [ 5 A 5% 08 R BEAT T HA B K
B A BZ20%K HEA %
AT EIREE 22.88%HE 4 ©

*  Directly held by the Bank

Note:

bearing at normal commercial terms.

processing

(a) The loans to jointly controlled entities are secured and interest-

(b) The Group is one of the five founding members which together have
a controlling interest in the company. The Group holds 20% of the ‘A’
ordinary shares issued by the company to its founding members, and
is entitled to 2.88% of dividends declared.
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26 Interests in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Summary of financial information on jointly controlled entities is set out

below:
A % A
& E =L RE #5 Gross P
Assets Liabilities Equity income Net profit
T W¥Tx W¥Tx W¥WTx WwRTx
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HK$’000
ZO—Z4E 2012
100% 100 percent 8,084,269 6,676,190 1,408,079 2,080,539 240,325
A SE B 2 B R RE Group’s effective interest 1,315,681 1,124,826 190,855 337,930 40,715
—O——4F 2011
100% 100 percent 6,661,612 5,443,189 1,218,423 1,645,108 133,440
A4 [ 2 BT A R Group’s effective interest 1,059,461 901,423 158,038 257,282 17,302
27 Wi 4 v RE 5 27 Interest in an associate
AL
The Group
=0== —0o——
2012 2011
BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
AR & 7 VR A Share of net assets 5,218 4,901

R_O——#F+-_H=F+r—HK=0—
—E+ZHA=+—H > AT — BB
N FEV TR 2 B [ IE BT RS R 2

The cost of the unlisted shares in the associate at 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2011 held by a subsidiary of the Bank amounted to
HK$810,000. The particulars of the Group’s interest in an associate is as

A{E 7 HENE810,0007C  ALMPTFF 2 follows:
BARZERMT
Place of Particulars Interest

#EM%  incorporation Principal  FHHZEH  of issued i3 held
LA Name BEWY  and operation FEEH  activities TR shares held FFE ML indirectly
HELTRB  Professional ik Hong Kong  fREefCH  Insurance  3F EHiz ¥ Unlisted 27% 27%
REHRAR  Liability agency A A ordinary shares

Underwriting WW—7C  of HKSI each

Services Limited
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27 BiE A v R (%)
BN w2 B SRR T

27 Interest in an associate (Continued)

Summary of financial information on the associate is set out below:

LY &
HE =00 RE 5 Gross b |
Assets Liabilities Equity income Net profit
BT W¥Tx W¥Tx WwWTx Ww%Tx
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
—O—4 2012
100% 100 percent 105,872 86,544 19,328 18,433 8,769
AL B 2 B R A Group’s effective interest 28,585 23,367 5,218 4,977 2,243
—O——4F 2011
100% 100 percent 105,380 87,228 18,152 18,349 8,775
A S 2 B R A Group’s effective interest 28,453 23,552 4,901 4,954 2,242
28 EWE 28 Investment properties
A4 .
The Group The Bank
— 0 = —O0— —0—= —0——
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT o AT T BT
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
w—H—H At 1 January 2,167,240 2,267,500 2,264,537 2,356,000
AR AH (31FE30)  Reclassifications, net (note 30) (11,194) (159,711) (11,194) (157,839)
B N B (E I A Fair value gains on revaluation 140,554 59,451 152,914 66,376
wt—H=+—H At 31 December
(B AL ESIHR) (professional valuation) 2,296,600 2,167,240 2,406,257 2,264,537
AR AT
The Group The Bank
—0—= —o— —0—= —0——
2012 2011 2012 2011
i3 T iE o T i3 T BT
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
PR 7 s Z A A Leasehold properties in
W - Hong Kong:
— RIHL — Long-term leases
(4R E) (over 50 years) 1,730 1,570 95,330 83,370
— A — Medium-term leases
(+Z2HA4F) (between 10 to 50 years) 2,294,870 2,165,670 2,310,927 2,181,167
2,296,600 2,167,240 2,406,257 2,264,537




28 EWE ()

P LB S ot < A ER — O — —4F
ToHAZ=—H > UG E 5
W AN E AL > DL A (H J5 3k
(hnsg /) > BELAR B i 35 28 5 B A L
76 72 o 2 Y T Al 8y 2 57 0 o % ]
B A5 A SR W B AT AT > R B B A
T B2 i 2y o - R S (R 369 B
T 1 385 T K A A 2 A (L AR B

AL EARTT U EEHEEAAH BB E
Y HEFHEF ARRUE - HE
ZO——&£+t-A=Z+—HILEE 4
TETEFL A N 2 2 4 5 s 154,839,000
It (O——4 : #%4,121,00070) °

BH A=t —H - AAey 2 E
B2 RA B R WO B SR IH AR R
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28 Investment properties (Continued)

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2012 by
capitalising the net rental income using the Investment Method of
Valuation or as appropriate, by making reference to comparable market
transactions using the Comparison Method. The valuations were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors, A.G. Wilkinson & Associates,
who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued.

The Group and the Bank lease out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of up to 4 years.
Contingent rentals included in leases for the year ended 31 December
2012 amounted to HK$4,839,000 (2011: HK$4,121,000).

At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

AL B B A AT
The Group and the Bank
—0—=
2012
W T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

4 K i Land and buildings
— —EPIR — within one year 95,549 93,571
— — R EHFER — After one year but within five years 77,253 46,704
172,802 140,275
29 B L B4R 29 Interests in leasehold land

A Je A AT 2 A e AR 2 A
Hodgs (8 > FMRTEFE TR

The Group’s and the Bank’s interests in leasehold land represent prepaid
land lease premium and their net book values are analysed as follows:

L VN F)
The Group The Bank
—O0—= —_O0O— —O0o—= —O0——
2012 2011 2012 2011
i1 T T BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
Hw—H—H At 1 January 237,708 242,253 190,006 200,990
HE Disposals - = - (6,562)
FHE - g Depreciation of leasehold land
(31F210) (note 10) (4,544) (4,545) (4,393) (4,422)
mwt+t—_HA=+—H At 31 December 233,164 237,708 185,613 190,006
TEEBRA In Hong Kong held on:
— RIEHA — Long-term leases
(T4 L) (over 50 years) 101,231 101,675 53,680 53,973
— A — Medium-term leases
(+ZEH+4E) (between 10 to 50 years) 131,933 136,033 131,933 136,033
233,164 237,708 185,613 190,006
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30 H- il 3 S vk M 30 Other properties and equipment
A H The Group
15 1L I % i
Furniture
3 and Hit
Premises equipment Total

BT T T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000

BRAS BA (B Cost or valuation

Mm_o——_%—H—H At 1 January 2012 794,260 738,661 1,532,921

[ifE 5% 5 Exchange adjustments (68) 103 35

HE Additions 63 115,900 115,963

HE Disposals - (25,766) (25,766)
IRRAE (GERE2R) Reclassifications, net (note 28) 11,194 - 11,194

RoOo— "4+ —"H=+—H At31 December 2012 805,449 828,898 1,634,347

BT Accumulated depreciation

Mm_o0——_%—H—H At 1 January 2012 146,212 565,356 711,568

[T 2% ) % Exchange adjustments 9 300) 309)
ARIEFEYEE (5ERE10) Charge for the year (note 10) 13,747 65,900 79,647

B[] ¢ Written back on disposal - (21,602) (21,602)
W _O0——4F+"H=1+—H At 31 December 2012 159,950 609,354 769,304

e T ¥ Net book value

RO — 4+ _HA=4+—H At31 December 2012 645,499 219,544 865,043
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30 HAthPy 3 Kak it (%) 30 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
A H The Group
L&
Furniture
7 and it
Premises equipment Total

wWToL  WwWTon R ToT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BRAS BA (B Cost or valuation
m—_o——%—H—H At 1 January 2011 634,233 697,490 1,331,723
[ifE 5% 5 Exchange adjustments (31) 972 941
g Additions - 49,934 49,934
HE Disposals = (9,735) (9,735)
HHAS YRR (FEFE28) Reclassifications, net (note 28) 159,711 = 159,711
HEAGE B (FERE3S8) Surplus on revaluation (note 38) 378 = 378
Less: elimination of accumulated
W BREITE RS A depreciation on revaluation 31) - 31)
rZOo——H+=H=+—H At31 December 2011 794,260 738,661 1,532,921
BT Accumulated depreciation
W=O——4F—H—H At 1 January 2011 134,021 510,681 644,702
[ifE 5% 5 Exchange adjustments (3) 504 501
AIEFEYEE (5ERE10) Charge for the year (note 10) 12,225 62,971 75,196
B[] ¢ Written back on disposal = (8,800) (8,800)
AL 1R R Elimination on revaluation (31) - (31)
W _Oo——F+_H=1+—H At31 December 2011 146,212 565,356 711,568
e T YA Net book value

RO ——4+_H=1—H At31 December 2011 648,048 173,305 821,353




162

Annual Report 2012 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KBESRATHIRA R —.0 — “AFR4FR

IR LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 H b3 Kt (4)

30 Other properties and equipment (Continued)

EIVEE Z A S ES ST The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
A H The Group
AR % % i
Furniture
5 e and ek
Premises equipment Total
BT BT i3
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’°000
—Oo—=& 2012
BAE At cost 154,677 828,898 983,575
Reclassification from investment
G EMIR A 5 E properties stated at
3 LS AL SR professional valuation
— —JULE4E - 1995 50,560 - 50,560
— — JLJL/N4E — 1998 64,726 - 64,726
— 00— - 2001 12,164 - 12,164
— —00_4 - 2002 12,600 - 12,600
——00=4% - 2003 8,190 - 8,190
— — 0O f4E — 2005 46,592 - 46,592
— Z OO — 2006 27,910 - 27,910
— —_ 00Ot - 2007 12,985 - 12,985
— — OO /\4 - 2008 55,889 - 55,889
— — OO JLEE - 2009 103,972 - 103,972
— —O0—OfF —2010 81,600 - 81,600
——O0——4F - 2011 162,390 - 162,390
——O—_ 4 -2012 11,194 - 11,194
805,449 828,898 1,634,347
—O——#& 2011
JEAE At cost 154,682 738,661 893,343
Reclassification from investment
MG EMIEAF E properties stated at
3 LS AR 51 R professional valuation
—— LR - 1995 50,560 - 50,560
— —LNE - 1998 64,726 — 64,726
——00—4 —2001 12,164 = 12,164
— 004 - 2002 12,600 — 12,600
— —00=4 - 2003 8,190 - 8,190
— OO f4E — 2005 46,592 - 46,592
— — OO — 2006 27,910 - 27,910
— — 00Ot - 2007 12,985 - 12,985
— — OO /N4 —2008 55,889 - 55,889
— _ OO0 — 2009 103,972 — 103,972
— —O0— 0% -2010 81,600 - 81,600
——O0——14f —2011 162,390 = 162,390
794,260 738,661 1,532,921
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ENE) The Bank
15 R B 2 A
Furniture
5 e and AR

Premises equipment Total

BT BT BT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRAS A B Cost or valuation
BR_Oo—_#—H—H At 1 January 2012 689,948 686,623 1,376,571
[ifE 3% 5 Exchange adjustments - 101 101
T Additions - 110,232 110,232
HE Disposals - (25,578) (25,578)
HHAS YRR (3EFE28) Reclassifications, net (note 28) 11,194 - 11,194
R_O0——4+_"H=+—H At 31 December 2012 701,142 771,378 1,472,520
BT Accumulated depreciation
R Oo—_"4#—H—H At 1 January 2012 122,047 527,636 649,683
[ifE 23R G 3 Exchange adjustments - (300) 300)
A BT Charge for the year 11,931 60,125 72,056
LB ] 4 Written back on disposal - (21,427) (21,427)
MR_O——4+="H=1+—H At31 December 2012 133,978 566,034 700,012
e T ¥ Net book value
R_O——_4F+_H=1—H At 31 December 2012 567,164 205,344 772,508
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30 HAthPy 3 Kak it (%) 30 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
ENE) The Bank
L&
Furniture
i and Gt
Premises equipment Total

wWToL  wWTon R T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BRAS BA B Cost or valuation
W_O0——4—H—H At 1 January 2011 532,545 649,566 1,182,111
[ifE 5% 5 Exchange adjustments = 972 972
o Additions = 44,454 44,454
e Disposals (783) (8,369) (9,152)
AR AR (FERE28) Reclassifications, net (note 28) 157,839 = 157,839
BEAGAAR (GERE3S) Surplus on revaluation (note 38) 378 = 378
Less: elimination of accumulated
B R AN E AL depreciation on revaluation 31) - 31
rZOo——H+=H=+—H At31 December 2011 689,948 686,623 1,376,571
BT Accumulated depreciation
HR_Oo——44H—H—H At 1 January 2011 112,230 477,705 589,935
[FEE 2% ) % Exchange adjustments = 504 504
A AT Charge for the year 10,445 57,057 67,502
H R (] 43 Written back on disposal (597) (7,630) (8,227)
ERREE 1S Elimination on revaluation (1) - (31)
W _Oo——F+_H=4+—H At31 December 2011 122,047 527,636 649,683
e T ¥ Net book value

RO ——4+_H=1—H At31 December 2011 567,901 158,987 726,888
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30 HAthPy 3 Kak it (%) 30 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
EIVEE Z A S ES ST The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
ENF) The Bank
5 00 2w i
Furniture
B and Hat
Premises equipment Total

oL oL AL
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000

—O—Z4 2012
A At cost 95,618 771,378 866,996
Reclassification from investment

G EMIR A 5 E properties stated at
3 LS AL 51 R professional valuation
— —JUJLHAF — 1995 43,200 - 43,200
— — JLJL/N4E - 1998 42,771 - 42,771
——00—4F — 2001 12,164 - 12,164
— 004 —2002 6,840 - 6,840
— =00 =45 ~2003 8,190 - 8,190
— —OOh4E ~2005 38,290 - 38,290
— O ONEE — 2006 27,910 - 27,910
— —00Ot4%E — 2007 12,985 - 12,985
— — OO/ — 2008 55,889 - 55,889
— OO — 2009 103,972 - 103,972
— —O0—O04 —2010 81,600 - 81,600
— —O——4F — 2011 160,519 - 160,519
— —O——4F —-2012 11,194 - 11,194

701,142 771,378 1,472,520
—O——4 2011
A At cost 95,618 686,623 782,241
Reclassification from investment

MG EMIEAF E properties stated at
3 LS AR 51 R professional valuation
— — JLJLTAE — 1995 43,200 = 43,200
— —JLILNAE — 1998 42,771 = 42,771
— —_OO0O—4% —2001 12,164 = 12,164
— — 004 — 2002 6,840 = 6,840
— =00 =% — 2003 8,190 = 8,190
— “OOR4E ~2005 38,290 = 38,290
— —OONEE —2006 27,910 = 27,910
— —00tk%E —2007 12,985 = 12,985
— "~ OO /N4 ~2008 55,889 = 55,889
— — OO0 JLF - 2009 103,972 = 103,972
= =0—0% —-2010 81,600 = 81,600
- —O——%2 — 2011 160,519 = 160,519

689,948 686,623 1,376,571
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30 HAthPy 2 Kak it (%) 30 Other properties and equipment (Continued)
B Z MR T T E AL The net book value of premises comprises:
A N}
The Group The Bank
—0—= —O0— —0o—= —O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011

3 T oT W T wT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

P 2 A A Leasehold properties in
Y2k - Hong Kong:
— RIHA — Long-term leases
(4L E) (over 50 years) 380,917 386,335 347,009 351,924
— A — Medium-term leases
(+Z A A4F) (between 10 to 50 years) 230,200 226,277 220,155 215,977
611,117 612,612 567,164 567,901
{7 ¥ S 2 TR 4 Leasehold properties outside
Y2k Hong Kong:
— KA — Freehold 28,460 29,326 - -
— RIHA — Long-term leases
(AL E) (over 50 years) 2,963 3,039 - -
— A — Medium-term leases
(+&EAH14F) (between 10 to 50 years) 2,959 3,071 - =
645,499 648,048 567,164 567,901
31 RHRETZ AR 31 Trading liabilities
A4 VN F)
The Group The Bank
—O== —O0— —0—= —O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT [ o AT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
22 2 A E R Short positions in Exchange
I E S Fund Bills and Notes,
NPEE at fair value:
— ki — Listed - 8,427 - 8,427
—F b — Unlisted - 429,478 - 429,478

- 437,905 - 437,905

Short positions in

Th 22 2 RS 25 equity securities,
NHEE at fair value:
— FHius bl — Listed in Hong Kong 20,033 - - =

Short positions in
T2 2 RRER S B 4 equity investment fund,
SFEE at fair value:
— & bl — Listed in Hong Kong 19,885 - - -

39,918 437,905 - 437,905
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32 DL P fE fE w8 &5 iR 2 <5 ik

32 Financial liabilities designated at fair value through

=i profit or loss
AR M By A AT
The Group and the Bank
—0o—= 00—
2012 2011
BT BT
HK$’000 HKS$°000
AT A Certificates of deposit issued 570,036 994,385

Roo——"F+_HA=+—H  &XEH
RATTHE B LA AP EAEE AR R
4 05 A BR TR LR B 1 B A e At
TEA N Z &8 i 23,529,00000
(ZO——4 : #%16,453,00000) > £
CAE) Y IESIE Tl &

33 B

The carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 December 2012 is higher than the amount
that the Group and the Bank would be contractually required to pay
at maturity to the holders by HK$23,529,000 (2011: HK$16,453,000),
which was mainly due to changes in interest rates.

33 Deposits from customers

A4 . NF)
The Group The Bank
—~0—= —O0O—— —0—= —O0——
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT e i T BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
6 BALE AR R A AR Demand deposits and current
P accounts 7,272,298 5,680,405 7,515,570 6,206,216
il & F7 K Savings deposits 31,784,559 28,243,327 31,837,694 28,307,136
SEWIAE SR/ Time, call and notice deposits 93,037,484  81.216,082 94,007,277 82,056,029
132,094,341 115,139,814 133,360,541 116,569,381
34 BiTZ R EEE 34 Subordinated debt issued
A W R AT
The Group and the Bank
—0—= — 00—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
#1800,000,0007C HK$800,000,000
P8 LA 5 R I 7 AR subordinated floating rate note,
B GER 2) measured at amortised cost (Note a) 800,000 800,000
#:700,000,0007C HK$700,000,000
P S AR MR ) 7 B AR subordinated floating rate note,
fEEEHE (G5 b) measured at amortised cost (Note b) 700,000 700,000
#1,500,000,0007C HKS$1,500,000,000
FI B LA B BR A 22 AR subordinated fixed rate notes,
B GERE o) measured at amortised cost (Note c) 1,500,000 1,500,000
3£ 76200,000,0007C US$200,000,000
T S AR B B 1 02 EAR subordinated fixed rate notes,
B GERE D measured at amortised cost (Note d) 1,536,020 =
4,536,020 3,000,000
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34 BiT 2 R EMAE (8)

SRR ¢ (a) U #: %7800,000,0007C ¥ B %

EHRR—OO0LELH I H g
17> W B e AL R AT Z
Mg A - WERIEE IR — O — L
B A I H F ) o a3
HAE O—MELA+HH M
BIHHEREEREAZE L
A I ER IR RS 4% =R H 1
JLERAT A 2647 2 200257 » DA
SMRAERT W o HAR - i
RAEBEFR R R H I AN
FE € B HT A =M H s TR AT
/] 247 B M250 25+ o

It # %700,000,0007C 7 B % &
HEEHR OO NLENLA + H
BAT > WA E B A AT
ZHmEA o phEE R O —
JLENH =+ = BB W o
BEA A —O—M4ERA —+=
Ho mEiTH 2 SRR H >
AR > ILEE RS =M A
WS T ERAT IR ZEHR B 20085 7
DU =M H ST — R - HAR >
TR ORTE SRS R B > A
%R & EET A =8 A B oo
SRATIR] ZEPR B AN250% 1 -

~

I 5 %1,500,000,0007C 7€ B 1% &
EER_OONFET_H TN
HE 47 » 390 A 8 B A 4 ) Je A
TFZWIEAR - IWEHIEHR O
4%+ A=+ /\H 3o &
BHEEEDA_O—NET A
TN H o BEEEHEA A B 42 4R F
5. 70%FH > FEEREE AT -

~

(d) Ik 3 56200,000,0000C E & £ 15

TN Oo—_"4HF+—HXNHE
17 > w5 By A 1l AR AT 2
Mg As o PLERRIEN — 0 — =
F+—H-EHZH o R
HE _Oo—tHE+—HLEtH-mH
BITHEREEERAIZE A
A IR R A B HRAE I #3.50%
FHOE > HR AR SOAT o HAR - i
TRE R AE SRR R H O [ - 1
BRI S e ER A E H AR T
A ] 5 25 D RN 280 2 T o

34 Subordinated debt issued (Continued)

Note:

(a)

(b

=

(c)

(d)

This represents HK$800,000,000 subordinated floating rate note
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 14 July 2009. The note will mature on 14 July 2019 with an
optional redemption date falling on 15 July 2014. Interest rate for the
note is set on a quarterly basis based on 3-month HIBOR plus 200
basis points for the first 5 years from the date of issue to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the note is not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the note will bear interest at 3-month HIBOR plus
250 basis points.

This represents HK$700,000,000 subordinated floating rate note
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 22 September 2009. The note will mature on 22 September 2019
with an optional redemption date falling on 23 September 2014.
Interest rate for the note is set on a quarterly basis based on 3-month
HIBOR plus 200 basis points for the first 5 years from the date of
issue to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the note is not
redeemed, the interest rate will reset and the note will bear interest at
3-month HIBOR plus 250 basis points.

These represent HK$1,500,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank issued
on 28 December 2009. The notes will mature on 28 December 2021
with an optional redemption date falling on 28 December 2016.
Interest at 5.70% per annum is payable on a quarterly basis.

These represent US$200,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group and the Bank
issued on 6 November 2012. The notes will mature on 7 November
2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 7 November 2017.
Interest at 3.50% per annum is payable on a semi-annually basis for
the first 5 years from the date of issue to the optional redemption
date. Thereafter, if the notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will
reset and the notes will bear interest at 5 years US Treasury yield on
that date plus 280 basis points.
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35 Deferred taxation

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
statement of financial position and the movements during the year are as
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/(I follows:
A The Group
K
il B WO
BESE  HEANEHE  Impairment
Accelerated  Retirement  allowances
tax benefit onloansand  FiJEEH oAl wit
depreciation  obligation advances Tax loss Others Total
EWT  w%Tx  #WTxn #WTx  #WTx  #WTx
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
RZO—Z%—H—H At January 2012 (15,552) (34,239) 58,189 56,174 12,303 76,875
TS %l / Credited/(charged) to the
(1) income statement 2,000 1,427 (12,481) (12,775) 1,234 (20,595)
T HA 2 g Charged to other comprehensive
bk (GERE38) income (note 38) - - - - (8,231) (8,231)
RZ0——#%
+ZHA=+—H At 31 December 2012 (13,552) (32,812) 45,708 43,399 5,306 48,049
A7 The Bank
i
i Bk R
B & FAEHE  Impairment
Accelerated Retirement allowances
tax benefit  on loans and HAl L
depreciation obligation advances Others Total
W T W T T W T T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZO—Z#—H—H At January 2012 (15,118) (34,239) 57,582 12,245 20,470
felk s FihE Credited/(charged) to the
(F1B%) income statement 1,498 1,427 (12,028) 1,234 (7,869)
TEHA A AR Charged to other comprehensive
il (ERE38) income (note 38) - - - (5,944) (5,944)
RZO0—Z4
+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2012 (13,620) (32,812) 45,554 7,535 6,657
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35 IBAEBLIA (4) 35 Deferred taxation (Continued)
A H The Group
gl Restated 2y
il RIE AR
BUESTE  WAHRE  Impairment
Accelerated ~ Retirement  allowances
tax benefit on loans o) Hit B
depreciation obligation and advances Tax loss Others Total
whTT  wWTx W Tr  EWTr BT BRI
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZO——%—H—H At January 2011 (15,917) (33,536) 58,768 66,631 3,377 79,323
TS %l / Credited/(charged) to the
(1) income statement 365 (703) (579) (10,457) 1,394 (9,980)
FEEM2 G CE  Credited to other comprehensive
(FERE38) income (note 38) = = = = 7,532 7,532
RZO0——%
+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2011 (15,552) (34,239) 58,189 56,174 12,303 76,875
A7 The Bank
EJl Restated e
i Y/ (L
BEdT# eSS Impairment
Accelerated Retirement allowances
tax benefit on loans HAtr At
depreciation obligation  and advances Others Total
BT BT BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
Bo0——4%—H—H Atl January 2011 (13,045) (33,536) 56,746 3,910 14,075
Tl Filk / Credited/(charged) to the
(4nB) income statement (2,073) (703) 836 1,394 (546)
M AR R  Credited to other comprehensive
(7LRE38) income (note 38) - - - 6,941 6,941
RZ0——4%
+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2011 (15,118) (34,239) 57,582 12,245 20,470
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35 BAEBLIA (4H) 35 Deferred taxation (Continued)
AR N
The Group The Bank
gl gl
Restated Restated
—O== —O0O—— —O0== 00—
2012 2011 2012 2011

T T T ol wT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

T B R 26 AT Net deferred tax assets
il 2 IR AEFLIH recognised in the statement
B of financial position 68,073 103,236 24,727 45,175
T B R 26 A1 Net deferred tax liabilities
BRI SER IE recognised in the statement
R of financial position (20,024) (26,361) (18,070) (24,705)

48,049 76,875 6,657 20,470

PESE R A i Ty I EAR B BG A% A 25 7T %5 Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
AR R 2f M BR B ik R 58 5 T gt T 45 2 B extent that realisation of the deferred tax benefit through future profits is
TR T LIERE - A ~O— " 4F 1 H  probable. At 31 December 2012, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
=+—H > RE@GKERZBIERE  of HK$102,003,000 (2011: HK$99,387,000) to be carried forward to set
%545 %102,003,0007C (— O ——4F : ¥ off against future taxable profits.

#99,387,0007C) > A 45 # LI 41K B R A€

B o
36 s e IE K AR 36 Other accounts and accruals
A AR . NF)
The Group The Bank
—O0—= —_O0O— —~O0—= —~ 00—
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT W
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
JEEAT LB Interest payable 687,680 444,791 688,630 445,105
R A Insurance liabilities 1,864,633 1,698,779 - -
JEAS Ko HoAth BETE Accounts and other payable 2,344,529 2,206,613 1,990,449 1,979,147

4,896,842 4,350,183 2,679,079 2,424,252
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36 bR K HHHE (%)

36 Other accounts and accruals (Continued)

REBABEHHTNT - Insurance liabilities are analysed as follows:
A H The Group
—0o—= —O0—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
Rk Gross
CE2MmZRKERELR Claims reported and loss adjustment
S A expenses 587,695 543,058
BB EH R B 2 RKIE Claims incurred but not reported 701,530 637,501
R 2 i - Unearned premiums 401,688 365,294
o 1) 1 L o v A Provision for unexpired risk 2,304 5,422
HoAty Others 171,416 147,504
TR A AR Total insurance liabilities, gross 1,864,633 1,698,779
AR A [B] Recoverable from reinsurers
2z RERIAK Claims reported and loss adjustment
S H expenses 88,250 84,493
EEEH R B RIE Claims incurred but not reported 102,157 84,326
R B A Unearned premiums 99,377 100,323
A AT AL b & & 4448  Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
(7H¥E23(2)) (note 23(a)) 289,784 269,142
T Net
C 2z RERIAK Claims reported and loss adjustment
TR expenses 499,445 458,565
EEEAH R 2R RIE Claims incurred but not reported 599,373 553,175
R HA I R 2 Unearned premiums 302,311 264,971
I 21 1A L g EE A Provision for unexpired risk 2,304 5,422
HoAts Others 171,416 147,504
TR BB BT AR Total insurance liabilities, net 1,574,849 1,429,637

C2Hm RIEEH - BB HARE
MERFMREHEEER ABEARELHE
HA A AT 45 R I AL i (] 2 YRR o i
O— &+ —_H=+—HE_-O0——4
T A=+ — B2 iR iR 2 S E
SARE K o PR A ST P R o

The gross claims reported, the loss adjustment expenses liabilities and
the liability for claims incurred but not reported are net of expected
recoveries from salvage and subrogation. The amounts for salvage
and subrogation at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are not
separately disclosed as they are not material.
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37 kA 37 Share capital
—~0—= —0o—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$°000
o M A Authorised:
300,000,000/ (—O——4F : 300,000,000 (2011: 300,000,000)
300,000,000%) &3 B > AR S0 ordinary shares of HK$5 each 1,500,000 1,500,000
T RCMERA Issued and fully paid:
232,190,115/ (ZO——4F : 232,190,115 (2011: 232,190,115)
232,190,115/%) EE % > &R EEs T ordinary shares of HK$5 each 1,160,951 1,160,951

T B R AN A RECIBUA R E IR 2 B
B AR ATTZ g@ EUEK =
1977 AL o Pl A s AN AT 2 R B
FEEFAR AL

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Bank’s residual net assets.

38 fili fhi 38 Reserves
A 4 [E The Group
i
i Wkl B TRy
Bank  HER g
BARMMG  premises Tnvestment SRR Bl WERE  REEN Non-
Capital revaluation revaluation Contingency  Statutory ~ Gemeral ~ Retained INit - controlling ait
reserve reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve  earnings  Sub-total interest Total
BT BETx BN BN #NTx #NTx g g g ElTx
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$°000
REo—Z4£—A—H> At 1 January 2012,
AR as previously reported 57,500 4,619 171,164 782 15 1,003,730 12,09477 13,334,287 - 13334287
Effect of changes in
ke e accounting policies - 8,224 - - - S 080T 449,131 - 431
RZO—ZF—A—H» BJ At January 2012, as restated 57,500 49,843 171,164 782 15 1,003,730 12,500,384 13,783,418 - 13783418
A E 2 % Available-for sale securities
- AFERE ~ Changes in fair value - - 81,046 - - - - 81,046 - 81,046
- Transfer to income statement
— Ty R Al % on disposal - - (10044 - - - - (10,044 - (10044
— Transfer to income statement
— PR A G on impairment - - 2,626 - - - - 2,626 - 2,626
REIL RS A\ Al bl Share of associate’s reserves - - 99 - - - - 99 - 9
Share of jointly controlled
RERF A6 e RO G entities’ reserves - - 462 - - - - 462 - 462
ATEERYHEL Effect of deferred taxation on fair
REZFE (G833) value adjustments (note 35) - - (8,231) - - - - (8.231) - (8,231)
AP RERA Profit for the year - - - - - - 130947 2130947 2540 2,133,487
EHAAR Transfer from contingency reserve - - - (239) - - 239 - - -
Set up of non-wholly owned
RIF2EFAT subsidiarics - - - - - - - - 60 69,760
RZO—ZFFZH=+—H  At31 December 2012 57,500 9843 237112 543 15 1,003,730 14,631,570 15,980,323 7,300 16,052,623
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38 faiffi (%) 38 Reserves (Continued)
. The Bank
EX
5 ok Hff
Bank & it
premises  Investment T R B A
revaluation revaluation General Retained fit
reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T WL e T T el
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
RZO—ZF—A—H At 1 January 2012,
WG as previously reported 40,262 50,745 1,003,730 11,446,122 12,540,859
Effect of changes in
GRBOREE 2 Y8 accounting policies 7,956 - - 440,907 448,863
RZO—Z4—H—H > EF|  At1 January 2012, as restated 48,218 50,745 1,003,730 11,887,029 12,989,722
it 7 Available-for sale securities
NG — Changes in fair value - 55,042 - - 55,042
— Transfer to income statement
— A A 3 % on disposal - (739) - - (739)
AT EEREARIERIE Effect of deferred taxation on
R (GERES) fair value adjustments (note 35) - (5,944) - - (5,944)
A Profit for the year - - - 2,075,384 2,075,384
ZO—ZHEFZA=ET—H At 31 December 2012 48,218 99,104 1,003,730 13,962,413 15,113,465
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38 faiffi (%) 38 Reserves (Continued)
A4 The Group
Bff
R B
Bank f e
B premises  Investment AR e Rt Tfili (R E &R
Capital revaluation revaluation  Contingency Statutory General Retained Bt
reserve reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve carnings Total
BT T BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HKS°000
RZO——4—f—-H> At 1 January 2011,
SR as previously reported 57,500 41,303 283,437 - 15 1,003,730 10,202,950 11,588,935
Effect of changes in
kg accounting policies - 8,162 - - - = 431,097 43959
RZO——%F—H—H>EJl At January 2011, as restated 57,500 49,465 283,437 - 15 1,003,730 10,634,047 12,028,194
{7 Available-for-sale securities
- NPEENE ~ Changes in fair value - - (137,539) - - - - (137,539)
- Transfer to income statement
— M ERE Al on disposal = = (10,099) = = = = (10,099)
— Transfer to income statement

- AR A G on impairment - - 28,020 - - - - 28,020
R (HE0) Surplus on revaluation (note 30) - 378 - - - - - 378
TEfERy 4l Share of associate’s reserves - - (62) - - - - (62)

Share of jointly controlled
TR T U AR entities” reserves - - (125) - - - - (125)
NFREREHERL Effect of deferred taxation on

BHZEE (HE3s5) fair value adjustments (note 35) - - 7,532 - - - - 7,532
EEERA Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,867,119 1,867,119
HATURRE Transfer to contingency reserve = = - 782 - - (782) -
RZO—=—4+ZH=+—H At31 December 2011 57,500 49,843 171,164 782 15 1,003,730 12,500,384 13,783,418
17 The Bank

B
Rk bl EXT)
Bank f& Rt
premises [nvestment LR fRE A
revaluation  revaluation General Retained Tl
reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
T T T T T T
HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BZOo——4f—H—H> At 1 January 2011,

QAR R as previously reported 39,946 108,386 1,003,730 9,500,876 10,652,938
GOk S 2 8 Effect of changes in accounting policies 7,894 = = 431,097 438,991
BZO0——H—HA—H> &F| At January 2011, as restated 47,840 108,386 1,003,730 9,931,973 11,091,929
k7 H % Available-for-sale securities

—NTEE S — Changes in fair value - (66,253) = = (66,253)

— Transfer to income statement
— R ERE ARG & on disposal - (600) - - (600)
— Transfer to income statement

S (L INerE on impairment = 2271 - - 2271
BHEL GERE30) Surplus on revaluation (note 30) 378 - = - 378
N B BRI R Effect of deferred taxation on

A (GERES) fair value adjustments (note 35) = 6,941 = = 6,941
A A Profit for the year = = = 1,955,056 1,955,056
BoO——#+"H=+—H At31 December 2011 43,218 50,745 1,003,730 11,887,029 12,989,722
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38 faiffi (%)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

(h)

IR B B A AR s T A
I EL DR B i 1) A AL Sl AT R
T AT B L o

AR 5 A A SRR O SRR L1
A g s BOR I L -

TR 48 A 7Y B 01 0 5 1
10 S (A2 () 2 Bt
i 22 0l L0 L RE R L6 21700
R B -

Bl IR fit 45 1 3 42 T o R ot 36 B LR
WA 2 1% 15 07 DR R B S 5 kA 2 1
Gl (T8 T 75 1) LARE A 48 9% fie o 308
LR S A9 170 A S 2 AR

T 28 B AR A 1) R TR DA AR AT A R
£ YN 1 VA ) AT
Tl EFAEA10%5 R > HEH
BRI 2 B TR AR 5 R L il A AR
I50% o 23 B o 1 48 B AL 1 4% ]
A 58 A 2R o 1 e A L A i
zlgo

0 f 2 A P2 R P Y )
B e

AEHEHR O+ _H=
+— B Z 58 %R bR
897,456,0007C (—. O — —4F : #k
743,838,00070) 1F & 2 € i g - 15
TE b Ty B A R R IR A
CERATZEMRM) Z MR B8 > T2 TH
feti fh 2 28 B BT N PR BR e AU IAY
A8 s SRS LR o

ERGIMERARBRE (0~
—4  fE) o

38 Reserves (Continued)

(2)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

(h)

The Group’s capital reserve was set up in relation to the
capitalisation by certain subsidiaries of their retained earnings for
the issue of new shares to the Bank.

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1.11.

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of available-for-sale securities until the securities
are derecognised or impaired and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in notes 1.6 and 1.7.

Contingency reserve represents a reserve established for
contingency of accumulation of risks in times of severe economic
downturn in accordance with Guidance Note on Reserving for
Mortgage Guarantee Business (“GN67) issued by the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance.

Statutory surplus reserve is provided at 10% of the audited profit
after tax of a subsidiary of the Bank which is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China, until the reserve balance is equal to
50% of its registered share capital. Surplus reserve can be used to
offset accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital with the
approval of shareholders.

General reserve comprises previous years’ transfers from retained
earnings.

At 31 December 2012, included in retained earnings is an amount of
HK$897,456,000 (2011: HK$743,838,000) which was earmarked as
regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential
supervision purposes. Movements in the reserve are made directly
through retained earnings and in consultation with the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority.

The directors did not propose any final dividend (2011: Nil) after
the year end.
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39 Amounts due from/to subsidiaries

Included in the following statement of financial position headings are
balances with subsidiaries:

PN iy
The Bank

—~O0O—= —O0O—
2012 2011
T T oT
HK$’000 HK$’000

RGN Amounts due from subsidiaries:
— B R H A AR I — Advances and other accounts 115,138 116,130

i J&g 2~ B A7 Amounts due to subsidiaries:

— BN — Deposits from customers 1,266,200 1,429,567
— HAth AR IE K T 2 — Other accounts and accruals 13,394 8,426
1,279,594 1,437,993

40 4 SRR
(a) LB B4

A AR B E B S A SR AT 2 > K]
DRANE e FEBRITEBFOFRMEZ
Tk~ HdE R AN B S B 2 w] &
HES:SFE ZORCE S NNE &
Sy - R o WE R eSS
ME - SR [FSETS REAT IS
GE) o REED IR - fRERICEL IR
B R HABARBR 285 o K8 AL B EAE o
B RAC AL o o B B 3 DSBS L AR
W R i SN AT SR o HAtER E B
EY K o RAFEN > AL EERE
% e e LR A R B R A R R
HAB T — R SE B ] A A B S
AR T Ik o BUAL > AHBERS A B S RE
IR B % IR LB AT 230 S5 R — SO LB 1T

231 -

ROTIHIA B EFADIE R B 7 H At
SfF =B 2 B B AR - BLIH - LU
Je HoAtR R B3 BL T 45 52 3605 20 TR Y
JHH -

40 Segment reporting
(a) Business segments

The Group operates predominantly in commercial banking which
comprises six business segments. Retail banking includes acceptance of
deposits, mortgage and personal loan lending and wealth management.
Corporate and commercial banking includes advance of commercial and
industrial loans, trade financing, hire purchase and leasing. Treasury
activities include foreign exchange, money market, interbank market
and capital market activities. Insurance activities include insurance
underwriting, insurance agency services and other related businesses.
Brokerage activities include securities and futures brokerage services.
China and overseas operations activities include China and overseas
branches and operations, other activities mainly comprise investment
properties holding. During the year, the Group has revised certain
allocation methods of some income and expenses among different
operation units in preparing the information reported to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of performance
assessment. Corresponding amounts have been provided on a basis
consistent with the revised segment information.

Unallocated items mainly comprise assets and liabilities of the central
management unit and other shared services, taxation and any items
which cannot be reasonably allocated to specific business segments.
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40 53 #HE (41
(a) HEH 5 (4])

40 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

ARRER
hilk R KA
WA MR R R
Corporate China At Unallocated
FERL and and Total and
Retail ~ commercial Brg TR it overseas  reportable i inter-segment A%H
banking banking Treasury ~ Insurance  Brokerage  operations segments Others  elimination Group
BT EWTx  #WTx T ERTx #WTx #WTx #WTx T kT
HK$000  HKS$°000  HKS'000  HKS$°000  HKS$'000  HKS°000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Z0-Zk 012
HERA /(i) Net interest income/(expense)
- - External (672,518) 1,511,802 888,230 16,508 1,179 87,715 2,626,916 (123,265) - 1503631
— WA - Inter-segment 1373870 (600,831)  (589,188) 13,967 Q243)  (195,656) 81) 81 - -
701,352 910971 299,042 30475 8,936 676,089 2,626,835 (123,184) - 2,503,631
et & et Net fees and commission

LOVAS T income/(expense) 88,119 67970 40,077 - 143,561 110,547 450,274 16,106 - 466,380
AR Other operating income

- - External 163,546 12,010 353,109 122,445 L117 1,m 664,948 158,315 (78,546) 4,717

~ A — Inter-segment - - - - - 43,529 43,529 170,759 (214,288) -
AEEERA Segment operating income 953,017 990,951 692,228 152,920 153,614 842,856 3,785,386 221,99 (292,834) 3,714,748
BEx Operating expenses

— - External (27412 (98,266) (94,703) (52,710) (71,288)  (215,146)  (959,495) (68,510)  (311,600) (1,339,605

= - Inter-segment (212,406) (29,843) (7,135) (1,023) (10,155) (1,256)  (261,918) (3974 265,892 -

(639818)  (128,109)  (101,938) (83,733) (81,413)  (216402)  (1,221413) (72,484 (45,708)  (1,339,605)
[ RERZ MR / Impairment written back/(charge)

(7) for credit loss (4,161) (6,445) (2,627) - 1 17,046 3824 532 - 4,356
AHEEER /(B Segment operating profit/(loss) 309,038 856,397 587,663 99,187 7,12 043,500 2,567,997 150,044 (338542) 2379499
EWEATEE Fair value gains on investment

¢t properties 140,554
S R Net loss on disposal of other

ZEER properties and equipment (2,32
TEIELLa 2 Share of net profits of jointly

Al controlled entities 40,715
TEIGBE A Al 2 A Share of net profits of associate 243
kil Profit before tax 2,560,689
Fi Tncome tax (427,202)
ALl Profit after tax 2,133,487
BARY Capital expenditure 19,716 890 1,648 2,069 2,525 30474 51312 5471 53,170 115,963
T Depreciation 22,769 33 2,808 7,609 5,185 8,204 49,897 21,031 13,263 84,191
K Segment assets 17992809 STOTLI23 T4199545  2227,601 1,040,379 41,661,280 204,792,797 3,162,342 394,200 208,349,339
i) Inter-segment transactions (29,618,527)

Interests in jointly
SR BB controlled entities 205,192
L UNL A Interest in an associate 5218
BEE Total assets 178,941,222
AR Segment liabilities 122,978,345 202,433 18,038,544 1,962,608 455912 42,750,668 186,388,570 4,750,491 07,114 191,346,175
EYEYY Inter-segment transactions (29,618,527)
BEfK Total liabilities 161,727,648
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40 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

Jl Restated REEH
hilk L T
LB 51 HAER R LIS
Corporate China s Unallocated
ZERM and ) and Total and
Retail  commercial BrE ik a4 overseas  reportable Mt inter-segment AER
banking banking Treasury Insurance  Brokerage  operations segments Others ~ elimination Group
BT kT #lTn EWTx BT #WTa BT #iTx kT #liTn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS’000  HK$'000
Z0——% 2011
FHERA /(i) Net interest income/(expense)
- - External (479,736) 1,102,613 990,898 2,923 13,39 550,629 2,189,723 (101,158) - 2088565
= Wb - Inter-segment 1,174,396 (591,407) (496,135 15,802 (1,771 (100,385) - - - -
694,660 511,206 494763 18,725 11,625 458,744 2,189,703 (101,158) - 2,088,565
% Uk Net fees and commission

LOVAS T income/(expense) 78,890 99,264 38,693 - 192,660 62,810 4n3n 13,755 - 486,072
HEERA Other operating income

=5 - External 264971 49,719 376,483 136,540 (504) 10,022 837,231 122373 (90,108) 869,496

~ A - Inter-segment - - - - - 21413 21413 148,699 (170,112) -
AHEERA Segment operating income 1,038,521 660,189 909,939 155,265 203,781 552,989 3,520,684 183,669 (260220) 3444133
BRI Operating expenses

=5 - External (392,422) (89,681) (65,647) (50,416) (74905)  (146958)  (820,029) (73,002)  (255,09)  (1,148,127)

— Wb - Inter-segment (168,878) (17.89) (5,507) (498) (10,475) (1,19 (204373) (2,476) 206,349 -

(561,300)  (107,577) (71,154) (50,914) (85,380)  (148,077)  (1,024,402) (15478) (48247 (1,148,127)
[ERERZ MR / Impairment written back/(charge)

(#8%) for credit loss 107 (31,809) (28,021) - 308 (27,739) (87,154) (30,214) - (117,368)
AIEERR/ (B Segment operating profit/(loss) 477328 520,803 810,764 104,351 118,709 AT 2,409,128 71,977 (308.467) 2,178,638
REWEATEE Fair value gains on investment

b ¢ properties 59451
S R Net loss on disposal of other

2R properties and equipment (877)
TEIELL a2 Share of net profits of jointly

Ayl controlled entities 17,302
TEIGBE A Al 2 A Share of net profits of associate 2879
Wt Profit before tax 2,257,393
Fifas Tncome tax (390,274)
Wt Al Profit after tax 1,867,119
BRI Capital expenditure 11,502 547 1,383 4,658 3,309 4167 25,566 2,13 22,236 49934
g Depreciation 20,403 2,662 3,181 7,082 5,839 9,693 48860 18,135 12,746 79,741
K Segment assets 21,769,338 47,628,580 74674149 1937553 935454 26,176,586 179,121,660 2,386,972 344250 181,852,882
MBS Inter-segment transactions (18,202,242)

Interests in jointly
RFEHERER controlled entities 195,638
L UNL A Interest in an associate 4901
BEE Total assets 163,851,179
R Segment liabilities 108,353,263 34659 24238595 1,790,003 301,452 28800114 163,808,086 3,121,788 179,178 167,109,052
EYEYY) Inter-segment transactions (18,202,242
feE Total liabilities 148,906,810
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40 43 #R R (%)

40 Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) % Hu sk #1 53 (b) Geographical area

EREEAR
b 32
B Bt 1 v A1 Capital
BERA Profit expenditure
Operating before during the
income taxation year
#W T W T W T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

—O—Z#& 2012
s Hong Kong 2,915,421 1,917,189 85,489
AREE N RS L [ People’s Republic of China 702,380 544,282 29,634
oAt Others 140,476 99,218 840
43 BB L AH A8 Inter-segment elimination (43,529) - -
R A AR Consolidated 3,714,748 2,560,689 115,963

—O——14F 2011
i Hong Kong 2,912,559 1,880,220 45,188
SRENEREE ] People’s Republic of China 452,167 362,687 2,893
Hofts Others 100,820 14,486 1,853
53 F ELAH AL 8 Inter-segment elimination (21,413) = =
S Consolidated 3,444,133 2,257,393 49,934
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41 Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments, and the

il aggregate credit risk weighted amounts:
A4 Ny
The Group The Bank
—~0—= —~O0— —0o—= —O0——
2012 2011 2012 2011
‘T BT T BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B SR Direct credit substitutes 401,513 724,011 468,158 790,656
XHEE A Transaction-related
A 55 contingencies 155,843 67,640 155,843 67,640
FEEE AR
BOA BB Trade-related contingencies 218,753 205,231 218,753 205,231
i A BAAF K Forward forward deposit placed 140,793 861,016 140,793 861,016
A PMARAETOE 2 Other commitments which are
HoAh i unconditionally cancellable 15,355,095 18,836,863 15,355,095 18,836,863
Other commitments with
JRAS A M 7 —AE 5 an original maturity of
PR 2 HoAt one year or less 4,249,321 2,514,344 4,249,321 2,514,344
Other commitments with
JRAAEH 2y —4E L | an original maturity of
Z HAh AR YE over one year 7,824,308 6,255,499 7,824,308 6,255,499
28,345,626 29,464,604 28,412,271 29,531,249
{5 B Ja g L B 4 %H Credit risk weighted amount 4,719,449 3,900,779 4,783,933 3,965,263

F LA G456 B b < 7 2 TR L

F50%%150% ©

range from 0% to 150%.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted amounts

42 ‘B R RIE 42 Capital and lease commitments
(@ Rt+"H=1+—H > FEHRMHEHR (a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not provided for in
RN ZEARRIENT the financial statements are as follows:
AL M ENE)
The Group The Bank

—0O== —0o—— —0== —O0——

2012 2011 2012 2011

W T T T W T BT T

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

EASHERIEHER  Contracted but not provided for 140,216 105,870 136,549 101,299

EARHEH R B &4 Authorised but not contracted for 99,378 21,087 99,378 21,087
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42 BARRAMA RS (4) 42 Capital and lease commitments (Continued)
G RATZH=1+—H > Sufild§z &%  (b) At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments payable
T 22 oA 2 5 {1 B A L 5 sk T AL under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
T
A4 Ny
The Group The Bank
—~O0—= —O0—— —0o—= —O0—
2012 2011 2012 2011

T T il wT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

b R Land and buildings
— B4R — Within one year 62,456 39,592 81,942 39,592
=B == — After one year but within
5B HAE A five years 102,535 64,629 116,734 64,629
—AEMUE — Over five years 7,558 12,174 7,558 12,174

172,549 116,395 206,234 116,395

AL AT LS EMEMH 2%  The Group and the Bank lease certain properties under operating leases.
2o THAFEARMER B — B N4 o & FH The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years. None of the
)3 A AEBA T B U o leases include contingent rentals.
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43 A SRR LR 43 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement
(a) B BE TV A B 48 2B By 2 Bl & (IR (a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (used in)/
1) WAFEEEE generated from operations
—0—= —_O0——
2012 2011

T T
HKS$°000 HK$°000

o B T e ) Profit before taxation 2,560,689 2,257,393
FHEEIHE - Adjustments for:
JREE Aok L ] 45 T W v U ) Share of net profits of jointly controlled entities (40,715) (17,302)
R Ao e A ) ¥ U ) Share of net profits of associate (2,243) (2,879)
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
W N R 2 R AR securities (10,044) (10,099)
Net loss on disposal of other properties and
B oAt W) € K 2 TR 1R equipment 2,322 877
B2 AT EE Fair value gains on investment properties (140,554) (59.,451)
5 K 2 W E T Impairment charge for credit losses (4,356) 117,368
e Depreciation 84,191 79,741
Amortisation of discount/(premium) on
8 P B R R available-for-sale securities and
R 2B AE 2 Yk (i) held-to-maturity securities 4,614 (18,934)
Amortisation of discount on certificates of
HESH B AT 2 ATk AT deposit issued 115,524 50,269
Amortisation of discount on subordinated
e BT 2 BEEEZ Pk debt issued 83 _
R R E T 2 2 A Operating profit before changes in working capital 2,569,511 2,396,983
EEE R () Decrease/(increase) in operating assets:
JEIAE 4 Short-term funds (1,232,713)  (1,174,978)
[i] 2 72 W47 Tl e K Placements with and loans and advances to
(=18 A LA&21H) banks maturing beyond three months (12,018,158)  (3,975,613)
HFEEE HigES Trading securities 718,983 (1,475,812)
PAAPAE (B 56 A48 £ iR Financial assets designated at
2 A A fair value through profit or loss 235,275 599,958
B S H A AR IR Advances and other accounts (14,257,083) (14,752,147)
wEAME (W), B (Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:
A AE 4 R A Net derivative financial liabilities (60,339) (2,540)
[l SEA7 3K Deposits and balances from banks maturing
(=1 H A2 #) beyond three months 4,049,723 (656,895)
HELEK Deposits from customers 16,954,527 10,889,326
BT ARG Certificates of deposit issued (4,785,524) 10,267,057
PIAEEGE ARG RZ Financial liabilities designated at
4 il B £ fair value through profit or loss (424,349) 823,772
Lo HRIE T 2 B fE Trading liabilities 31,491 2,046
HoAt R IE K FE R Other accounts and accruals 544,521 (177,905)

SRR A (W) WM ATRE Cash (used in)/generated from operations (7,674,135) 2,763,252
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43 LA Bl emRERER ()
(b) Bl K 55 [l Bl JH H Z &5 87 40 #r

43 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)

(b) Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents

—0—= —0o——

2012 2011
T T
HKS$°000 HK$°000

JEE A7 B 4 A7 Tk ] € Cash and balances with banks 5,715,425 5,706,950
R ipeadEES Money at call and short notice 19,906,574 12,407,618
[R] 2 5 ) A7 T % B Placements with and loans and advances to

(2 A B 7 =18 H A) banks with original maturity within three months 6,713,667 22,149,796
J8E Treasury bills with original maturity within

(REIHRE=MH ) three months 1,959,924 2,275,815

W22 2 A 4 TR AR T A 5 Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes - (429,478)
[R] SE A7 2K Deposits and balances from banks with

(REI A AE =M@ A N) original maturity within three months (6,083,331) (10,659,733)

28,212,259 31,450,968

44 DRI I & &

@QR_O0O—Z#F+_H=+—H > —
LB 25 07,200,0000C (2 [A] #E
#55,808,0007C 5 —~O——4F : £
7,200,000 - %5 [F] i %55,920,000C)
B T A R A B 4 S A
BN BT ERERETHT
ERAATERE AT Z LB »

(b) R=O——4FTH=1—H > %%
&L %439,073 ooojnﬁﬁ&bﬁ%ﬁﬁ
=R ES El@$ TR R
[sa] % 17 e 3 Wi 22 1 e 3 4 2R 9 I i
MBI > WLk e i 2 IE %
T SEAGGEEAT o AH B Y A RE 3 4 22 5
FEHFECRE [HFEEEHgE
%] N pZOo——FE+=H=+—
H > 47300 48 R o I ©

44 Assets pledged as security

(a) At 31 December 2012, a money market deposit of US$7,200,000
(equivalent to HK$55,808,000; 2011: US$7,200,000 equivalent to
HK$55,920,000) included in cash and short-term funds has been
pledged to the Office of the Comptroller of Currency of the United
States of America as a statutory deposit for the Bank’s branch in Los
Angeles.

(b) At 31 December 2011, Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills and Notes,
totalling HK$439,073,000 which are included in “Trading securities”
have been pledged to secure the Bank’s short positions in Exchange
Fund Bills and Notes under sale and repurchase agreements
entered into by the Bank in the normal course of its business. At 31
December 2012, there was no such asset pledge held by the Bank.
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45 Loans to officers

Loans made by the Bank to officers and disclosed pursuant to section
161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

BR+ZA=+—H
ZHIRH
Balance outstanding
at 31 December

R
iR
Maximum balance
during the year

—0== —O0—— —0== —O0O—
2012 2011 2012 2011
#WTou BT T W T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Aggregate amount outstanding
g RAEZ in respect of principal and
Lb R A interest 6,611 7,470 7,886 8,254

46 ERABEN LS

TEAEPEN > A SR B AR I T ST B T B
AERENLEST ZRITL S > BHEIK
o AEAC PR A & BARB 2 5 -
% S A N R A 4 A A A
A~ AT EEATEN B KB R R
RS I ROR AT L SR N E
i B A B HATHEE RN Z A F -
55 28 Ty AEAT 4 32 5y e 2 AR BRI T 355 2 %
TEAR % LA AR [ AT 4R 1 T A 52 )
HFREREF ZMEGRFES - #ED
B> w%FE AT Gy )y ¥ B SR KRT 3L
W T A B 755 Sk 3 A b 7 BT 5 8% 2 52
K AEBRSL > A 1 iy 2 LYy — §) Ho A T
REBRENLZZGFHIINTH -

46 Material related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions
with related parties in the normal course of business, which include
loans, deposits, insurance and other financial related transactions. These
related parties are the company which has control over the Group, key
management personnel of the Bank, close members of their families
and companies controlled or significantly influenced by the Group or
by them. The transactions were priced at the relevant market rates at the
time of each transaction, and were on the same terms as those available
to other counterparties and customers of the Group. In the opinion of
the directors, these transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the financial statements, other material related party transactions entered
into by the Group are set out on the following pages.
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46 EARABEANLZR Y () 46 Material related party transactions (Continued)
$tJi] F® Hof
ted iy TBAE HEREAL
el | Jointly Key Other
Holding  controlled  J% /A% management related Hit
company entities ~ Associate  personnel parties Total

Wt W%t EWTx  #WTx  #%Tx  #%Tx
HKS000  HKS$’000  HKS$°000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000

—O—Zk 2012
AGEH R AT The Group and the Bank
WSS H &5 Aggregate amounts
ok outstanding at the year end
— BH R HAMEIEE - Loans and other receivables 18,730 14,419 14,779 9,105 143,926 200,959
— PR — Placement of deposits 40,195 - - - - 40,195
— B — Deposits from customers 2,240,262 778,049 2,958 184,462 33,093 3,238,824
- BTz RERER — Subordinated debt issued 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000
— FCqHRIE AR ~ Other accounts and accruals 4471 - - - - 4471
B A RIS Off-balance sheet outstanding
— SMEARH — Exchange rate contracts
(ZF2H) (notional amounts) 164,845 - - - - 164,845
— HA ki ~ Other commitments - 1,430 - 2,593 151,702 155,725
— WA R — Guarantee received 10,459,885 - - - - 10,459,885
A%EH The Group
T AE B IO A B Income for the year received
AEZIA from related parties
— FLEA — Interest income 78,417 315 - 111 1,373 80,216
— HAE A — Other operating income 13,402 12,221 1 291 1,633 27,548
— REEETF A — Net insurance operating income - 9,618 23 21 - 9,662
91,819 22,154 24 423 3,006 117,426
RAEEYMFHBE  Expenses for the year paid to
NEZER related parties
— FIE S — Interest expenses 59,768 11,047 308 1,355 320 72,798
S — Operating expenses 1,492 1,515 - 5 4 3,016
A E S — Net insurance operating expenses - 6,519 2,174 7 - 8,700

61,260 19,081 2,482 1,367 324 84,514
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46 EARABEALZR Y () 46 Material related party transactions (Continued)
3t I% ity
AT L fTRAE  AREAL
B A T Jointly Key Other
Holding  controlled BiE /A" management related At
company entities Associate personnel parties Total

wETE  wWTT BNt B%Tx w% T BB Tx
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000

ZO——# 2011
KGR AL The Group and the Bank
AL B AR Aggregate amounts
A outstanding at the year end
— BARHMMEIEE - Loans and other receivables 338,831 37,676 15,539 3,320 6,484 401,850
— R — Placement of deposits 221,123 = = = = 221,123
- KFfH% — Deposits from customers 3,001,960 819,122 85,293 292,837 118,835 4,318,047
— BT BEREE — Subordinated debt issued 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000
— HAbIRIE R R ~ Other accounts and accruals 4,403 = = - - 4,403
HE ARG Off-balance sheet outstanding
—SNERH — Exchange rate contracts
(%%2H) (notional amounts) 882,765 - - - - 882,765
— Htt ~ Other commitments - 1411 - 1,804 839 4,054
— R ~ Guarantee received 5,313,155 - - - - 5313155
AEH The Group
SR AR A e Income for the year received
AL ZHeA from related parties
— B A — Interest income 29,047 333 - 49 54 29,483
— HAbEERA — Other operating income 13,703 10,354 1 265 25 24,348
B e TIUN — Net insurance operating income - 4,568 21 40 6 4,635
42,750 15,255 22 354 85 58,466
RS T H B Expenses for the year paid to
ANtz #EH related parties
— FEXH ~ Interest expenses 85,248 3,467 148 249 598 89,710
— B — Operating expenses 1,203 1,776 - 15 6 3,000
— REE T — Net insurance operating expenses 2,076 1,602 1 - 3,679
86,451 7,319 1,750 265 604 96,389

AN A F i A B A -  No impairment allowances have been recognised in respect of loans
BT FRAT A W E MEA (O ——4E ¢ granted to related parties (2011: Nil).
) o

AN
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46 EAABMANLZRZY (#)

FRATHA B HM

AEBMAEEITHANER - QFAITES

46 Material related party transactions (Continued)
Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group including

Z AT AR amounts paid to the Bank’s directors is as follows:
—0—= —O0—
2012 2011
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
B~ A6 AL K HoAth 45 14w F1) Salaries, bonus and other short-term benefits 37,010 36,849
HRARAE F Retirement benefits 3,771 3,757
40,781 40,606

47 AT e fl 5 BB 2 P IR 4 )

A BRA T

R K BB A BR A 7

7K R ARHEAT R 7]

K ESRAT SZREAUVE A R A R
K BESRAT AR T A PR 7]

K WE il B A R A R

K R A LA RS T

K BERA B A IR A T

7K [ B AT R A m
KR E AR (TR A BRA m#*
7K I DR B i i A PR 22

7K [ PR B AT FR 2 =l

Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited*
Wing Lung Opportunities Master Fund

Limited”
K [ SE A BR A A
T I 7 I AT BR A A

Wingspan Incorporated

fORBEERKRFE O HFER_O0——
FEHZAZ=Zt - HZGEGEARLE

R 45 7
* A T0—OF—H BT

48 BEJ W] B d 5 3 B 48 W)

A 2 B0 T B B AR B /] B
2N R LA I8 22 3 i R AT B A BR

N

47 List of subsidiaries for financial reporting consolidation

Hongnet Limited”

Sea Wing Investments Limited

Wing Lung Agency Limited

Wing Lung Bank (Nominees) Limited*

Wing Lung Bank (Trustee) Limited*

Wing Lung Capital Limited*

Wing Lung Asset Management Limited

Wing Lung Finance Limited

Wing Lung Futures Limited*

Wing Lung Information Technology (Shenzhen) Limited**
Wing Lung Insurance Brokers Limited

Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited”

Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited*

Wing Lung Opportunities Master Fund Limited*

Wing Lung Property Management Limited*
Wing Lung Securities Limited*

Wingspan Incorporated

#  Companies excluded in the computation of the consolidated capital ratios at
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 for regulatory reporting purposes

*  Liquidation process commenced in January 2010
48 Immediate and ultimate holding company
The directors consider that the immediate and ultimate holding

company of the Group to be China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., which is
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.
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LA 2 Gk B IR E R A& The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying
Bl A BRI A A AR A B RS information to the financial statements and does not form part of the

EKZ—H/ 0 o audited financial statements.
1 AT R R P E AN I 1 Capital adequacy ratio and capital base
—0—= —O0O—
2012 2011
BA R Capital ratios
—EARELE — Capital adequacy ratio 14.9% 13.9%
— ZOEART R R — Core capital adequacy ratio 10.0% 9.6%
ARstE R -0 ——FK=0—— The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above

E+ A=+ —HZEA LR EA capital ratios as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 is analysed
LR AT IA B AT AT as follows:

—0—= —0o——

2012 2011
T T
HK$°000 HK$°000

B EA Core capital:

AT T ) R 4 A Paid up ordinary share capital 1,160,951 1,160,951

et fg Reserves 9,506,112 7,452,785

8 45 1R Profit and loss account 1,921,523 1,753,908

MER - RIERLIH G A Less: Deferred tax assets (27,362) (46,362)
AN SN Core capital 12,561,224 10,321,282
W D EAR R0 IE B Less: Deductions from core capital (632,884) (519,463)
FOIIE H 18 % D G ASB8%E  Total core capital after deductions 11,928,340 9,801,819
Mg A Supplementary capital:
R FEEEAG A Reserves attributable to fair value gains on

- b e A T E AR revaluation of holdings of land and

Wi i 1 ot 5 buildings 824,416 824,416
R S FEEEAG A Reserves attributable to fair value gains on

]t R R o R A S revaluation of holdings of available-for-sale

A T 2 AR A 2 O A equities and debt securities 88,854 57,088
R i EEEAG LA Unrealised fair value gains arising from

{E{E 56 A8 25 iR 2 IR pE holdings of equities and debt securities

6 75 I AR s 5 10 A designated at fair value through

Z AR BB profit or loss 11,490 13,311
— M sRAT 2R B A0 E S Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 897,456 743,838
LG RN WAE YEA Collective impairment allowances 195,128 193,235
BT BEREE Term subordinated debt 4,550,230 3,000,000
{IPINES Supplementary capital 6,567,574 4,831,888
W B INE AR 1 H0 3 E B Less: Deductions from supplementary capital (632,884) (519,463)
I8 E H & WM& AS48%8  Total supplementary capital after deductions 5,934,690 4,312,425

FOUJE H 18 1 EA KL A% Total capital base after deductions 17,863,030 14,114,244
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1 EART R IR EARRLE (4)

AREBP _O—_4FEF_HA=1+—HK
—O0O— &+ H=+—HZE&EAH
o T RAE A R a2
CGRATH CEA) A 5HE - ZHATY
35 F s CBRAT E R BI) SE98 AT I il
E o MR GRAITE CEA) BAD » A%
] 28 45 R A A ME 7 ik | BH RS B R
Ko 35 R 2 R b R DL SR
[EARFEAE i | 52558 Ry

REZA=+—H> FIratFEARLEL
o TR T B B B S R R A R
{ELHE R 51 17 A A 85 e 3R RERE 4T 2 T B
JBAT] e L > 525 RERG Z HHE 2w
BB AR AR TR o

2 MBE SR

1 Capital adequacy ratio and capital base (Continued)

The capital ratios at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 were
calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) under section 98A of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. In accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules, the Group has adopted the “standardised approach” for
the calculation of the risk-weighted assets for credit risk and market risk,
and the “basic indicator approach” for the calculation of operational risk.

The basis of consolidation for calculation of the capital ratios at 31
December follows the basis of consolidation for financial reporting
but excludes certain subsidiaries as set out in note 47 to the financial
statements. The investment costs of these subsidiaries are therefore
deducted from capital.

2 Liquidity ratio

—0—=
2012

—o——
2011

P4 b

Liquidity ratio 45.0% 43.3%

VB AR R AR A U CBRAT SE M)
WA 2 PO AR AT Kl A o < P B R 9 2
Z — [T Y & 2~ =] (K e B 85 A R 22 wD)
TEASAE N0 J8 H 2 45 & -F 2 8 &
& HU AR 3 2 BT 2 o

The liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average consolidated liquidity ratio for the year calculated for
the Bank and a subsidiary (Wing Lung Finance Limited) as specified by
the HKMA during the year in accordance with the Fourth Schedule of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
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3 Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks

The capital ratios in note 1 to the supplementary financial information
represent the consolidated ratio that comprises the positions of the Bank
and subsidiaries for regulatory purposes as at 31 December computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes,
the basis of consolidation is described in note 47 to the financial
statements.

The following disclosure of the capital requirements for each class of
exposures is made by multiplying the Group’s risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the Group’s

ZHIEBEERA] -

(a) 15 B ELBS 2 B A ZER

A SR B LABE M 7 3w R < B A

actual “regulatory capital”.

(a) Capital charge for credit risk

The Group uses the standardised approach for calculation of the capital

B3R o charge for credit risk.
—O0—= — 00—
2012 2011
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
B E R R R i Sovereign exposures 30,442 68,036
N TR JE B AR Public sector entity exposures 15,448 18,112
[A] 2 R\ B AR 1% Bank exposures 2,770,437 2,155,060
A 2 B R A Corporate exposures 4,826,704 4,190,260
BlEIHH Cash items 108,549 81,575
kB R B R bE Regulatory retail exposures 166,018 156,484
ISR Residential mortgage loans 302,518 305,727
At A 7 1A L g 7 4 Other exposures which are not past due exposures 421,552 387,175
780 1) JE B R A Past due exposures 15,822 13,759

B AR R A R R Total capital charge for on-balance
R SR sheet exposures 8,657,490 7,376,188
HZE SR Direct credit substitutes 34,852 55,116
22 5 Ve H A B 2 s RS Transaction-related contingencies 5,897 2,599
EIGEEREL  PA %Kit Trade-related contingencies 9,126 5,116
A WAk Forward forward deposit placed 2,253 13,776
HoAth R A Other commitments 343,274 251,302
AMHEA £ Exchange rate contracts 10,743 23,772
FZE#) Interest rate contracts 1,316 1,204
ERES#) Equity contracts 369 266

B B AE RSN B AR Total capital charge for off-balance
ZRUE AR R sheet exposures 407,830 353,151
5 SR 2 S ARZ R Total capital charge for credit risk 9,065,320 7,729,339
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RIS o BRI FE A -

3 Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks
(Continued)

(b) Capital charge for market risk

The Group uses the standardised approach for calculation of the capital
charge for market risk.

Positions covered by the approach include:

the Bank’s positions held in foreign exchange and exchange rate-
related derivative contracts; and

the Bank’s trading book positions held in debt securities, interest rate
derivative contracts, equities and equity-related derivative contracts.

—0—= —o——

2012 2011
oL wH T
HKS$°000 HK$°000

2R A P KA HHTHE Interest rate exposures (including options 74, 73,885
AR BRI (L5 includi i 4,166 3,88
471 EE L e 7K 4 Foreign exchange exposures

(B FGH 4 S IAHE) (including gold and options) 108,378 84,331
735 JE\ b 2 S AR Capital charge for market risk 182,544 158,216
(c) &R b5 2 & AN TR (c) Capital charge for operational risk

A AR B DA B AR AR T IR Rt R 2

The Group uses the basic indicator approach for calculating the capital
charge for operational risk.

—0—= —o——

2012 2011
T ki
HK$’000 HK$’000

SR 2 G A TR Capital charge for operational risk 465,678 382,436
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4 Bt 4 Currency concentration

AT NSRS b > 20w The US dollar net position constitutes 10% or more of the total net
715 T I A 10%8% DA E > BLLLk#e  position in all foreign currencies of the Group and is reported in Hong

SE(H AR - Kong dollar equivalent as follows:
AR [
The Group
—0o—= —O0——
2012 2011
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
HEEE Spot assets 38,736,116 44,611,312
BEAR Spot liabilities (30,418,589)  (30,703,175)
I E A Forward purchases 7,312,490 7,447,584
wIE Y Forward sales (14,297,662) (19,091,106)
HARE A Net option position (41,046) 391
B Net long position 1,291,309 2,265,006

HARE R A A R IR IE & B4 31 /B R The net option position is calculated based on the delta-weighted position
[HNEEE A | B3R KT (155 MME  approach set out in the prudential return “Foreign Currency Position”
el FEHE - issued by the HKMA.

7 A [ i AT A s RS A& b > 550 &% The US dollar and RMB net structural positions constitute 10% or more
N W W ch R AL VR 45 REPE A 8 of the total net structural position in all foreign currencies of the Group
HEEI10%8 DL F oo BIDAMEHEZE %13k and are reported in Hong Kong dollar equivalent as follows:

mr -

A4
The Group
—~0—= —O0—
2012 2011
W T BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000

LERETE A MR Net structural position
e US dollar 290,759 291,147
UNET RMB 1,007,628 751,759

1,298,387 1,042,906
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5 s R

(a) HATH B Z % P Bk A

5 Segmental information

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors

—0—= —_O0——
2012 2011
HEA b A HEHR A
HEREHRZ EFEHZ
[Epid:a Aok
% of gross % of gross
advances advances
¥ T covered by 3 W covered by
HK$’000 collateral HK$’000 collateral
TEA sl 2 Bk Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
T 4 il financial
LB 35 Property development 5,387,590 349 5,691,541 33.6
Y ERE Property investment 17,473,985 87.8 17,844,729 91.7
A Financial concerns 1,985,406 34.4 2,101,190 21.4
R A Stockbrokers 204,630 51.3 148,670 100.0
g R EEE Wholesale and retail trade 4,558,242 86.4 4,007,748 73.3
L Manufacturing 1,561,329 96.0 1,808,366 95.9
Transport and transport
R gy 7 958 i equipment 2,320,968 18.3 1,068,008 43.0
1 4 7 5y Recreational activities 47,486 48.8 52,796 51.6
k% Information technology 115,817 1.0 184,652 0.8
oAt Others 5,116,560 62.4 3,425,905 70.1
(PN Individuals
Loans for the purchase of
E [mEaHLZE flats in the Home
FHE - [RAAZ Ownership Scheme,
#EER ] B Private Sector
[T BH R Participation Scheme and
# ] A& B Tenants Purchase Scheme
(i3 Tin il =2 or their respective
ZEK successor schemes 901,716 100.0 1,082,737 100.0
Loans for the purchase of
Wi A E other residential
PIER) B properties 8,381,037 100.0 8,618,653 100.0
gl REH Credit card advances 409,173 - 420,624
oAty Others 1,859,367 95.7 1,772,771 95.9
Yo mE Trade finance 1,163,308 45.9 1,046,232 46.3
51,486,614 75.2 49,274,622 77.8
TE 7 s DA AIMAE ] Loans for use outside
ZEK Hong Kong 36,646,911 46.9 30,054,494 45.8
88,133,525 63.4 79,329,116 65.6
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5 Segmental information (Continued)

9 (H

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors (Continued)

The gross amount of impaired loans, impairment allowances, amount of
new impairment allowances charged to income statement and the amount
of impaired loans written off for those industry sectors which constitute
not less than 10% of gross advances to customers is analysed as follows:

WA
B &% 3 HBx
New Tl A B 3
i 31 %1% impairment Z &M
(ST T1: Tk 3 W% allowances Amount of
3  Individual  Collective charged impaired
Impaired impairment impairment  to income loans
loans  allowance  allowance statement  written off
wHTx #WTx EWTx  BRTx  BW T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—O—Z& 2012
TER W 2 K Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial
R and financial
— WERE — Property investment - - 28,371 8 2,279
(5PN Individuals
— Loans for the purchase of
— HEEMAEE other residential
L EIRE N properties 2,182 - 7,008 235 -
AW LAIME R Loans for use outside
ZEHK Hong Kong 8,613 1,311 86,089 21,028 41,967
10,795 1,311 121,468 21,271 44,246
—O——4 2011
TER W 2 B Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial
R and financial
— WA — Property investment 9,771 2,501 30,436 3,866 =
A Individuals
— Loans for the purchase of
— WEE A E other residential
YZER Bk properties 2,853 270 7,835 283 =
AW LLIMEH Loans for use outside
ZEH Hong Kong 237,843 90,174 91,957 77,528 45,462
250,467 92,945 130,228 81,677 45,462
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5 EER (#) S Segmental information (Continued)

O EEESBEZEFEX AHE (b) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers, overdue
2o O U R B DA advances, impaired loans and impairment allowances

DI ES S Ey X P &2 mijs The following geographical analysis of gross advances to customers,
oo B U B K U (E e A AR B xs 5, overdue advances, impaired loans and impairment allowances is based

W TEEMAESHT - W E B %4  on the location of the counterparty, after taking into account the transfer

B L o of risk in respect of such advances where appropriate.
R T
Individual s
5% M impairment allowance Y 2 f

Gross @ISR CEREER  @HEX CHESER  Collective
advances to Overdue  Impaired Overdue  Impaired impairment
customers advances loans advances loans  allowance
Ehfr  wRTx  BWTx  B%Tx  BWTx  #ERTx
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000

—O—Zf 2012

His Hong Kong 52,100470 1,244,504 48,945 3,538 36,382 99,776

i\ R AL People’s Republic of China 30,184,745 4,107 30,000 - 30,000 63,460

Hits Others 5,848,310 18,450 8,613 - 1,311 14,393
88,133,525 1,267,061 87,558 3,538 67,693 177,629

ZO0——# 2011

Hils Hong Kong 51,981,356 816,264 66,384 6,529 45,033 105,265

kYNGR People’s Republic of China 21,296,757 9,719 30,000 = 30,000 50,096

At Others 6,051,003 8,148 203,493 - 57,678 29,485

79,329,116 834,131 299,877 6,529 132,711 184,846




5 s E R (8)
(c) V5 REIE R IR

7B ] DL S i 52 5 3 T i R I8 JEL B 2
I e > AR ST 5y 3 T 4 B i A% 4%
AT 2 [ > 15 7 b B R T R 2 0y
W o 5 — 1828 5 ¥ T 2 R i 55— 1
TEARR B R 89N L AF AR B B R 2 ¥
Ji— R 8RAT Z Sh o 47 > T H A /] 2
Fr A — R AR B B R - Ja e e 8 2 o
— B K AL B B K o 5% 5 [
i 25 B S PR R MR 9 10% B L B3
PN

Annual Report 2012 Wing Lung Bank Limited
IKEESRATA PR —O— 4E4EHR

5 Segmental information (Continued)
(c¢) Cross-border claims

The Group analyses cross-border claims by exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any transfer
of risk. The transfer of risk from one country to another is recognised
if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in
a different country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank
whose head office is located in a different country. Those areas which
contribute 10% or more of the aggregate cross-border claims are as
follows:

2 A

Public
1T sector Hfiby At
Banks entities Others Total

i T oL oL
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000

—O— & 2012
CHP N7 Asia Pacific excluding

(NEIEEW & Hong Kong and People’s

R \ RN ) Republic of China 13,127,728 87,528 4,367,571 17,582,827
GEPNGE T People’s Republic of China 28,859,462 5,203,461 27,942,148 62,005,071
ZO——4 2011
LY N Asia Pacific excluding

(RNELHE A 1 Hong Kong and People’s

GEINEE 1) Republic of China 10,345,703 148,796 4,809,208 15,303,707

R EE N B3 A B People’s Republic of China 37,730,029 6,140,359 18,042,897 61,913,285
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6 %6 R & A
(a) M I E %

AL 2 F F s

6 Overdue and rescheduled assets

(a) Overdue advances

The Group’s overdue advances to customers are analysed as follows:

—0== —O0O—
2012 2011
%P & F
Bk AR B AAEE
ZHSK ZH
% of total % of total
W TJC  advances to HWETIC advances to
HK$°000 customers HKS$’000 customers
Gross amount of advances
B AaEE > FHomi - which have been overdue for:
—=ZfH k= — Six months or less,
7~E A but over three months 15,253 0.02 9,814 0.01
—NMAAMEE — One year or less,
—4F but over six months 174 - 2,179 -
— —4ERLE — Over one year 5,893 0.01 14,057 0.02
21,320 0.03 26,050 0.03
F G 2 A R Secured overdue advances 17,752 19,343
4 2 s R K Unsecured overdue advances 3,568 6,707
21,320 26,050
Market value of collateral
KA 2 i Bk held against the secured
TR 2 A 5 T E overdue advances 57,404 38,538
L 7108 3] ok A Individual impairment
HEA allowances made 2,542 5,668

BR_o—Z"#+_A=+—H> F*k
gEchifa =@ UL (—0——
) o

At 31 December 2012, there were no advances to banks which were
overdue for over three months (2011: Nil).

S E TR A Z K E R A AT
Y3 e A7 OR A S B B BB A7 3K o

Collateral held with respect to overdue advances are mainly residential
properties and cash deposits with the Group.
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6 MM EREMHERE () 6 Overdue and rescheduled assets (Continued)
(b) H:fih 3 1 % 7 (b) Other overdue assets
A HAta i EE S The Group’s other overdue assets are analysed as follows:
—~0—= —0==
2012 2011
fEHESE HMRE ESHAE  FEE  HMRE AR
Debt Other  Accrued Debt Other  Accrued
securities accounts  interest securities  accounts interest

WHTL #WTor WWTx BWToo W T BWTC
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000

Hofh 7 40T Gross amount of other assets
Homhy - which have been overdue for:
—ZMAULER — Six months or less,
7N E A but over three months - - 108 = = 30
—ANMEAR EE — One year or less,
—UE but over six months - - 3 — — 67
— —4EP k — Over one year 116,267 32,505 445 116,499 32,506 2,635
116,267 32,505 556 116,499 32,506 2,732
(c) BE A B (¢) Rescheduled advances

REH Z KEAAER (i@ The Group’s rescheduled advances (net of those which have been
=W H I AE bl (a)ME RSB 2 B 5K) 4+ overdue for over three months and reported in item (a) above) are as
Hran T : follows:

—0—= —O0O—
2012 2011
%P & F
Bk AR B KA RE
ZHASk ZAmH
% of total % of total
WwHTI0  advances to T advances to
HK$°000 customers HK$’000 customers
MEMHEF Rescheduled advances to
B customers 162,668 0.18 157,062 0.20

Moo ——4FE+ - H=4+—H . [%eg At 3l December 2012, there were no rescheduled advances to banks

Hoh AR A B (o——4F . (2011: Nil).
fE) o
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7 Non-bank Mainland exposures

The following analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures
defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with
reference to the HKMA return for non-bank Mainland exposures. This

B o UL R R AST B 4447 r analysis includes exposures extended by the Bank and its overseas

B 7 S JE b A o branches only.
BEAME ErAfMk
PRz Moz A J31 9 A
Ja\ B 7 Jo B 7 el
On-balance Off-balance Individual
sheet sheet A)EPEH  impairment
exposure exposure Total allowance
W T W T #W% T W T oo
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—O0O—Z& 2012
A % A Mainland entities 26,605,244 2,917,098 29,522,342 -
Companies and individuals
I B A A ) AR A outside Mainland where
Bt i 2 B the credit is granted for use
FERRO B 7R fe in Mainland 9,184,002 2,246,430 11,430,432 1,782
Other counterparties where the
HoAh 22 5 34 F- 1 1 exposure is considered by
AATER A EE N the Bank to be non-bank
I SR AT B Mainland exposure 9,834,305 50,500 9,884,805 -
45,623,551 5,214,028 50,837,579 1,782
HEABR EEAMRRK
DIz BAShZ (RZIRE RN
Ja gz JE\ B FE Heffg
On-balance  Off-balance Individual
sheet sheet HEPFEEE  impairment
exposure exposure Total allowance
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
—O——4% 2011
A A Mainland entities 20,492,352 2,134,077 22,626,429 -
Companies and individuals
ESE A ANPAEIDSE TN outside Mainland where
E?iftttt}z%;%\ ) the credit is granted for use
LA O 38 74 56 A in Mainland 14,181,880 1,145,273 15,327,153 6,191
Other counterparties where the
HoAth 32 7 34 T 1M 4 exposure is considered by
RATER LB A the Bank to be non-bank
FE 4R AT m B Mainland exposure 7,605,378 481,962 8,087,340 6,391
42,279,610 3,761,312 46,040,922 12,582
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8 Risk management
(a) Credit risk
(i) Credit risk exposures

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and
Fitch Ratings are the External Credit Assessment Institutions (“ECAIs”)
that the Group has used in relation to the credit risk exposures below.
The process it used to map ECAI issuer ratings or ECAI issue specific
ratings to exposures booked in its banking book is a process as
prescribed in Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.

—O— 4 2012
A4 The Group
LRz
R &
ik TR
GEILEI
2R
& Total
Z A exposure
i
EHEB LG B R %%gé crizzg::sle)z
RS " Jal i b Total  guarantees
i Exposures after recognised Ja B P T 42 LHMH  exposure  or recognised
i credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts g ek covered by it
Total e A (W1 HFS  weighted  recognised  derivative
AR A B Class of exposure exposures Rated  Unrated Rated  Unrated  amounts  collateral contracts
wWEE  ERFr  EWTx BB W%Tx #WTx ENTx LT
HKS$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$’000 HK$000
B AFEELA On-balance sheet
HhHER Sovereign 5,757,046 5,827,006 - 380,522 - 380,522 - -
NEHE Public sector entity 43,187 2472 933,060 6494 186,612 193,106 - 7,174
BT Bank 64,955,518 72,516,466 4,077,194 33,201,514 1,428,945 34,630,459 1,126,029 235,615
% Corporate 80,871,642 9,515,057 52,099,611 8,234,183 52,099,611 60,333,794 6,428,396 15,744,483
B4R Cash items 741,292 - 833790 - 1356864 1,356,864 - -
EERE Regulatory retail 2,779,549 - 2766972 - 2075229 2,075,229 7,023 5,554
EMERHR Residential mortgage loan 11,229,998 - 10,307,654 - 3781479 3,781,479 - 922,345
Other exposures which are
FEAb R R bR not past due exposures 5,304,562 297,250 4,972,148 297,250 4,972,148 5,269,400 35,162 -
o R Past due exposures 145,129 - 145,129 - 197,770 197,770 38,254 613
B AR Off-balance sheet
Off-balance sheet exposures
B AERUIMR AL other than OTC derivative
GMIE TR AEEE  transactions or credit derivative
ETRALR contracts 5779,740 1,669,240 4,110,500 1,084,880 3,857,642 4,942,522 201,377 768,389
M LA S OTC derivative transactions 319,333 228,849 90,484 72,394 82,961 155,355 1,523 -

177,926,996 90,080,342 87,840,654 43,277,239 70,039,261 113,316,500 7,843,764 17,684,173

AR BB R R 1 Exposures deducted from capital base

1,265,768
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8 Risk management (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)

—O——4¢ 2011
A 4 H] The Group
EfERZ
BRAGE
fik TR
RHMILSH
Rk
DR Total
b il exposure
T
A AR RRRE o
ez RS , JaBG Total  guarantees
gy  Exposiresafer ecognised BRILE 23 SHMHE  exposure  or recognised
A credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts o1 vick. covered by -
Total i1 L il %1 TR weighted  recognised derivative
BB Class of exposure exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts  collateral contracts
T BT EWTr BT B%Fx ERTx EETR T
HK$000 HK$'000  HKS$°000 HK$°000  HK$°000 HK$’000  HK$°000 HKS$000
BEARRUM On-balance sheet
B Sovereign 4341226 9,864,732 13,788 836,659 13,788 850,447 - -
UL Public sector entity 37,112 23,789 1,108,181 4758 201,636 226,394 = -
BATRIE Bank 58,989,951 60,812,045 6,632,293 24962526 1,975,728 26,938,254 - 4,867,366
% Corporate 72,830,373 5,457,692 48549419 3828827 48,549.419 52378246  4.837,623 17,556,560
HEHE Cash items 664,294 - 5,551,074 - 1,019,683 1,019,683 - -
EEZE Regulatory retail 2,625,001 - 2,608,067 - 1,956,050 1,956,050 10,691 6,243
EEYER Residential mortgage loan 11,468,512 - 10,373,653 - 3801583 3,821,583 - 1,094,859
Other exposures which are
Tt bk 1 not past due exposures 4878156 194923 4644769 194923 4644760 4,839,692 38,464 =
bl | Past due exposures 130,029 - 130,029 - 171992 171,992 35972 2,176
B AR Off-halance sheet
Off-balance sheet exposures
B AERUIMNR RALE other than OTC derivative
(F5MiE TRA S o5 & transactions o credit derivative
fitk TAARIRIN contracts 5665576 1940344 3725232 760,000 3338863  4,008863 373961 859,891
BT TR OTC derivative transactions 560258 354364 205894 117,615 197906 315521 7871 -
162,190,488 78,648,089 83,542,399 30,705,308 65,911,417 96,616,725 5,304,582 24,387,095
B bR R B R Exposures deducted from capital base 1,038,926
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8 Risk management (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Counterparty credit risk exposures

The following table summarises the Group’s main credit exposures
arising from OTC derivative transactions:

A The Group
—0== —~_O0—
2012 2011
W T Vi com BT
HK$’000 HK$’000

A TR S &4 OTC derivative

N PAEE A AH Gross total positive fair value 101,700 275,351
BN Credit equivalent amount 319,333 560,258
JE B L T 4 AE Risk weighted amounts 155,355 315,521

{5 B 25 2 B B A L B R 3 L B

The breakdown of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit exposures,

IRESEE Z A5 F - and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as follow:
A4 [ The Group
—0—_ —0—=—
2012 2011
W T HEWETI0
HK$°000 HK$°000
VA ki Notional amounts:
HRAT Banks 17,731,763 22,833,160
12 Corporates 9,278,452 8,781,509
HAth Others 575,536 685,560
27,585,751 32,300,229
5 EMHS SR Credit equivalent amounts:
AT Banks 228,849 354,200
12 Corporates 77,020 192,572
HAth Others 13,464 13,486
319,333 560,258
JEB L A Risk-weighted amounts:
HRAT Banks 72,394 117,533
12 Corporates 76,580 192,155
HAthy Others 6,381 5,833
155,355 315,521
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8 I\ BEE P (4)
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8 Risk management (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, there are no repo-style
transactions or credit derivative contracts in the Group.

The Group currently uses the current exposure method for purpose of
providing capital for counterparty exposures in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. Internally, the Group measures counterparty
credit exposure using the marked-to-market exposure with appropriate
add-on for future potential exposures.

The Group has internal limit for counterparty exposure with respect
to OTC derivative contracts. When the limit is reached, the senior
management will take appropriate action including reduction of the
position.

(b) Asset securitisation

At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, there are no securitisation
exposures in the Group. The Group uses the standardised (securitisation)
approach to calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures.
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, Moody’s Investors Service and
Fitch Ratings are the ECAIs that the Group has used in relation to the
securitisation exposures.

(c¢) Equity exposures in banking book

Investments that are held for the purpose of entering into a strategic
cooperation with the investee with a view to leveraging the respective
strengths to enhance the Group’s business are classified by the Group as
strategic investments. Other equity investments are held for capital gain
purposes.

Equity exposures in the banking book are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the investment revaluation reserve, until the equity exposure
is derecognised or impaired. At this time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is recognised
in the income statement.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on
current bid prices. For unquoted equity holdings with no active market,
the Group establishes fair value by the use of recent arm’s length
transactions or other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants.
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8 Risk management (Continued)

8 Jl b B (4)

(c) HAERATIR H A 17 J HE Jal b R 3% (48) (c¢) Equity exposures in banking book (Continued)

A The Group
—~O0—= —O0——
2012 2011
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
oK 5 B Al i Unrealised revaluation gain
ELHE L St A5 P ESE IF Amount included in reserves but not through
Wi %5 F U 2 fob A A income statement 143,836 108,749
FLFETE M I E A R 2 #EFH Amount included in supplementary capital 77,049 49,369

(d) A ERATIR H 7 i A 5 L B 7R 3 (d) Interest rate exposures in banking book

The Group monitors the interest rate risk exposures on a monthly basis
by assessing the impact on earnings in banking book due to parallel
movements of 200 basis points upward in all yield curves.

AL A GRS L AT
2 1) b W P A AR SR AT Wi 2R T A A

IS4
R o

The impact on earnings of the Group is calculated by assuming that the
changes in interest rates last for a period of 12 months and all positions
are repriced at the mid-point of each time band.

w5 B A i 4 P A A R B BGRR
M) 2 5 B HE 4 + A8 A AR R B A
118 55 B 22 v o 2B o7

—O—4F 2012
A H The Group
i
Currency
VLT I Wi AR Hfb wit
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
EWTFE  #RTx  #WTx  BWTx  #W%Tx  #ERTx
HK$’'000  HK$000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
2B Interest rate risk
(EF200% 1) (200 basis points upward)
— gt/ () — Increase/(decrease) in earnings 242,983 75,236 3,826 111,149 (7,231) 425963
—O——4E 2011
7 45 [H The Group
s
Currency
T EIN Ly N Hth Gt
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
BT BTk Wt %t BWTx B Tx
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$°000  HK$000
2R B Interest rate risk
(EF200%+) (200 basis points upward)
— gt/ () — Increase/(decrease) in earnings 223,031 7,235 (3,632) 177,771 (2,634) 401,771
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ETFEHM © wib@winglungbank.com
B B B A 4B AL« http:/www.winglungbank.com
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HEAD OFFICE

45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Email: wib@winglungbank.com

LOCAL BRANCHES
Hong Kong Island

North Point
Central District
Western District
Happy Valley
Causeway Bay
Wan Chai

Quarry Bay
Convention Plaza
Percival Street
Aberdeen
Johnston Road
Kennedy Town
Sai Wan Ho

Des Voeux Road West
Fortress Hill

Kowloon

Lai Chi Kok Road
Sham Shui Po

San Po Kong

Mongkok

Kwun Tong

Tsim Sha Tsui

To Kwa Wan

Tsz Wan Shan

Jordan

Kowloon Bay

Nam Cheong Street
Hunghom

Lam Tin Sceneway Plaza
China Hong Kong City
Mei Foo Sun Chuen
Kwun Tong Shing Yip Street
Kowloon City

Website: http://www.winglungbank.com

361 King’s Road

112 Queen’s Road Central
262 Queen’s Road West
44 King Kwong Street

45 Jardine’s Bazaar

383 Hennessy Road

1A Westlands Road

1 Harbour Road

62 Percival Street

201 Aberdeen Main Road
118 Johnston Road

28 Catchick Street

123 Shaukeiwan Road
347 Des Voeux Road West
101 King’s Road

17 Lai Chi Kok Road

111 Tai Po Road

8 Shung Ling Street

Wing Lung Bank Centre, 636 Nathan Road
339 Ngau Tau Kok Road

4 Carnarvon Road

64 To Kwa Wan Road

25 Fung Tak Road

123 Woo Sung Street

19 Lam Lok Street

85 Nam Cheong Street

28 Wuhu Street

8 Sceneway Road

Shop 7, G/F, China Hong Kong City
Shop N94, 1/F, Mount Sterling Mall
Shop 149, 1/E, E Plaza, Legend Tower
70-72 Nga Tsin Wai Road

i Telephone

2571 2211
25447011
2546 6211
2573 8395
2890 9753
2891 7371
2565 0080
2802 4822
2881 6028
2552 7688
2834 0208
2816 0028
2513 1771
2857 6068
3507 0047

2380 2281
2720 4135
2325 0271
2710 4188
2342 2117
2369 9255
2363 6237
2327 0208
2770 7117
2753 8328
2728 3993
2333 6088
2727 6200
2314 0233
2370 9933
2331 2181
2382 5138
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LOCAL BRANCHES

New Territories

Tsuen Wan 251 Sha Tsui Road

Sha Tin 8 Tai Wai Road

Yuen Long 37 On Ning Road

Kwai Chung 128 Wo Yi Hop Road

Tuen Mun 42 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
Sheung Shui 128 San Fung Avenue

Tai Po 1 On Chee Road

Fanling 15 Luen Hing Street
Shatin Plaza 21 Shatin Centre Street
Tseung Kwan O Metro City Shop 238, Metro City Phase 1

Science Park S003, G/F, Core Building One

Phase 1, HK Science Park

MAINLAND BRANCHES

Shenzhen Branch

Room 5301, 53/F, Tower A, Kingkey 100 Building
No. 5016 Shennan East Road, Luohu District
Shenzhen, PRC

Shenzhen Nanshan Sub-branch

Shops 105-106, Garden City Phase I
Nanhai Road, Shekou, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, PRC

Shanghai Branch

Room 2601-2609

Phase II Office Tower Shanghai IFC
8 Century Avenue, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

MAINLAND REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

Guangzhou Representative Office

Room 1302, Guangzhou Peace World Plaza
362-366 Huan Shi Dong Road

Guangzhou, PRC

MACAU BRANCH, CHINA

Macau Branch

Baia da Praia Grande, No. S/N, Fecho
BPG-Zona A-Lote 5, R/C A

Finance and IT Center of Macau

i Telephone

2493 4161
2697 6202
2479 0181
2428 4211
2459 7061
2670 1298
2663 2277
2677 7888
2606 1783
2706 2600
3507 0046

#ih Telephone

(86 755) 2294 9300

(86 755) 2689 2609

(86 21) 2035 7199

il Telephone

(86 20) 8384 8027

il Telephone

(853) 2888 8111

207



208

Annual Report 2012 Wing Lung Bank Limited
KBESRATHIRA R —.0 — “AFR4FR

S421T L W 4 7
Bank Offices and Subsidiaries

Hor o A7
SRR B A2 1T

OVERSEAS BRANCHES
Los Angeles Branch # il Telephone
201 East Valley Boulevard

Alhambra, California 91801, USA (626) 656-8118

(345) 949-8455

BH = B & 01T Cayman Islands Branch
P. O. Box 1034 GT
Harbour Place, 4th Floor
103 South Church Street
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands
Whf 8§ 2 ] SUBSIDIARIES
Tk DR B A PR Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited
7K W Rl A R Wing Lung Capital Limited
7K R B 5 A PR ) Wing Lung Finance Limited
K B A A PR /A ) Wing Lung Asset Management Limited
K B B A R A A Wing Lung Futures Limited
K R 5 A R Wing Lung Securities Limited
K RESRATIE FE A PR A ] Wing Lung Bank (Trustee) Limited
K R R g ) A BR 2 ) Wing Lung Insurance Brokers Limited
K BEACIRA R A Wing Lung Agency Limited

K EERAT 32 REAVE A R 7

KB A R 7]
FE A R ]

Wingspan Incorporated

Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited

Wing Lung Opportunities
Master Fund Limited
K BE A RA R

AKEEEFRHL (RN A BRA

Wing Lung Bank (Nominees) Limited
Wing Lung Property Management Limited
Hongnet Limited
Wingspan Incorporated
Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited
Wing Lung Opportunities
Master Fund Limited
Sea Wing Investments Limited
Wing Lung Information Technology (Shenzhen) Limited
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